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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. 1027 OF 2018

In the matter of sections 230 - 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
And

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement between Hind Lamps
Limited and Bajaj Electricals Limited and their respective
shareholders and creditors

Bajaj Electricals Limited, a company incorporated under

the provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 1913 and

having its registered office at 45/47, Veer Nariman Road,

Mumbai 400 001, Maharashtra. ... Applicant Company

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF THE SECURED CREDITORS OF THE COMPANY PURSUANT TO THE
ORDER DATED NOVEMBER 2, 2018 OF THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH

To,
The Secured Creditors of Bajaj Electricals Limited.

NOTICE is hereby given that by an Order dated November 2, 2018, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench
(“Hon’ble NCLT”) has directed to convene a meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Company, for the purpose of considering,
and if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the Scheme of Arrangement between Hind Lamps Limited (“HLL” or
“‘Demerged Company” or “Transferor Company” or “Non-Applicant”) and Bajaj Electricals Limited (“BEL” or “Company” or
“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” or “Applicant’) and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”).

In pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein, further Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the secured creditors of
the Company will be held at Walchand Hirachand Hall, 4th Floor, Indian Merchants Chamber, IMC Marg, Churchgate, Mumbai
400 020, Maharashtra on Thursday, February 21, 2019 at 03:30 p.m. at which time and place, the secured creditors of the
Company are requested to attend to consider and, if thought fit, to approve with or without modification(s), the following Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and the rules, circulars
and notifications made thereunder, and in accordance with the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of the Company and subject to the approval of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (“Hon’ble
NCLT”) and subject to such other approvals, consents, permissions or sanctions of regulatory and other authorities, as may be
necessary and subject to conditions and modification(s), if any, as may be prescribed, stipulated or imposed by the Hon’ble NCLT
or by any regulatory or other authorities, from time to time, while granting such approvals, consents, permissions or sanctions
and which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”, which term shall
be deemed to mean and include one or more Committee(s) constituted / to be constituted by the Board or any person(s) which
the Board may nominate to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution), the arrangement embodied
in the Scheme of Arrangement between Hind Lamps Limited and Bajaj Electricals Limited and their respective shareholders and
creditors (“Scheme”) placed before this meeting and initialed by the Chairman of the meeting for the purpose of identification,
be and is hereby approved.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as it may, in its
absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give effect to this Resolution and effectively implement
the arrangement embodied in the Scheme and to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any,
which may be required and/or imposed by the Hon’ble NCLT while sanctioning the arrangement embodied in the Scheme or
by any authorities under the law, or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or doubts or difficulties that
may arise including passing of such accounting entries and/or making such adjustments in the books of accounts as considered
necessary in giving effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper.”

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that you may attend and vote at the said meeting in person or by proxy provided that the proxy in Form
MGT-11, signed by you or your authorised representative, is deposited at the registered office of the Company not later than 48
(forty eight) hours before the commencement of the meeting. The form of proxy can be obtained from the registered office of the



Company or can be downloaded from the website of the Company (www.bajajelectricals.com). It is further clarified that votes may
be cast personally or by proxy at the meeting as provided in this Notice.

A copy of the Scheme and of the Explanatory Statement under sections 230(3), 232(1) & (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016, along with the enclosures as
indicated in the Index to this Notice, are enclosed herewith and the same can be obtained free of charges on any working day
(except Saturdays) prior to the date of the meeting at the Registered Office of the Company.

The Hon’ble NCLT has appointed Mr. Shekhar Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company and failing him, Mr.
Anuj Poddar, Executive Director of the Company, to be the Chairman of the meeting. The abovementioned Scheme, if
approved by equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors, will be subject to the subsequent approval of
the Hon’ble NCLT.

Sd/-
Shekhar Bajaj
(DIN: 00089358)
Chairman appointed for the Meeting
Place: Mumbai
Date: January 2, 2019
Regd. Office: 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001.

NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to sections 230(3), 232(1) & (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 6
of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 is enclosed herewith and forms part of
this Notice.

2. A SECURED CREDITOR ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE
OR MORE PROXY(IES) TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND A PROXY SO APPOINTED
NEED NOT BE A SECURED CREDITOR OF THE COMPANY. PROXY IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE
RECEIVED AT THE COMPANY’S REGISTERED OFFICE NOT LESS THAN 48 (FORTY EIGHT) HOURS BEFORE
THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

3. A minor cannot be appointed as a Proxy. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be signed by the appointer or his attorney
duly authorised in writing, or if the appointer is a body corporate, it shall be under its seal and be signed by an officer or an
attorney duly authorised by it.

4. The authorised representative of a body corporate which is a registered secured creditor of the Company may attend and
vote at the meeting provided a certified true copy of the resolution of the board of directors or other governing body of the
body corporate authorising such representative to attend and vote at the meeting, is deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company not later than 48 (forty eight) hours before the scheduled time of the commencement of the meeting.

5. The Notice convening the meeting, the date of dispatch of the Notice and the Explanatory Statement, amongst others, will
be published through advertisement in the following newspapers, namely, (i) “Free Press Journal” in the English language;
and (ii) translation thereof in “Navshakti” in the Marathi language.

6. A secured creditor or his/her proxy or authorised representative is requested to bring the copy of this Notice to the meeting
and produce the attendance slip, duly completed and signed, at the entrance of the meeting venue.

7. Registered secured creditors who hold securities in dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client ID/DP ID/ISIN
details for easy identification at the meeting.

8. The Notice is being sent to all secured creditors, whose name appeared in the register of secured creditors as on Monday,
December 31, 2018. This Notice of the meeting of the secured creditors of the Company is also displayed/posted on the
website of the Company (www.bajajelectricals.com).



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

The Company is offering facility for voting by way of ballot papers at the meeting for the secured creditors attending
the meeting.

Voting rights shall be in proportion to the principal amount due to the secured creditors as on the cut-off date i.e. Monday,
December 31, 2018.

Mr. Anant B. Khamankar, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership Number: FCS 3198, CP Number 1860) and failing
him, Mr. Surendra Singh, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership Number: ACS 41539, CP Number 15640) of Messrs
Anant B. Khamankar & Co., has been appointed as the Scrutinizer under the Order of the Hon’ble NCLT dated November 2,
2018 to conduct the voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairperson of the meeting after completion of the scrutiny of the votes cast
by the secured creditors of the Company through ballot paper at the venue of the meeting. The Scrutinizer’s decision on
the validity of the vote shall be final. The results will be announced on or before Saturday, February 23, 2019. The results,
together with the Scrutinizer’s Report, will be displayed at the Registered Office of the Company and on the website of the
Company i.e. www.bajajelectricals.com, besides being communicated to BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited.

The resolution will be deemed to have been passed on the meeting date, subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes
cast in favour of the resolution.

All the documents referred to in the Explanatory Statement shall be available for inspection by the secured creditors at the
Registered Office of the Company between 11:00 a.m. to 01:00 p.m. on all working days (except Saturdays) up to the date
of the meeting.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 230 read with Section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Scheme shall be
acted upon only if majority of persons representing three-fourth in value of the secured creditors of the Company, voting by
way of ballot paper at the meeting, agree to the Scheme.



IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. 1027 OF 2018

In the matter of sections 230 - 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

And
In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement between Hind Lamps

Limited and Bajaj Electricals Limited and their respective
shareholders and creditors

Bajaj Electricals Limited, a company incorporated under
the provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 1913 and
having its registered office at 45/47, Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai 400 001, Maharashtra. ... Applicant Company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 230(3) READ WITH SECTION 232(2) AND 102 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS AND
AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016

1.

Pursuant to the Order dated November 2, 2018, passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench
(“Hon’ble NCLT”), in Company Application No. 1027 of 2018 (“Order”), a meeting of the secured creditors of Bajaj Electricals
Limited (“BEL” or “Company” or “Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” or “Applicant”) is being convened at
Walchand Hirachand Hall, 4th Floor, Indian Merchants Chamber, IMC Marg, Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020, Maharashtra,
on Thursday, February 21, 2019 at 03:30 p.m. for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving, with or without
modification(s), the Scheme of Arrangement between Hind Lamps Limited (‘HLL” or “Demerged Company” or “Transferor
Company” or “Non-Applicant”) and Company and their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) under sections
230-232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

In terms of the said Order, the quorum for the said meeting of secured creditors shall be 5 (five) secured creditors present in
person. Further in terms of the said Order, the Hon’ble NCLT, has appointed Mr. Shekhar Bajaj, the Chairman & Managing
Director of the Company and failing him, Mr. Anuj Poddar, Executive Director of the Company, to be the Chairman of the
meeting of the secured creditors of the Company including for any adjournment thereof.

This statement is being furnished as required under sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 (“Rules”).

As stated earlier, the Hon’ble NCLT by the said Order has, inter alia, directed that a meeting of the secured creditors of
the Company shall be convened and held at Walchand Hirachand Hall, 4th Floor, Indian Merchants Chamber, IMC Marg,
Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020, Maharashtra, on Thursday, February 21, 2019 at 03:30 p.m. for the purpose of considering,
and if thought fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the arrangement embodied in the Scheme. Secured creditors
would be entitled to vote in the said meeting either in person or through proxy.

In accordance with the provisions of sections 230 - 232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Scheme shall be acted upon only if
a majority in number representing three fourths in value of the secured creditors of the Company, as the case may be, voting
in person or by proxy, agree to the Scheme.

Background:
6.1 Details of the Demerged Company:

a) The Demerged Company was incorporated as a public company with limited liability in the name ‘Hind Lamps
Limited’ under the Indian Companies Act, 1913 pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated April 30, 1951.

) Corporate Identity Number (CIN): U27302UP1951PLC002355

c) Permanent Account Number (PAN): AAACH3973Q
) Registered office: Shikohabad, Firozabad, Uttar Pradesh 205 141
)

E-mail address: hindlamps@sify.com



f)

h)

The equity shares of the Demerged Company are not listed on any stock exchange.

The objects for which the Demerged Company has been established are set out in the Memorandum of Association.
The relevant main objects of the Demerged Company as set out in its Memorandum of Association are as follows:

“3(i)

“3(ii)

“3, (iii)

“3. (xvii)

“3.(xxiv)

To acquire certain lamp and glass factories, plant, machinery equipment and stocks and other assets of
Radio Lamps Works Limited at Shikohabad in Uttar Pradesh.”

To carry on the business of manufacturers of, dealers in, agents for and sellers of all kinds of goods.
particularly of electric goods including electric lamps and lighting effects of every kind and description,
including all parts and accessories, electrical apparatus of every kind and description, including all parts
and accessories, and generally of articles, instruments and things required for or capable of being used
for and in connection with the generation, transformation, propagation, radiation, distribution, supply,
accumulation and employment or application of electricity for any purposes whatsoever, and to carry
on the business of glass manufacturers and particularly the business of manufacturing glass articles for
electric apparatus, and to carry on also the business of and electrical and general engineers and general
merchants and contractors and any other trade or business whatsoever, whether manufacturing or
otherwise which can in the opinion of the Company be advantageously or conveniently earned on by the
Company by way of extension of or in connection with its general business or which is calculated directly
or indirectly to develop the business or any branch of the business or the Company or to increase the
value of or turn to account any of the Company’s assets, properties or rights.”

To acquire and undertake the whole or any part of the business, property and liabilities of, or unite or
amalgamate with or absorb any person or persons, company or companies, partnership or partnerships
carrying on any business which this Company is authorised to carry on or possessed of property suitable
for the purposes of this Company.”

To sell or dispose of the undertaking or property of the Company or any part or parts thereof, for such
consideration as the Company may think fit, and in particular for shares, debentures, or securities of any
other company having objects altogether or in part similar to those of this Company.”

To amalgamate with any other company having objects altogether or in part similar to those of this
Company.”

There has been no change in the name, registered office and the objects of the Demerged Company in the last 5
(five) years.

The Demerged Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing of glass bulbs, HID bulbs and
aluminium caps and has been declared as a sick industrial company within the meaning of section 3(1)(o) of
the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 (“SICA”) by the Board of Industrial and Financial
Reconstruction (“BIFR”), having its registered office & manufacturing unit located at Shikohabad, Firozabad
District, Uttar Pradesh and HID Lamps manufacturing unit located at Parwanoo, Himachal Pradesh.

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Demerged Company as on March 31, 2018 is

as under:

Particulars 3
Authorised Share Capital:

6400000 Equity Shares of ¥ 25 each 16,00,00,000
400000 9% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 25 each 1,00,00,000
3200000 0% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 25 each 8,00,00,000
Total 25,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

6000000 Equity Shares of ¥ 25 each (fully paid-up) 15,00,00,000

2800000 0% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 25 each (fully paid-up and 7,00,00,000
issued for consideration other than cash)

Total

22,00,00,000

Subsequent to the above date, there has been no change in the authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share
capital of the Demerged Company.



k) Names of the promoters and directors along with their addresses:

Details of Promoters

Name Address

Promoter(s)*

Mr. Shekhar Bajaj Flat No. 211, Maker Tower A, Cuffe Parade, Collaba,
Mumbai 400 005

Promoter Group Individual(s) / Entity(ies)

Mrs. Kiran Bajaj Flat No. 50, Building No. 4, Hill Park, A.G. Bell Marg, Malabar Hill,
Mumbai 400 006

Ms. Geetika Bajaj Flat No. 50, Building No. 4, Hill Park, A.G. Bell Marg, Malabar Hill,
Mumbai 400 006

Mr. Niraj Bajaj Mount Unique Co-op. Housing Society Ltd., Flat No.97, 13th Floor,
62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400 026

Bajaj Electricals Limited 45/47, VVeer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001

Bachhraj & Company Private Limited Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Jamnalal Sons Private Limited Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Baroda Industries Private Limited Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Bajaj International Private Limited Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

* Due to demise of Mr. Anant Bajaj, Director and Promoter of the Demerged Company, on August 10, 2018, his
name has not been included in the above list of promoters.

Details of Directors

Name Designation Address

Mr. Shekhar Bajaj Chairman Flat No. 211, Maker Tower A, Cuffe Parade, Collaba,
Mumbai 400 005

Mr. K. R. Bhattad Director 601 A-Wing, Trishla Tower, Amarkant Jha Marg, Borivali
(West), Mumbai 400 092

Mr. Sanjay Murarka Director Flat No.7, Krishna Nandan, Natwar Nagar Road No.4, Hindu
Friends Society Road, Jogeshwari (East), Mumbai 400 060

Mr. Subir Datta Whole-time Director  Flat No. 2802, Plot No. F/9, Overseas Apartment, Sector-50,
Noida, Uttar Pradesh 201 301.

6.2 Details of the Resulting Company:

a) The Resulting Company was incorporated as a public company with limited liability in the name ‘Radio
Lamp Works Limited’ under the Indian Companies Act, 1913 pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated
July 14, 1938.

The name of the Resulting Company was subsequently changed as ‘Bajaj Electricals Limited’ on October 1, 1960
and since then, there has been no further change in the name of the Resulting Company.

)  Corporate Identity Number (CIN): L31500MH1938PLC009887

) Permanent Account Number (PAN): AAACB2484Q

d) Registered office: 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001

) E-mail address: legal@bajajelectricals.com

f)  The equity shares of the Resulting Company are listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (“NSE”).



9)

h)

The objects for which the Demerged Company has been established are set out in the Memorandum of Association.
The relevant main objects of the Resulting Company as set out in its Memorandum of Association are as follows:

“3.(a)

“3.(aa)

“3.(aaa)

“3.(b)

“3.(ddd)

“3.(e)

“3.(9)

“3.(h)

To manufacture, assemble, repair, buy, sell, import, export, hire, exchange, alter or improve or otherwise
deal in all kinds of electrical goods, instruments, appliances and apparatus of every kind and description
including lighting fittings and effects of every kind and description, machinery and equipment,
transformers, switchgear, motors, fans all parts, components, accessories and raw materials and all
articles, goods and things required for or capable of being used for, or in connection with the generation,
transformation, propagation, distribution, supply, measurement, accumulation and employment of
electricity, heat, light, gas, atomic, solar and other power for any purposes whatsoever.”

To manufacture, assemble, repair, buy, sell, import, export, hire, exchange, alter or improve or otherwise
deal in non-electrical, scientific, precision, optical, surgical, measuring industrial and other instruments,
laboratory and medical apparatus and equipments, industrial, commercial, domestic, cooking, heating,
lighting and other appliances, all parts, components, accessories and raw materials thereof.”

To design, manufacture, test, assemble, erect, commission, repair, buy, sell, import, export, hire,
exchange, alter or improve or otherwise deal in all kinds of engineering goods such as high, medium
and low tension power transmission line polygonal poles, AAC/ACSR/GI conductors, lighting poles -
decorative, conical, octagonal or stepped type, fixed platform type High Mast lighting system with lantern
carriage, headframes, lowering and raising winches, base hinged lowering and raising masts, and its
manually or electrically operated and hydraulically powered counterbalances, mobile lighting masts with
diesel genset, antenna masts, traffic light poles, sign poles, windmill masts, transmission towers, lattice
masts, T.V. towers, railway electrification structures, electric substation structures, cable trays, electrical
junction boxes of any type and instruments, equipments, apparatus, machinery and all articles, goods
and material required for the purpose of area illumination and for floodlighting or in connection with
generation, distribution, supply of electricity or for any other purpose whatsoever.”

To manufacture, assemble, repair, buy, sell, import, export, hire, exchange, alter or improve or otherwise
deal in electrical, metallic, accessories and components, apparatus, tools, appliances, hardware
products, and as general merchants.”

To carry on the business of manufacture/generate electrical energy, by use of gas, wind, solar, thermal,
hydro, atomic or any other resources and/or trading thereof and/or transmit, distribute, convey or supply
the same by whatever means to any user, trader or any person whomsoever in any part of India or
outside India.”

To purchase or otherwise acquire the whole or any part of the business property, undertakings and
liabilities of any other Company, association, corporation, firm or individual carrying on wholly or in part
any business which this Company is authorised to carry on or possessed of property suitable for the
purpose of the Company.”

To pay for any property or rights acquired by the Company, either in cash, or fully or partly paid shares
or by the issue of securities, or partly in one mode and partly in another, and generally on such terms as
the Company may deem expedient.”

To amalgamate with any other Company or Companies.”

There has been no change in the name, registered office and objects of the Resulting Company in the last 5 (five)

years.

The Resulting Company is engaged in the business of Consumer Products (Appliances, Fans, Consumer Lighting),
EPC (Transmission Line Towers, Telecommunication Towers, High Masts, Poles, Special Projects including Rural
Electrification Projects and Luminaires) and Others (Wind Energy).

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Demerged Company as on March 31, 2018 is

as under:

Particulars 3
Authorised Share Capital:

200000000 Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each 40,00,00,000
Total 40,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

102037501 Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each (fully paid-up) 20,40,75,002
Total 20,40,75,002




k)

Subsequent to the above date, the share capital of the Resulting Company has increased to 102371576 equity
shares of ¥ 2 each on account of issue of 334075 equity shares on exercise of stock options by the option

grantees.

Names of the promoters and directors along with their addresses:

Details of Promoters

Name

\ Address

Promoter(s)

Mr. Rahul Bajaj

Bungalow No. 4, Bajaj Vihar Colony, Bajaj Auto Ltd. Complex, Mumbai
Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune 411 035

Mr. Shekhar Bajaj

Flat No. 211, Maker Tower A, Cuffe Parade, Collaba,
Mumbai 400 005

Mr. Madhur Bajaj

Bungalow No. 3, Bajaj Vihar Colony, Bajaj Auto Ltd. Complex,
Mumbai Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune 411 035

Mr. Niraj Bajaj

Mount Unique Co-op. Housing Society Ltd., Flat No.97, 13th Floor,
62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400 026

Promoter Group Individual(s) / Entity(ies)*

Mrs. Kiran Bajaj

Flat No. 50, Building No. 4, Hill Park, A.G. Bell Marg, Malabar Hill,
Mumbai 400 006

Mrs. Sunaina Kejriwal

Flat No. 3703, B Wing, Vivarea, Sane Guruji Marg, Near Jacob Circle,
Mumbai 400 011

Mrs. Neelima Bajaj Swamy

Ashoka Apts., Flat No.43, 4th Floor, Rungta Lane, Napeansea Road,
Mumbai 400 006

Mrs. Minal Bajaj

Mount Unique Co-op. Housing Society Ltd., Flat No.97, 13th Floor,
62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400 026

Ms. Geetika Bajaj

Flat No. 50, Building No. 4, Hill Park, A.G. Bell Marg, Malabar Hill,
Mumbai 400 006

Mrs. Nimisha Jaipuria

Flat No.165-A, Raj Mahal, Vilas Extension, 9th Main Road,
Bengaluru 560 080

Mr. Niravnayan Bajaj

Mount Unique Co-op. Housing Society Ltd., Flat No.98, 13th Floor,
62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400 026

Ms. Kumud Bajaj

Bungalow No. 3, Bajaj Vihar Colony, Bajaj Auto Ltd. Complex,
Mumbai Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune 411 035

Mrs. Pooja Bajaj

Flat No 26, Hill Park, Building No 3A, A.G. Bell Marg, Malabar Hill,
Mumbai 400 006

Ms. Suman Jain

Bhagwati Bhawan, 31-B, M. L.
Mumbai 400 026

Dahanukar Marg,

Ms. Kriti Bajaj

Mount Unique Co-op. Housing Society Ltd., Flat No.97, 13th Floor,
62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400 026

Ms. Shefali Bajaj

Bungalow No. 4, Bajaj Vihar Colony, Bajaj Auto Ltd. Complex,
Mumbai Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune 411 035

Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj

Bungalow No. 4, Bajaj Vihar Colony, Bajaj Auto Ltd. Complex, Mumbai
Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune 411 035

Ms. Deepa Bajaj

Plot No. 34 & 35, Yog Koregaon Park, Lane No. 2,
Pune 411 001

Mr. Rishabnayan Bajaj

Plot No. 34 & 35, Yog Koregaon Park, Lane No. 2,
Pune 411 001

Mr. Siddhant Bajaj

Bungalow No. 4, Bajaj Vihar Colony, Bajaj Auto Ltd. Complex, Mumbai
Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune 411 035

Ms. Sanjali Bajaj

Bungalow No. 4, Bajaj Vihar Colony, Bajaj Auto Ltd. Complex, Mumbai
Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune 411 035

Master Aryaman Kejriwal

Flat No. 3703, B Wing, Vivarea, Sane Guruji Marg, Near Jacob Circle,
Mumbai 400 011

Master Nirvaan Kejriwal

Flat No. 3703, B Wing, Vivarea, Sane Guruji Marg, Near Jacob Circle,
Mumbai 400 011
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Name

Address

Master Vanraj Bajaj

Flat No 26, Hill Park, Building No 3A, A.G. Bell Marg, Malabar Hill,
Mumbai 400 006

Master Aarav Swamy

Ashoka Apts., Flat No.43, 4th Floor, Rungta Lane, Napeansea Road,
Mumbai 400 006

Master Vihaan Jaipuria

Flat No.165-A, Raj Mahal, Vilas Extension, 9th Main Road, Bengaluru
560 080

Ms. Sheetal Bajaj

Mount Unique Co-op. Housing Society Ltd.,, Flat No.98,
13th Floor, 62-A, Peddar Road, Mumbai 400 026

Rajivnayan Bajaj HUF

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Sanjivnayan Bajaj HUF

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Jamnalal Sons Private Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Bajaj Holdings And Investment Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Hind Musafir Agency Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Bajaj International Private Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Baroda Industries Private Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Hercules Hoists Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Shekhar Holdings Private Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Rahul Securities Private Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Bachhraj Factories Private Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Bajaj Sevashram Private Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Bachhraj And Company Private Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Kamalnayan Investment & Trading
Private Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Madhur Securities Private Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Niraj Holdings Private Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Rupa Equities Private Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Sanraj Nayan Investments Private
Limited

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Bajaj Trading Company
(Partnership Firm)

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Kiran Bajaj (Trust)

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Niraj Bajaj (Trust)

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Deepa Trust

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Sanjali Trust

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021
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Name Address

Siddhant Trust Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Kriti Trust Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Rishab Trust Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Geetika Trust Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,

Mumbai 400 021

Aryaman Trust

Prabhat Building, 3rd floor, #18, B-Road, Churchgate,
Mumbai 400 020

Nirvaan Trust

Prabhat Building, 3rd floor, #18, B-Road, Churchgate,
Mumbai 400 020

Rajiv Trust

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Sanjiv Trust

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Anant Bajaj Trust

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Nirav Trust

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Sanjali Family Trust

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

Siddhant Family Trust

Bajaj Bhawan, 2nd Floor, 226 Nariman Point, Jamnalal Bajaj Marg,
Mumbai 400 021

* The name of Mr. Anant Bajaj has been excluded from the list of individuals belonging to the promoter group
consequent upon his demise on August 10, 2018.

Details of Directors

Name Designation

Address

Mr. Shekhar Bajaj Chairman & Managing
Director

Flat No. 211, Maker Tower A, Cuffe Parade, Collaba,
Mumbai 400 005

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Goenka | Independent Director

14/15 1] Palazzo, B.G. Kher Marg,
Mumbai 400 026

Mr. Madhur Bajaj Non-Executive Director

Bungalow No. 3, Bajaj Vihar Colony, Bajaj Auto Ltd.
Complex, Mumbai Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune 411 035

Mr. Ashok Jalan Independent Director

Hari Bhavan, 4th Floor, 64, Peddar Road,
Mumbai 400 026

Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Shahani Independent Director

Flat No.56, Hill Park, A.G.Bell Road, Malabar Hill,
Mumbai 400 006

Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh | Independent Director

A-1 Power Grid Residential Complex, Sector-43,
Gurgaon, Haryana 122 002

Mr. Anuj Poddar Executive Director

201 Martins Nest, 9 Central Avenue, Santacruz
(West), Mumbai 400 054

Mr. Siddharth Mehta Independent Director

9, Matruchhaya, 70 Marine Drive,
Mumbai 400 020

Mrs. Pooja Bajaj Non-Executive Director

Flat No 26, Hill Park, Building No 3A, A.G. Bell Marg,
Malabar Hill, Mumbai 400 006

Mr. Munish Khetrapal Independent Director

12660 Kane DR, Saratoga, CA USA

Corporate Approvals:

A. The Scheme was first placed before the Audit Committees’ of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company at their
respective meetings held on November 23, 2015. The Audit Committees’ of the Demerged Company and Resulting
Company considered the Valuation Report dated November 22, 2015 issued by S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Independent
Chartered Accountants and Fairness Opinion dated November 23, 2015 issued by SPA Capital Advisors Limited,

1"
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Merchant Banker, and thereafter, recommended the Scheme for approval to the Board of Directors of the respective
companies.

The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company at their respective Board Meetings held
on November 23, 2015 approved the proposed Scheme, after taking on record Valuation Report dated November 22,
2015 issued by S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, Independent Chartered Accountants and Fairness Opinion dated November
23, 2015 issued by SPA Capital Advisors Limited, Merchant Banker.

Names of the directors who voted in favor of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and who did not vote or
participate in such resolution at the said meetings:

(a) Demerged Company

Name of the Directors Designation Voted in Voted Abstained
Favour Against from voting

Mr. Shekhar Bajaj Chairman - - Yes

Late Mr. Anant Bajaj * Director - - Yes

Mr. R. Sundararajan Executive Director Yes - -

Mr. K. R. Bhattad Independent Director Yes - -

Mr. Sanjay Murarka Independent Director Yes - -

* Demised on August 10, 2018.

(b) Resulting Company

Name of the Directors Designation Voted in Voted Abstained
Favour Against from voting

Mr. Shekhar Bajaj Chairman & Managing Director - - Yes

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Goenka  Independent Director Yes - -

Mr. Madhur Bajaj* Non-Executive Director - - -

Mr. Ashok Jalan Independent Director Yes - -

Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Shahani Independent Director Yes - -

Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh  Independent Director Yes - -

Mr. Vishnubhai Haribhakti Independent Director Yes - -

Late Mr. Anant Bajaj** Joint Managing Director - - Yes

* Absent

** Demised on August 10, 2018.

Regulatory changes and consequential amendments to the Scheme

Since the Demerged Company was declared a sick industrial company within the meaning of section 3(1)(o) of the
SICA by the BIFR, the said Scheme was required to be filed only with BIFR for its approval. Accordingly, on April 22,
2016, the Demerged Company had filed the said Scheme with BIFR vide its letter dated April 18, 2016 under BIFR
Case N0.09/2002 (“Case”).

As the Scheme was not required to be filed with the High Court or Tribunal for its approval when it was approved by the
Board of Directors of both the companies and was required to be filed only with BIFR, the provisions of erstwhile Clause
24(f) of the Listing Agreement and/or regulation 37 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI circulars No. CIR/CFD/DIL/5/2013 dated February 4, 2013
and CIR/CFD/CMD/16/2015 dated November 30, 2015 (“SEBI Scheme Circulars”), in respect of filing of draft scheme
of arrangement with the stock exchange(s) / SEBI for obtaining Observation Letter or No-Objection Letter were not
applicable to the Resulting Company.

However, subsequently, the Central Government of India, vide Notification No. S.O. 3568 (E) dated November 25,
2016, brought the provisions of SICA Repeal Act into force with effect from December 1, 2016 and SICA was repealed.
Section 4(b) of SICA Repeal Act (as amended by section 252 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016) provides
that any proceeding of whatever nature, pending before BIFR shall stand abated. Accordingly, the Scheme filed by the
Demerged Company stood abated as on December 1, 2016. With the notification of SICA Repeal Act, the provisions
of regulation 37 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015 and SEBI Scheme Circulars have become applicable to the Resulting Company as the Scheme was
then required to be filed with Tribunal.



On March 10, 2017, SEBI vide its Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 (“Revised SEBI Scheme Circular”), amended
the regulatory framework for schemes of arrangements. The provisions of Para 8 of the Revised SEBI Scheme
Circular, inter-alia, states that in cases of the issuance of shares under schemes to a select group of shareholders
or shareholders of unlisted companies, the issuer shall follow the pricing provisions of Chapter VII of SEBI (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (“SEBI ICDR Regulations”). Further, as per Para 6 of the
said Revised SEBI Scheme Circular, the schemes filed with the stock exchange(s) / SEBI after the date of the Revised
SEBI Scheme Circular shall be governed by its provisions.

On September 29, 2017, the Resulting Company had filed the Scheme with the stock exchanges under regulation 37 of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 with a
request for waiver from the requirements of adhering to the pricing provisions of Chapter VIl of SEBI ICDR Regulations
considering the fact that the Scheme was approved by the Board of Directors of both the companies well before the
issue of the said Revised SEBI Scheme Circular. However, the stock exchanges requested the Resulting Company to
amend the Scheme and the Valuation Report to meet with the requirements of the Revised SEBI Scheme Circular.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company, in their respective meetings
held on November 9, 2017, considered and approved the revised valuation / share entitlement ratio for a demerger of
the manufacturing business of Demerged Company into the Resulting Company and made consequential amendment
to the Scheme.

Approval to the amended Scheme

The Scheme, suitably amended with revised share entitlement ratio for a demerger of the manufacturing business of
Demerged Company into the Resulting Company, was placed before the Audit Committees’ of the Demerged Company
and Resulting Company at their respective meetings held on November 9, 2017. The Audit Committees’ of the Demerged
Company and Resulting Company considered the revised Valuation Report dated October 31, 2017 issued by Messrs
Katre Barwe & Associates, Independent Chartered Accountants and revised Fairness Opinion dated November 1, 2017
issued by SPA Capital Advisors Limited, Merchant Banker, and thereafter recommended the amended Scheme for the
approval of the Board of Directors of the respective companies.

The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company at their respective Board Meetings
held on November 9, 2017 approved the amended Scheme, after taking on record the revised Valuation Report dated
October 31, 2017 issued by Messrs Katre Barwe & Associates, Independent Chartered Accountants and revised
Fairness Opinion dated November 1, 2017 issued by SPA Capital Advisors Limited, Merchant Banker. The same are
annexed to this Notice as Annexure B-1 and B-2 respectively.

Names of the directors who voted in favor of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and who did not vote or
participate in such resolution at the said meetings:

(a) Demerged Company

Name of the Directors Designation Voted in Voted Abstained
Favour Against from voting

Mr. Shekhar Bajaj Chairman - - Yes

Late Mr. Anant Bajaj * Director - - Yes

Mr. R. Sundararajan** Executive Director - - -

Mr. K. R. Bhattad Independent Director Yes - -

Mr. Sanjay Murarka Independent Director Yes - -

* Demised on August 10, 2018.

** Absent.

(b) Resulting Company

Name of the Directors Designation Voted in Voted Abstained
Favour Against from voting

Mr. Shekhar Bajaj Chairman & Managing Director - - Yes

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Goenka Independent Director Yes - -

Mr. Madhur Bajaj Non-Executive Director Yes - -
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Name of the Directors Designation Voted in Voted Abstained
Favour Against from voting

Mr. Ashok Jalan Independent Director Yes - -

Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Shahani Independent Director Yes - -

Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh Independent Director Yes - -

Mr. Anuj Poddar*** Independent Director Yes - -

Mr. Siddharth Mehta Independent Director Yes - -

Late Mr. Anant Bajaj * Joint Managing Director - - Yes

* Demised on August 10, 2018.
***Earlier Independent Director. Became Executive Director on November 1, 2018.

On November 20, 2017, the Resulting Company had filed the amended Scheme with the stock exchanges under
regulation 37 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015. On March 21, 2018, the stock exchanges conveyed their no-objection to the Resulting Company in
terms of regulation 94 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015 while advising the Resulting Company to publish the information pertaining to Dr. Rajendra Prasad
Singh, Independent Director of the Resulting Company, in the matter of G.E.T. Power Limited in the Amended Scheme
and to bring the same to the notice of shareholders and the Hon’ble NCLT. The copies of the aforesaid observation
letters are annexed to this Notice collectively as Annexure C.

To meet the requirements of the aforesaid observation letters, the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company and the
Demerged Company at their meetings held on March 29, 2018 and April 23, 2018, respectively, once again amended
the Scheme by inserting clause 18.

Names of the directors who voted in favor of the resolution, who voted against the resolution and who did not vote or
participate in such resolution at the said meetings:

(a) Demerged Company

Name of the Directors Designation Voted in Voted Abstained
Favour Against from voting

Mr. Shekhar Bajaj Chairman Yes - -

Late Mr. Anant Bajaj* Director Yes - -

Mr. R. Sundararajan** Executive Director - - -

Mr. K. R. Bhattad Independent Director Yes - -

Mr. Sanjay Murarka Independent Director Yes - -
* Demised on August 10, 2018.
** Absent.

(b) Resulting Company
Name of the Directors Designation Voted in Voted Abstained
Favour Against from voting

Mr. Shekhar Bajaj Chairman & Managing Director Yes - -

Mr. Harsh Vardhan Goenka Independent Director Yes - -

Mr. Madhur Bajaj Non-Executive Director Yes - -

Mr. Ashok Jalan Independent Director Yes - -

Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Shahani Independent Director Yes - -

Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh Independent Director - - Yes
Mr. Anuj Poddar** Independent Director Yes - -

Mr. Siddharth Mehta Independent Director Yes - -
Late Mr. Anant Bajaj * Joint Managing Director Yes - -

* Demised on August 10, 2018.

**Earlier Independent Director. Became Executive Director on November 1, 2018.




A copy of the Scheme (with the amendments duly incorporated) setting out in detail the terms and conditions of the
arrangement, has been approved by Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company at their
respective Board Meetings, is annexed to this Notice as Annexure A and forms part of this Statement.

Rationale of the Scheme:
‘Purpose and rationale’ as set out in Part B of the Preamble of the Scheme is as under:
“B. PURPOSE AND RATIONALE OF THIS SCHEME

(a) This scheme of arrangement (hereinafter referred to as the “Scheme”) is presented pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as may be applicable for the transfer by way of demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (as
defined hereinafter) of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company in the manner provided for in the Scheme
and reorganization of capital reserves, securities premium and share capital of the Demerged Company.

(b) The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are of the view that the transfer and
vesting of the Manufacturing Business (as defined hereinafter) of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company
will enable both the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company to achieve and fulfil their objectives more
efficiently and economically and the same is also in the interest of all stakeholders. The Resulting Company’s existing
management expertise and quality systems & controls will enhance the performance of the business of the Demerged
Undertaking.

(c) The Scheme is expected to contribute in furthering and fulfilling the objects of the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company and to facilitate the revival of the Manufacturing Business of the Demerged Company upon its consolidation
with the Resulting Company.

(d) As per the modified draft rehabilitation scheme (“MDRS”) filed with the BIFR (as defined hereinafter) for the revival of
the Demerged Company, the net worth of the Demerged Company was expected to turn positive by 31st March 2014.
The Demerged Company couldn’t achieve the aforesaid objective and accordingly the management of the Demerged
Company decided to make an attempt to achieve positive net worth by 31st March 2015. However, as on 31st March
2015, the Demerged Company could not achieve positive net worth and accordingly, it has been proposed to demerge
the Manufacturing Business of the Demerged Company with the Resulting Company with effect from the appointed
date of 31st March 2014.

(e) The Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company
in their respective meetings held on 23rd November, 2015. Further, to meet the requirements of Para 8 of the SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and
the Resulting Company, at their respective meetings held on 9th November 2017, have considered and approved the
revised Share Allotment Ratio and made other relevant / necessary / consequential amendments to the Scheme.

() This Scheme has been drawn up so that the Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking from the Demerged Company
into the Resulting Company is compliant with the conditions relating to “Demerger” as specified under Section 2(19AA)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“Income Tax Act’).”

Description of the Scheme:
A. The Scheme provides for:

a) demerger of the entire Demerged Undertaking (manufacturing business) of the Demerged Company, together with
all its assets and liabilities, into the Resulting Company on a going concern basis.

b) issue of 471420 fully paid-up equity shares of the Resulting Company of the face value of ¥ 2 each to the
shareholders of the Demerged Company, except to the Resulting Company itself, in consideration for the demerger
in compliance with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

B. The Scheme shall be deemed to be effective from the Appointed Date i.e. March 31, 2014 but shall be operative from
the Effective Date.

C. The equity shares to be so issued to the shareholders of the Demerged Company have been determined based on the
share entitlement ratio of 97 equity shares of the Resulting Company of the face value of ¥ 2 each for 1000 equity shares of
the Demerged Company of the face value of ¥ 25 each, as recommended by Messrs Katre Barwe & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, Mum bai, the independent valuation firm and the same will be issued on the Record Date.

D. Demerged Company will retain the Remaining Business which includes all the undertakings, businesses, activities
(including trading activities and support services to other undertakings), employees and operations other than that of
the manufacturing business.
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NOTE: THE FEATURES/DETAILS SET OUT ABOVE BEING ONLY THE SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME, THE EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS/CREDITORS OF THE COMPANY ARE REQUESTED TO READ THE ENTIRE TEXT OF THE SCHEME TO
GET THEMSELVES FULLY ACQUAINTED WITH THE PROVISIONS THEREOF. THE WORDS AND EXPRESSIONS USED
ABOVE AND NOT DEFINED BUT DEFINED IN THE SCHEME, SHALL HAVE THE SAME MEANINGS RESPECTIVELY
ASSIGNED TO THEM IN THE SCHEME.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

16

Observation Letters from BSE and NSE, both dated March 21, 2018, conveying no objection to the Scheme are enclosed
herewith collectively as Annexure C. Complaints Report dated December 18, 2017 and January 5, 2018 submitted by the
Company to BSE and NSE respectively are enclosed herewith collectively as Annexure D.

The audited financial results of the Demerged Company for the six months period ended September 30, 2018 are enclosed
as Annexure F-1.

The unaudited financial results of the Resulting Company for the six months period ended September 30, 2018 are enclosed
as Annexure F-2.

Pre and post-shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are enclosed as Annexure G.
Summary of Valuation Report including basis of valuation and Fairness opinions is enclosed herewith as Annexure H.

The applicable information of the Demerged Company in the format specified for the abridged prospectus as provided in
Part D of Schedule VIII of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2009 is enclosed herewith as Annexure I.

Amounts due to creditors as on November 30, 2018:

Demerged Company Resulting Company
Number Amount (% in Lakh) Number Amount (% in Lakh)
Secured Creditors 5 464.95 6 918.90
Unsecured Creditors 175 6,611.22 9842 193,640.33

As per section 2(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, “associate company”, in relation to another company, means a company in
which that other company has a significant influence, but which is not a subsidiary of the Company having such influence
and includes a joint venture company. For the purposes of this clause, “significant influence” means control of at least twenty
percent of total voting power, or control of or participation in business decisions under an agreement.

Since the Resulting Company is in a position to influence the operating and financial policies of the Demerged Company, the
Demerged Company is considered to be an Associate of the Resulting Company.

Effect of the Scheme on various parties:

A. Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and Directors

None of the Directors, the KMPs (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder) of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company and their respective relatives (as defined under the Companies Act,
2013 and rules framed thereunder) have any interest in the Scheme except to the extent of the equity shares held by
them in the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company and/or to the extent that the said Director(s) are common
director(s) on the Board of the said companies and/or to the extent that the KMPs are holding shares in said companies
as a nominee and/or to the extent that the said Director(s), KMPs and their respective relatives are the directors,
members of the companies that hold shares in the respective companies.

Effect of the Scheme on the KMPs pursuant to Demerger

The KMPs, if any, forming part of the Demerged Undertaking (manufacturing business) of the Demerged Company
shall become employees of the Resulting Company on the Scheme coming into effect.

Details of shares held by the present Directors and KMPs of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company,
either individually or jointly as a first holder or second holder or as a nominee and by their relatives, in the respective
companies are as under:



Demerged Company

Sr. Name of Director/KMP and relatives of director Designation Number of equity
No. and KMP shares held
1. Mr. Shekhar Bajaj Chairman 1
(jointly with Bachhraj & Company Private Limited)
2. Mr. Kunjbihari Bhattad Director Nil
3. Mr. Sanjay Murarka Director Nil
4. Mr. Subir Datta Whole-time Director Nil
5. Mr. Manish Pathak Chief Financial Officer Nil
6. Mr. Sachin Chaudhary Company Secretary Nil
7. Mrs. Kiran Bajaj Relative of Director 1170001*
8. Ms. Geetika Bajaj Relative of Director 1170000
9. Mr. Niraj Bajaj Relative of Director 1
(jointly with Bachhraj & Company Private Limited)
10. Late Mr. Anant Bajaj Relative of Director 1
(jointly with Bachhraj & Company Private Limited)

* Including 1 (one) equity share held jointly with Bachhraj & Company Private Limited.

Resulting Company

Sr. Name of Director/KMP and relatives of director Designation Number of equity
No. and KMP shares held
1. Mr. Shekhar Bajaj Chairman & Managing Director 2500735
2. Mr. Harsh Vardhan Goenka Independent Director Nil
3. Mr. Madhur Bajaj Non-Executive Director 815035
4. Mr. Ashok Jalan Independent Director Nil
5. Dr. (Mrs.) Indu Shahani Independent Director Nil
6. Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh Independent Director Nil
7. Mr. Anuj Poddar Executive Director Nil
8. Mr. Siddharth Mehta Independent Director Nil
9. Mrs. Pooja Bajaj Non-Executive Director 130000
10. Mr. Munish Khetrapal Independent Director Nil
11. Mr. Anant Purandare Chief Financial Officer 14096
12. | Mr. Mangesh Patil Company Secretary 3217
13. Mrs. Mridula Vishnukumar Poddar Relative of Director 10
14. | Mrs. Kiran Bajaj Relative of Director 5252819
15. Late Mr. Anant Bajaj Relative of Director 4981823
16 Ms. Geetika Bajaj Relative of Director 608346
17. | Mr. Niraj Bajaj Relative of Director 2193235
18. Mrs. Kumud Bajaj Relative of Director 190200
19. | Mrs. Neelima Bajaj Swamy Relative of Director 900000
20.  Mrs. Nimisha Jaipuria Relative of Director 558000
21. Mrs. Minal Bajaj Relative of Director 617200
22. Ms. Kriti Bajaj Relative of Director 90000
23.  Mr. Niravnayan Bajaj Relative of Director 251000

Promoter and Non-Promoter equity shareholders of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company and
the Transferor Company

In compliance with the provisions of section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, in their meetings held on January 2, 2019 have adopted a report,
inter-alia, explaining the effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoter and
non-promoter shareholders amongst others. Copy of the reports adopted by the respective Board of Directors of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are enclosed as Annexure E-1 to E-2.
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Preference Shareholders

Since the entire preference share capital of the Demerged Company has been singly held by the Resulting Company,
the same shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled on and from the Effective Date, which shall be regarded as
reduction of share capital of the Demerged Company, pursuant to section 66 and any other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Resulting Company does not have preference share capital.

Depositors

Neither the Demerged Company nor the Resulting Company has accepted any public deposits.
Creditors & Debenture-Holders

Upon this Scheme coming into effect, the creditors relating to the Demerged Undertaking, shall become the creditors
of the Resulting Company.

The proposed Scheme does not involve any compromise or arrangement with the creditors. The rights of the creditors
shall not be affected by the Scheme. There will be no reduction in their claims on account of the Scheme. The creditors
will be paid in the ordinary course of business as and when their dues are payable. There is no likelihood that the
creditors would be prejudiced in any manner as a result of the Scheme being sanctioned.

Neither the Demerged Company nor the Resulting Company has issued any debentures.
Employees

With effect from the Effective Date, the permanent employees of the Demerged Undertaking, in service on the Effective
Date shall be deemed to have become the employees of the Resulting Company with effect from the Effective Date
without any interruption or break in their service as a result of the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking to
the Resulting Company. The terms and conditions of their employment with the Resulting Company with effect from the
Effective Date shall not be less favourable than those applicable to them with reference to the Demerged Company on
the Effective Date.

The existing provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, trusts, retirement fund or benefits and any other Funds
or benefits created by the Demerged Company inter alia for the Employees (collectively referred to as the “Funds”) in
terms of this Scheme shall be continued for the benefit of such Employees on the same terms and conditions in the
Resulting Company. With effect from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company shall make the necessary contribution
for such Employees taken over. Upon the Scheme being effective, the Resulting Company shall, to the extent pertaining
to the Demerged Undertaking, stand substituted for the Demerged Company for all purposes whatsoever related to
the administration or operation of such Fund or in relation to the obligations to make a contribution to the said Funds in
accordance with the provisions of the Fund or according to the terms provided in the respective Fund deeds or other
documents or, in the alternative, create / establish / setup / provide the facility of one or more alternative trusts being
not less favourable than the existing Fund in the Demerged Company of which such Employees were members in the
Demerged Company. The Resulting Company undertakes and assumes all the duties and obligations and takes over
and assumes all the rights and powers of the Demerged Company upon the Scheme being effective, in relation to
aforesaid Funds of the Demerged Company. The services of the Employees of the Demerged Company will be treated
as having been continuous for the purposes of availing the benefits of the aforesaid funds or provisions of any Funds
for Employees.

The employees of the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company shall continue as employees of the Demerged
Company.

The proposed Scheme does not have any impact on the existing employees of the Resulting Company.

19. Capital Structure pre and post demerger
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The Pre-Scheme capital structure of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are detailed in clause 6 above.
The Post-Scheme capital structure is as follows:

Demerged Company: Upon the Scheme coming into effect, there will not be any change in the equity share capital of the
Demerged Company. However, since the entire preference share capital of the Demerged Company has been singly held
by the Resulting Company, the same shall stand cancelled, extinguished and annulled on and from the Effective Date,
which shall be regarded as reduction of equity share capital of the Demerged Company, pursuant to section 66 or any other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, as given below:



Particulars 3
Authorised Share Capital:

6400000 Equity Shares of ¥ 25 each 16,00,00,000
400000 9% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 25 each 1,00,00,000
3200000 0% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 25 each 8,00,00,000
Total 25,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

6000000 Equity Shares of ¥ 25 each (fully paid-up) 15,00,00,000
Total 15,00,00,000

Resulting Company: Upon the Scheme coming into effect and on issue of 471420 fully paid-up equity shares of the
Resulting Company of the face value of ¥ 2 each to the shareholders of the Demerged Company, except to the Resulting
Company itself, in consideration for the demerger in compliance with the provisions of section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax
Act, 1961, the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Resulting Company shall increase to ¥ 20,56,85,992
divided into 102842996 equity shares of ¥ 2 each, as given below:

Particulars 3
Authorised Share Capital:

200000000 Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each 40,00,00,000
Total 40,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

102842996 Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each (fully paid-up) 20,56,85,992
Total 20,56,85,992

The issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of the Resulting Company as on the date of this Notice is ¥ 20,47,43,152
divided into 102371576 equity shares of ¥ 2 each.

20. General

21.

The Scheme is not expected to have any adverse effects on the material interests of KMP, directors, promoters,
non-promoters shareholders, depositors, creditors, debenture-holders, debenture-trustee and employees of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, wherever relevant.

The rights and interest of secured creditors and unsecured creditors of either of the companies, if any, will not be
prejudicially affected by the Scheme, as no sacrifice or waiver, at all called from them, nor their rights are sought to be
modified in any manner and post the Scheme, the Resulting Company will be able to meet their liabilities.

The latest audited accounts for the year ended March 31, 2018 of the Resulting Company indicate that it is in a solvent
position and would be able to meet liabilities as they arise in the course of business. There is no likelihood that any
secured creditor or unsecured creditor of the Demerged/Resulting Company would lose or be prejudiced as a result of
the Scheme being passed, since no sacrifice or waiver is called for from them nor are their rights sought to be adversely
modified in any manner.

Hence, the Scheme will not cast any additional burden on the shareholders or the creditors nor will it adversely affect
the interest of any shareholders or creditors

As on the date of this Notice, no winding up proceedings are pending against the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Companies.

No investigation or proceedings are pending under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Companies.

Approvals/Sanctions/No-Objections from Regulatory or any Governmental Authorities

Unless otherwise decided (or waived) by the relevant Parties, the Scheme is conditional upon and subject to the following
conditions precedent:

obtaining no-objection/ observation letter from the Stock Exchanges in relation to the Scheme under regulation 37 of
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015;

approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of each class of shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors
of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company and such other classes of persons of the said Companies, if any, as
applicable or as may be required under the Companies Act, 2013 and as may be directed by the Tribunal;
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Vi.

the Parties, as the case may be, complying with other provisions of the SEBI Circular, including seeking approval of the
shareholders of the Resulting Company through e-voting, as applicable. The Scheme shall be acted upon only if the
votes cast by the public shareholders in favour of the proposal are more than the number of votes cast by the public
shareholders, of the Resulting Company, against it as required under the SEBI Circular. The term ‘public’ shall carry the
same meaning as defined under rule 2 of Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957;

the sanctions and orders of the Tribunals, under sections 230 to 232 of the Act for approving the Scheme, being
obtained by the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company;

certified/authenticated copies of the orders of the Tribunal, sanctioning the Scheme, being filed with the concerned RoC
having jurisdiction over the Parties by all the Parties; and

any other matters expressly agreed as conditions precedent to the effectiveness of the Scheme as amongst the Parties
in writing.

22. Inspection

The following documents will be open for inspection by the shareholders of the Resulting Company at its registered office at
45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001, between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on all working days (except Saturdays) upto
the date of the meeting:

V.

Copy of the Order passed by Hon’ble NCLT in Company Application 1027 of 2018, dated November 2, 2018 directing
the Resulting Company to, inter-alia, convene the meetings of its equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured
creditors;

Copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of all the companies;
Copy of the audited financial statement of the Demerged Company as on September 30, 2018;

Copies of the unaudited financial statement of the Resulting Company for the quarter and six months period ended on
September 30, 2018 along with its audited financial statement as on March 31, 2018;

Copy of the Statutory Auditors’ certificate dated July 5, 2017 to the effect that the accounting treatment, if any, proposed
in the Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act; and

Copy of the Scheme.

23. This statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the Act read
with rule 6 of the Rules. A copy of the Scheme, Explanatory Statement and Form of Proxy shall be furnished by the Resulting
Company to its secured creditors, free of charge, within one (1) working day (except Saturdays) on a requisition being so
made for the same by the secured creditors of the Resulting Company.

24. After the Scheme is approved by the equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors of the Resulting
Company, it will be subject to the approval/sanction by the Hon’ble NCLT.

Sd/-

Shekhar Bajaj

(DIN: 00089358)

Chairman appointed for the Meeting

Place: Mumbai
Date: January 2, 2019
Regd. Office: 45/47, VVeer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001.
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ANNEXURE A

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
BETWEEN
HIND LAMPS LIMITED
(“DEMERGED COMPANY?”)
AND
BAJAJ ELECTRICALS LIMITED
(“RESULTING COMPANY”’)
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS
PREAMBLE

A. BACKGROUND AND DESCRIPTION OF COMPANIES WHO ARE PARTIES TO THIS SCHEME

1)

Hind Lamps Limited is an existing public limited company, incorporated on 30th April 1951, under the provisions of the
Indian Companies Act, 1913 and deemed to exist within the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered
office at Shikohabad, Firozabad, Uttar Pradesh (hereinafter referred to as the “Demerged Company” or “HLL”).

The Demerged Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing of GLS bulbs, HID bulbs and aluminium
caps and was declared as a sick industrial company within the meaning of section 3(1)(o) of the Sick Industrial
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 (“SICA”) by the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (“BIFR”) in
year 2002. The equity shares of the Demerged Company are not listed on any stock exchange.

Bajaj Electricals Limited is an existing public limited company incorporated on 14th July 1938 under the provisions
of the Indian Companies Act, 1913 and deemed to exist within the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its
registered office at 45/47, VVeer Nariman Road, Mumbai-400 001, Maharashtra (hereinafter referred to as the “Resulting
Company” or as “BEL”).

The Resulting Company offers a diverse range of products and services including sales, distribution and marketing
of electrical appliances, manufacture of fans and high masts, poles and towers and products relating to industrial,
commercial, and domestic lighting, undertaking turnkey, commercial and rural lighting projects, design, manufacture,
erection and commissioning of high masts, poles and towers. The equity shares of the Resulting Company are listed
on BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”).

B. PURPOSE AND RATIONALE OF THIS SCHEME

(a)

This scheme of arrangement (hereinafter referred to as the “Scheme”) is presented pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as may be applicable for the transfer by way of demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (as
defined hereinafter) of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company in the manner provided for in the Scheme.

The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are of the view that the transfer
and vesting of the Manufacturing Business (as defined hereinafter) of the Demerged Company to the Resulting
Company will enable both the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company to achieve and fulfil their objectives
more efficiently and economically and the same is also in the interest of all stakeholders. The Resulting Company’s
existing management expertise and quality systems & controls will enhance the performance of the business of the
Demerged Undertaking.

The Scheme is expected to contribute in furthering and fulfilling the objects of the Demerged Company and the Resulting

Company and to facilitate the revival of the Manufacturing Business of the Demerged Company upon its consolidation
with the Resulting Company.
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(d) As per the modified draft rehabilitation scheme (“MDRS”) filed with the BIFR (as defined hereinafter) for the revival of
the Demerged Company, the net worth of the Demerged Company was expected to turn positive by 31st March 2014.
The Demerged Company couldn’t achieve the aforesaid objective and accordingly the management of the Demerged
Company decided to make an attempt to achieve positive net worth by 31st March 2015. However, as on 31st March
2015, the Demerged Company could not achieve positive net worth and accordingly, it has been proposed to demerge
the Manufacturing Business of the Demerged Company with the Resulting Company with effect from the appointed
date of 31st March 2014.

(e) The Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company
in their respective meetings held on 23rd November, 2015. Further, to meet the requirements of Para 8 of the SEBI
Circular No.CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10th March, 2017, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company in their respective meetings 9th November, 2017, respectively, have considered and approved the
revised Share Allotment Ratio and made other relevant/necessary/consequential amendments to the Scheme.

(f) This Scheme has been drawn up so that the Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking from the Demerged Company
into the Resulting Company is compliant with the conditions relating to “Demerger” as specified under Section 2(19AA)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“Income Tax Act”).

PARTS OF THIS SCHEME
This Scheme is divided into the following parts:

Part A: Definitions and Share Capital;

Part B: Demerger of Manufacturing Business of the Demerged Company and transfer and vesting thereof into the
Resulting Company including consequential or related matters integrally connected therewith; and

Part C: Other terms and conditions.

PART A
DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL
DEFINITIONS & INTERPRETATION
DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following expressions shall have the following
meaning:

a) “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and/or the Companies Act, 1956 (as the case may be and to the extent
applicable), the rules and regulations made thereunder and will include any statutory modifications, re-enactments and
/ or amendments thereof;

b) “Appointed Date” means date for all tax and other regulatory purposes i.e. 31st day of March 2014;
c) “Acquisition Date” means the date on which the NCLT approves the scheme of arrangement;

d) “BIFR” means the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction constituted under Section 4 of the Sick Industrial
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 and/or any other statutory authority constituted in this regard;

e) “Board of Directors” or “Board” shall mean the respective board of directors of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company and shall, unless repugnant to the context, include a committee of directors or any other person
authorized by the board of directors or such committee of directors;

f)  “Demerger” means the transfer by way of demerger of the Demerged Undertaking from the Demerged Company to
the Resulting Company;

g) “Demerged Company” or “Transferor Company” or “HLL” means Hind Lamps Limited, a company incorporated
under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 1913 and deemed to exist within the purview of the Companies Act,
2013, and having its Registered Office at Shikohabad, Firozabad, Uttar Pradesh;

h) “Demerged Undertaking” means the Demerged Company’s Manufacturing Business comprising of the GLS and
Aluminium Caps manufacturing unit of HLL located at Shikohabad, Dist. Firozabad, Uttar Pradesh and HID Lamps
manufacturing unit located at Parwanoo, Himachal Pradesh as a going concern, including the entire business of such
undertaking of the Demerged Company as on the Appointed Date, including in particular the following, but without in
any manner whatsoever limiting the scope thereof :



i)

ii)

vii)

viii)

X)

Xi)

The assets, wherever situated, whether moveable or immovable, real or personal, in possession or reversion,
corporeal or incorporeal, tangible or intangible, present or contingent and including land, buildings, residential or
commercial properties, offices, plant and machinery, warehouses, godowns, depots, vehicles, other fixed assets,
brands, trademarks, patents, copyrights, or any other right of a similar nature and other intellectual property rights,
domain names, URLs, investments, leases, leasehold and other tenancy rights, premises, hire purchase and
lease arrangements, rights under business arrangements / agreements / contracts, computers, office equipment,
furniture, telephones, telexes, facsimile connections, communication facilities, electrical and other installations,
current assets including sundry debtors, deposits, receivables, funds, cash, bank balances, accounts, claims, sales
tax, service tax and other taxes, duties, cess, levies etc. paid regularly or in advance, wherever required by law or
otherwise and all other rights, benefits of all agreements, subsidies, grants, taxes, tax credits, various exemptions/
incentives granted under different schemes of the Central/ State Governments including carried forward losses
and unabsorbed depreciation of all types under the Income Tax Act and other industrial and intellectual property,
import quotas, import entitlements, right to use and avail of telephones, telex, facsimile and other communication
facilities and all other interests, rights and power of every kind, nature and description, whatsoever, privileges,
liberties, advantages, benefits, consents, sanctions and approvals (including but not limited to credits in respect
of sales tax, value added tax, turnover tax, minimum alternate tax, service tax, etc), bills of exchange, letters of
intent and loans and advances whether or not appearing in the books of accounts pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking;

All records, files, papers, computer programs, software, manuals, data whether in physical or electronic form in
connection with or pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking;

All earnest moneys and/or security deposits, if any, paid or received by the Demerged Company in connection
with or pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking;

All debts, duties & liabilities, present & future and the specified contingent liabilities pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking;

The liabilities, which arise out of the activities or operations of the Demerged Undertaking;

Specific loans and borrowings raised, incurred and utilized solely for the activities or operations of the Demerged
Undertaking;

Liabilities other than those specified in sub-Clauses (iv), (v), and (vi) above, being the amounts of general or
multipurpose borrowings of the Demerged Company allocated to the Demerged Undertaking in the same
proportion in which the value of the assets transferred under this Scheme bear to the total value of the assets of
the Demerged Company immediately before giving effect to the Scheme;

Employees of the Demerged Company employed solely for the Manufacturing Business, as identified by the Board
of Directors of the Demerged Company, as on the Effective Date;

Without prejudice to the generality of the provisions of sub clauses (i), (ii), and (iii) above, the Demerged Undertaking
shall include all of the Demerged Undertaking’s rights and licenses, all assignments and grants thereof, benefits of
agreements, contracts and arrangements, powers, authorities, municipal permissions, registrations, engagements,
quotas, permits, allotments, approvals, export licenses, sanctions, remissions, special reservations, holidays,
incentives, concessions and other authorizations, benefits, entittements and incentives of any nature whatsoever
including sales tax remissions and custom duty exemption certificates, consents, privileges, liberties, advantages,
easements pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking and all the rights, title, interest, goodwill, benefits, entitiements
and advantages pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking and all other rights and claims of whatsoever nature,
howsoever described, and wheresoever situated which pertain to the Demerged Undertaking;

It is intended that the definition of Demerged Undertaking under this sub-clause would enable the transfer of all
properties (movable or immovable), assets, liabilities, rights, obligations, entitlements and benefits including under
Income Tax Act, service tax laws, sales-tax laws, etc. to which the Demerged Undertaking is entitled to in terms of
the various statutes / schemes, etc. and accumulated losses and allowance for unabsorbed depreciation, as per
the provisions of Section 72A(4) and other applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act and the Employees of the
Demerged Undertaking to the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme, without any further act or deed; and

Any question that may arise as to whether a specified asset or liability pertains or does not pertain to the Demerged

Undertaking or whether or not it arises out of the activities would be decided by mutual agreement between the
Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.
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“Effective Date” means the last of the dates on which the certified copies of the orders of the respective NCLTs are
filed with the Registrar of Companies at Mumbai and Kanpur. Any references in the Scheme to “upon the Scheme
becoming effective” or “effectiveness of the Scheme” shall be a reference to the “Effective Date”;

“Employees” mean employees of the Demerged Company employed/engaged for the Demerged Undertaking as may
be identified by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company, as on the Effective Date;

“Encumbrance” means any options, pledge, mortgage, lien, security, interest, claim, charge, pre-emptive right,
easement, limitation, attachment, restraint or any other encumbrance of any kind or nature whatsoever; and the term
“Encumbered” shall be construed accordingly;

“Funds” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 8.2;

“Income Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act, 1961, including any statutory modifications, re-enactments or
amendments thereof for the time being in force;

“Intellectual Property” means all intellectual properties including trademarks, service marks, logos, trade names,
domain names, database rights, design rights, rights in know-how, trade secrets, copyrights, confidential processes,
patents, inventions and any other intellectual property or proprietary rights (including rights in computer software)
pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, in each case whether registered or unregistered, including applications for the
registration or grant of any such rights and any and all forms of protection having equivalent or similar effect anywhere
in the world;

“NCLT” means National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, Maharashtra and National Company Law Tribunal,
Allahabad Bench, Uttar Pradesh constituted under the Companies Act, 2013;

“Record Date” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 11.2 of this Scheme;

“Registrar of Companies” or the “ROC” means the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur, Uttar Pradesh, and Registrar of
Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra, as applicable;

“Remaining Business” means all the undertakings, businesses, activities (including trading activities and support
services to other undertakings), employees and operations of the Demerged Company other than those comprised in
the Demerged Undertaking;

“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company” or “BEL” means Bajaj Electrical Limited, an existing public limited
company incorporated under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 1913 and deemed to exist within the purview of
the Companies Act, 2013 and having its registered office at 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400001, Maharashtra;

“Scheme of Arrangement” or “Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” means this Scheme of Arrangement in its
present form submitted to the NCLT or any statutory forum for sanction including / with any modifications / amendments
thereto / therein made under Clause 14 of the Scheme;

“SEBI” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India;

“Share Allotment Ratio” means the ratio in which Equity Shares of BEL are to be issued and allotted to the shareholders
of HLL under Clause 11.3 of the Scheme;

“SICA” means Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 or any statutory modification, re-enactment or
amendment thereof; and

(As per the Ministry of Finance circular dated 28.11.2016, the SICA Repeal Act, 2003 has been notified and the effective
date for implementation of its provisions is 01.12.2016. With the said amendment, the SICA shall be read with its
revised constitution later to the effective date of its implementation)

“Transferred Liabilities” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 4.10 of this Scheme.

All terms and words used but not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context or meaning
thereof, have the same meaning as ascribed to them under the Act, or failing which, respectively and in that order,
under the Income Tax Act, Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Depositories Act, 1996, Sick Industrial
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985, The SICA Repeal Act, 2003 and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
bye-laws, as the case may be or including any statutory amendments / modifications or re-enactments thereof from time
to time as the case may be and as the context may demand



INTERPRETATIONS

i) References to clauses, recitals and schedules, unless otherwise provided, are to clauses, recitals and schedules of this
Scheme.

i)  The headings herein shall not affect the construction of this Scheme.
iii)  The singular shall include the plural and vice versa; and references to one gender include all genders.

» o«

iv)  Any phrase introduced by the terms “including”, “include”, “in particular” or any similar expression shall be construed as
illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words preceding those terms.

v) References to person include any individual, firm, body corporate (whether incorporated), government, state or agency
of a state or any joint venture, association, partnership, works council or employee representatives body (whether or
not having separate legal personality).

vi) The Schedules to this Scheme form an integral and inseparable part of this Scheme.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT
The Scheme shall be deemed to be effective from the Appointed Date, but shall be operative from the Effective Date.

SHARE CAPITAL
Demerged Company: The share capital of the Demerged Company as on 31st March 2018 was as under :

Authorised Capital (Amount in )
64,00,000 Equity shares of % 25/- each 16,00,00,000/-
4,00,000 9% Cumulative redeemable preference shares of ¥ 25/- each 1,00,00,000/-
32,00,000 0% Cumulative redeemable preference shares of ¥ 25/- each 8,00,00,000/-
Total 25,00,00,000/-
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

60,00,000 Equity shares of ¥25/- each (fully paid-up) 15,00,00,000/-
Total 15,00,00,000/-

Resulting Company: The share capital of the Resulting Company as on 31st March 2018 was as under;

Authorised Capital (Amount in )
20,00,00,000 Equity shares of ¥ 2/- each 40,00,00,000/-
Total 40,00,00,000/-
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

10,20,37,501 Equity shares of ¥ 2/- each fully paid up 20,40,75,002/-
Total 20,40,75,002/-

Subsequent to 31st March 2018, the issued, subscribed and paid up share capital of BEL has increased to 10,23,71,576
equity shares of ¥ 2/- each on account of issue of equity shares on exercise of stock option by the option grantee employees.

PART B

DEMERGER OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING (MANUFACTURING BUSINESS) FROM THE DEMERGED COMPANY
AND TRANSFER AND VESTING THEREOF INTO THE RESULTING COMPANY INCLUDING CONSEQUENTIAL OR
RELATED MATTERS INTEGRALLY CONNECTED THEREWITH.

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF THE DEMERGED UNDERTAKING

Upon this Scheme coming into effect and with effect from the Appointed Date, the Demerged Undertaking (including all
the estate, assets, rights, claims, title, interest and authorities including accretions and appurtenances of the Demerged
Undertaking) of the Demerged Company shall, subject to the provisions of this Clause in relation to the mode of transfer and
vesting and all other applicable provisions of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the time being in force, without any
further act or deed, stand transferred to and be vested in or deemed to have been transferred to or vested in, as a going
concern, to the Resulting Company together with all the estates, assets, titles, interest and Employees therein, subject
however, to the provisions of this Scheme in relation to Encumbrances, if any, affecting the same or any part thereof. The
transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking to the Resulting Company shall be effected in the manner set out below.

4.1. Whole of the Demerged Undertaking shall without further act or deed, matter of thing, stand transferred to and vested
in the Resulting Company so as to vest in Resulting Company all the rights, title, interest pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking.
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4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

All immovable properties (including land together with the building and structures standing thereon) of the Demerged
Undertaking, whether freehold or leasehold and any documents of title, rights and easements in relation thereto shall
stand transferred to and be vested in the Resulting Company, subject to applicable law, without any act or deed required
by either the Demerged Company or the Resulting Company. Upon this scheme becoming effective and with effect
from the Appointed Date, the Resulting Company shall be entitled to exercise any and all rights and privileges and shall
be liable to pay ground rent, municipal taxes and fulfill all obligations, in relation to or applicable to such immovable
properties (if any). The mutation of title to the immovable properties in the name of the Resulting Company (if any) shall
be made and duly recorded by the appropriate authorities pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme in accordance with
the terms hereof without any requirement of a further act or deed on part of the Resulting Company.

All the moveable assets including cash in hand of the Demerged Undertaking capable of being passed by manual
delivery or by endorsement shall be physically handed over by manual delivery or endorsement and delivery, to the
end and intent that the ownership and property therein passes to the Resulting Company on such handing over (as
an integral part of the Demerged Undertaking) without requiring any deed or instrument of conveyance for transfer
of the same, subject to the provisions of this Scheme in relation to Encumbrances in favour of banks and/or financial
institutions. Such delivery and transfer shall be made on a date to be mutually agreed upon between the respective
Board of Directors of Resulting Company and the Demerged Company within 30 days from the Effective Date.

In respect of any assets belonging to the Demerged Undertaking, other than those referred to in sub-Clause 4.2 or 4.3
above, the same shall without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing be transferred to and vested in and / or
deemed to be demerged from the Demerged Company and transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company upon
the coming into effect of the Scheme and with effect from Appointed Date.

Further, for assets belonging to the Demerged Undertaking including sundry debtors, outstanding loans and advances,
if any, recoverable in cash or in kind or value to be received, bank balances and deposits, if any, the following modus
operandi for intimating to third parties shall, to the extent possible, be followed:

a) The Resulting Company shall give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper to each party, debtor or
depositee of the Demerged Company as the case may be, that pursuant to the Scheme coming into effect, the
said debt, loan, advances, deposit etc. be paid or made good or held on account of the Resulting Company as
the person entitled thereto, to the end and intent that the right of the Demerged Company to recover or realise the
same stands extinguished, and that such rights to recover or realize the same shall vest in the Resulting Company.

b) The Demerged Company may, if required, give notice in such form as it may deem fit and proper to each person,
debtor or depositee that pursuant to the Scheme coming into effect, the said person, debtor or depositee should
pay the debt, loan, advance or deposit, or make good the same or hold the same to the account of the Resulting
Company and that the right of the Resulting Company to recover or realise the same is in substitution of the right
of the Demerged Company.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all debts, liabilities, loans and obligations incurred, duties or obligations
of any kind, nature or description (including contingent liabilities) pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking (as on the
Appointed Date) shall, without any further act or deed, stand transferred to and vested in and be deemed to have been
transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company on the same terms and conditions as applicable to the Demerged
Company, and shall become the debts, liabilities, loans, duties and obligations of the Resulting Company which shall
meet, discharge and satisfy the same and further that it shall not be necessary to separately obtain the consent of any
third party or other person who is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of any of the liabilities which have
arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this Clause.

Where any of the debts, liabilities, loans and obligations incurred, and duties and obligations undertaken pertaining
to the Demerged Undertaking as on the Appointed Date deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company have been discharged by the Demerged Company after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date,
such discharge shall be deemed to have been for and on account of the Resulting Company.

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, all debts, liabilities, loans and obligations incurred, and duties and obligations
undertaken pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, shall,
subject to the terms of this Scheme, be deemed to have been raised, used or incurred for and on behalf of the Resulting
Company in which the Demerged Undertaking shall vest in terms of this Scheme and to the extent they are outstanding
on the Effective Date, shall also without any further act or deed, stand transferred to and vested in and be deemed to
have been transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company and shall become the debts, liabilities, loans, duties and
obligations of the Resulting Company which shall meet, discharge and satisfy the same.



4.9. The Demerger and the transfer and vesting of the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking to and in the
Resulting Company under this Scheme shall be subject to all Encumbrances, if any, affecting the same as hereinafter
provided.

4.10.1n so far as the existing Encumbrance in respect of the loans, borrowings, debts, liabilities (“Transferred Liabilities™)
is concerned, such Encumbrance shall, without any further act, instrument or deed be modified and shall be extended
to and shall operate only over the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking which have been Encumbered in
respect of the Transferred Liabilities as transferred to the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme. Provided that
if any of the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking which are being transferred to the Resulting Company
pursuant to this Scheme have not been Encumbered in respect of the Transferred Liabilities, such assets shall remain
unencumbered and the existing Encumbrance referred to above shall not be extended to and shall not operate over
such assets. The absence of any formal amendment which may be required by a lender or trustee or third party shall
not affect the operation of the above.

4.11.For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby clarified that in so far as the assets comprising the Remaining Business are
concerned, the Encumbrance over such assets relating to the Transferred Liabilities shall, as and from the Effective
Date without any further act, instrument or deed be released and discharged from the obligations and Encumbrance
relating to the same. The absence of any formal amendment which may be required by a lender or trustee or third party
shall not affect the operation of the above. Further, in so far as the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking are
concerned, the Encumbrance over such assets relating to any loans, borrowings or debentures or other debts or debt
securities which are not transferred pursuant to this Scheme (and which shall continue with the Demerged Company),
shall without any further act or deed be released from such Encumbrance and shall no longer be available as security
in relation to such liabilities.

4.12.Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Resulting Company alone shall be liable to perform all obligations in respect
of the Transferred Liabilities, which have been transferred to it in terms of this Scheme, and the Demerged Company
shall not have any obligations in respect of such Transferred Liabilities.

4.13.All Encumbrances or those, if any, created by the Demerged Company after the Appointed Date, in terms of this
Scheme, over the assets comprised in the Demerged Undertaking or any part thereof transferred to the Resulting
Company by virtue of this Scheme, shall, after the Effective Date, continue to relate and attach to such assets or any
part thereof to which they were related or attached prior to the Effective Date and are transferred to the Resulting
Company. Provided always that the Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any loan, deposit or facility
created by or available to the Demerged Company which shall vest in the Resulting Company by virtue of the Demerger
and the Resulting Company shall not be obliged to create any further or additional security therefor after the Demerger
has become effective or otherwise.

4.14.Without prejudice to the above and upon this Scheme coming into effect, the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company shall execute any instruments or documents and do all acts and deeds as may be required, including the filing
of necessary particulars and/or modification(s) of charge, with the relevant ROC and other authorities under the Act to
give formal effect to the above provisions, if required.

4.15.1t is expressly provided that, save as mentioned in this Scheme, no other term or condition of the Transferred Liabilities
transferred to the Resulting Company is modified by virtue of this Scheme except to the extent that such amendment is
required by necessary implication.

4.16.Subject to the necessary consents being obtained in accordance with the terms of this Scheme, the provisions of the
above sub-clauses shall operate, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any instrument, deed or writing
or the terms of sanction or issue of any security document, all of which instruments, deeds or writings shall stand
modified and/or superseded by the foregoing provisions.

4.17.With effect from the Appointed Date, all permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, tenancies and licenses relating to the
Intellectual Property, premises, brands, privileges, powers, facilities of every kind and description of whatsoever nature
in relation to the Demerged Undertaking and which are subsisting or having effect immediately before the Appointed
Date, shall be and remain in full force and effect in favour of the Resulting Company and may be enforced fully and
effectually as if, instead of the Demerged Company, the Resulting Company had been a beneficiary or obligee thereto.

4.18.With effect from the Appointed Date, any and all statutory licenses, permissions, approvals and/or consents held by
the Demerged Company pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, required to carry on its business and operations

27



28

shall stand vested in or deemed to be transferred to the Resulting Company without any further act or deed and
shall be appropriately mutated by the statutory authorities or any other person concerned therewith in favor of the
Resulting Company. The benefit of all statutory and regulatory permissions, licenses, environmental approvals and
consents including the statutory licenses, permissions or approvals or consents required to carry on the operations of
the Demerged Company shall vest in and become available to the Resulting Company pursuant to the Scheme coming
into effect.

4.19.The entitlement to various benefits under incentive schemes and policies in relation to the Demerged Undertaking

shall stand transferred to and be vested in and/or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Resulting
Company together with all benefits, entitlements and incentives of any nature whatsoever. Such entitlements shall
include (but shall not be limited to) income-tax, sales tax, value added tax, turnover tax, excise duty, service tax,
customs and other incentives in relation to the Demerged Undertaking to be claimed by the Resulting Company with
effect from the Appointed Date as if the Resulting Company was originally entitled to all such benefits under such
incentive schemes and/or policies, subject to continued compliance by the Resulting Company of all the terms and
conditions subject to which the benefits under such incentive schemes were made available to the Demerged Company.

4.20.Since each of the permissions, approvals, consents, sanctions, remissions (including remissions under income-tax,

4.21.

sales tax, value added tax, turnover tax, excise duty, service tax, customs), special reservations, sales tax remissions,
holidays, incentives, concessions and other authorizations relating to the Demerged Undertaking and any other benefit
not mentioned above, shall stand transferred under this Scheme to the Resulting Company, the Resulting Company
shall file the relevant intimations, if any, for the record of the statutory authorities who shall take them on file, pursuant
to the Scheme coming into effect.

It is clarified that all the taxes including withholding taxes and duties paid or payable by the Demerged Company in
relation to Demerged Undertaking, from the Appointed Date onwards including all or any refunds and claims shall,
for all purposes, be treated as the tax and/or duty liabilities or refunds and claims of the Resulting Company. It is also
clarified that withholding taxes deducted on behalf of Demerged Company in relation to Demerged Undertaking, from
the Appointed Date onwards, shall be treated as withholding taxes deducted on behalf of the Resulting Company and
the credit of the same shall be available to the Resulting Company. Accordingly, upon the Scheme becoming effective,
pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme, the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are expressly permitted
to file their respective income-tax, sales tax, value added tax, turnover tax, excise duty, service tax, customs and any
other return(s) (including revised returns) to claim advance tax, withholding tax, refunds / credits. Notwithstanding the
above tax compliances (including payment of taxes, maintenance of records, payments, returns, etc.) carried out by the
Demerged Company in respect of the Demerged Undertaking from the Appointed Date up to the Effective Date should
be considered as adequate compliance by the Resulting Company and the Resulting Company should be considered
to have met its obligations under the respective tax legislations.

4.22.Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, to the extent that there are intercompany transactions or balances including

purchase, sale, loans, advances, debtors/ receivables, creditors/ payables, deposits, balances or other obligations, if
any, in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, as on or from the Appointed Date, between the Demerged Company, and
the Resulting Company, the obligations in respect thereof shall come to an end.

4.23.Further, if any taxes are deducted at source by the Demerged Company or the Resulting Company as the case may

be on any payments or credit of any sum in the books (from Appointed Date to the Effective Date) and payable to the
Resulting Company or Demerged Company as the case may be, but on account of Clause 4.22 the said transaction
needs to be cancelled in the books of the Demerged Company or the Resulting Company, as the case may be,
such taxes shall be deemed to be taxes paid by the Demerged Company or the Resulting Company and shall, in all
proceedings, be dealt with accordingly.

4.24 Since this Demerger involves transfer of the Demerged Undertaking, the approval granted by the members of the

Demerged Company to the Scheme shall be deemed to include the approval under section 180(1)(a) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

CONTINUATION OF LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

5.1.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all legal proceedings, suits, claims, actions before any statutory or quasi-judicial
authority or tribunal of whatsoever nature, pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, by or against the Demerged
Company arising after the Appointed Date, shall be continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company only
until the Effective Date. On and from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company shall and may, if required, initiate any



5.2.

5.3.

legal proceedings in relation to the relevant matters pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking in the same manner and to
the same extent as would or might have been initiated by the Demerged Company. Except as otherwise provided herein,
the Demerged Company shall in no event be responsible or liable in relation to any such legal or other proceedings
against the Resulting Company. The Resulting Company shall be replaced/ added as party to such proceedings and
shall prosecute or defend such proceedings at its own cost, in co-operation with the Demerged Company.

The Resulting Company undertakes to have all legal proceedings initiated by or against the Demerged Company
referred to in sub-Clause 5.1 above transferred to its name as soon as is reasonably possible after the Effective Date
and to have the same continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company to the exclusion of the
Demerged Company. Both the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall make relevant applications in
that behalf.

If any suit, appeal or other proceedings relating to the Demerged Undertaking, of whatever nature by or against the
Demerged Company be pending, the same shall not abate or be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected
by reason of the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking or by anything contained in this Scheme but the proceedings
may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Resulting Company in the same manner and to the same
extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Demerged Company as if
this Scheme had not been made.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

Upon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date and subject to the provisions of this
Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, lease deeds, agreements entered into with various persons, arrangements and
other instruments of whatsoever nature in relation to the Demerged Undertaking and to which the Demerged Company
is a party or to the benefit of which the Demerged Company may be eligible, and which are subsisting or have effect
as on the Effective Date, shall continue in full force and effect on or against or in favour of, as the case may be, of
the Resulting Company and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Demerged Company, the
Resulting Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee thereto or thereunder, in all cases subject to the terms
and provisions of such contracts, deeds, bonds, lease deeds, agreements, arrangements or instruments.

Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and notwithstanding that the demerger and subsequent
vesting of the Demerged Undertaking from the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company occurs by virtue of
this Scheme itself, the Resulting Company may, at any time after the coming into effect of this Scheme in accordance
with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any law or otherwise, execute deeds, confirmation or other writings or
arrangements with any party to any contract or arrangement to which the Demerged Company is a party or any writings
as may be necessary to be executed merely in order to give formal effect to the above provisions. The Resulting
Company shall, under the provisions of this Scheme, be deemed to be authorized to execute any such writings on
behalf of the Demerged Company and to carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances referred to above on
the part of the Demerged Company to be carried out or performed.

Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, it is clarified that upon this Scheme becoming effective and with
effect from the Appointed Date, all consents, agreements, permissions, all statutory or regulatory licenses, certificates,
insurance covers, clearances, authorities, powers of attorney in relation to the Demerged Undertaking given by, issued
to or executed in favour of the Demerged Company shall stand transferred to the Resulting Company as if the same
were originally given by, issued to or executed in favour of the Resulting Company, and the Resulting Company shall
be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties thereunder, and the rights and benefits under the same shall
be available to the Resulting Company.

Even after this Scheme becomes effective, the Resulting Company shall, in its own rights, be entitled to realize all
monies and complete and enforce all pending contracts and transactions in respect of the Demerged Company, in so
far as may be necessary.

Without prejudice to the aforesaid, it is clarified that if any assets (estate, claims, rights, title, interest in or authorities
relating to such assets) or any contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements or other instruments
of whatsoever nature in relation to the Demerged Undertaking which the Demerged Company owns or to which the
Demerged Company is a party to, cannot be transferred to the Resulting Company for any reason whatsoever, the
Demerged Company shall hold such assets, contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes, arrangements or other
instruments of whatsoever nature in trust for the benefit of the Resulting Company, insofar as it is permissible so to do,
till such time as the transfer is effected.
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SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer and vesting of the properties, liabilities and obligations pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking pursuant to this
Scheme shall not affect any transactions or proceedings already completed by the Demerged Company on or before the
Appointed Date to the end and intent that, the Resulting Company accepts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by
and/or on behalf of the Demerged Company and pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking which shall vest in the Resulting
Company in terms of this Scheme as acts, deeds and things made, done and executed by and on behalf of the Resulting
Company.

EMPLOYEES

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

Permanent employees pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, in service on the Effective Date shall be deemed to
have become the employees of the Resulting Company with effect from the Effective Date without any interruption or
break in their service as a result of the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking to the Resulting Company.
The terms and conditions of their employment with the Resulting Company with effect from the Effective Date shall not
be less favourable than those applicable to them with reference to the Demerged Company on the Effective Date.

The existing provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, trusts, retirement fund or benefits and any other Funds
or benefits created by the Demerged Company inter alia for the Employees (collectively referred to as the “Funds”)
in terms of this Scheme shall be continued for the benefit of such Employees on the same terms and conditions in the
Resulting Company. With effect from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company shall make the necessary contribution
for such Employees taken over. Upon the Scheme being effective, the Resulting Company shall, to the extent pertaining
to the Demerged Undertaking, stand substituted for the Demerged Company for all purposes whatsoever related to
the administration or operation of such Fund or in relation to the obligations to make a contribution to the said Funds in
accordance with the provisions of the Fund or according to the terms provided in the respective Fund deeds or other
documents or, in the alternative, create / establish / setup / provide the facility of one or more alternative trusts being
not less favourable than the existing Fund in the Demerged Company of which such Employees were members in the
Demerged Company. The Resulting Company undertakes and assumes all the duties and obligations and takes over
and assumes all the rights and powers of the Demerged Company upon the Scheme being effective, in relation to
aforesaid Funds of the Demerged Company. The services of the Employees of the Demerged Company will be treated
as having been continuous for the purposes of availing the benefits of the aforesaid funds or provisions of any Funds
for Employees.

The Resulting Company agrees that for the purpose of payment of any compensation, gratuity and other terminal
benefits, the past services of such Employees with the Demerged Company shall also be taken into account, and
agrees and undertakes to pay the same as and when payable.

In so far as the existing benefits or funds created by the Demerged Company for the Employees of the Remaining
Business are concerned, the same shall continue and the Demerged Company shall continue to contribute to such
funds and trusts in accordance with the provisions thereof, and such funds and trusts, if any, shall be held inter alia for
the benefit of the Employees of the Remaining Business.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS FROM APPOINTED DATE TILL EFFECTIVE DATE

9.1.

With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

a) The Demerged Company shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on its business and activities pertaining
to the Demerged Undertaking and shall hold and deal with all assets and properties and stand possessed of all
rights, title, interest, authorities contracts, investments and strategic decisions of the Demerged Undertaking for
and on account of and in trust for the Resulting Company.

b) Any income or profit accruing or arising to the Demerged Company from the Demerged Undertaking and all
costs, charges, expenses, losses arising or incurred by the Demerged Company pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking for the period commencing from the Appointed Date shall for all purposes be treated as the income,
profits, costs, charges, expenses, losses and payments, as the case may be, of the Resulting Company including
accumulated losses and unabsorbed depreciation, if any.

c) The Demerged Company shall not utilize the profits or income, if any, in respect of the period from and after the
Appointed Date and up to the Effective Date for the purpose of declaring or paying any dividend or for any other
purpose without the prior written consent of the Resulting Company.



e)

f)

The Demerged Company shall not, without the prior written consent of the Resulting Company, Encumber or
otherwise deal with or dispose off the Demerged Undertaking or any part thereof except in the usual course of
business or pursuant to any pre-existing obligation undertaken by the Demerged Company prior to the Appointed
Date.

As between the Appointed Date and the Effective Date, the Demerged Company shall carry on the business
of the Demerged Undertaking with reasonable diligence and prudence, in the ordinary course of business, the
Demerged Company shall not, in any material respect, alter or expand the business, other than such alterations or
expansions as have already been commenced, except with the prior written consent of the Resulting Company and
shall not undertake any additional financial commitments of any nature whatsoever, borrow any amounts or incur
any other liability or expenditure, issue any additional guarantees, indemnities, letters of comfort or commitment
either for itself or on behalf of its subsidiaries or group companies or any third party, or sell, transfer, alienate,
charge, mortgage or encumber or deal with the Demerged Undertaking, save and except, in each case, in the
following circumstances:

(i) ifthe same is in the ordinary course of business as carried on by it as on the date of filing this Scheme with
the NCLT; or

(ii)  if the same is expressly permitted by this Scheme; or

(iii)  if the written consent of the Resulting Company has been obtained; or

(iv) if any pre-existing obligations are undertaken by the Demerged Company prior to the Appointed Date.

The Demerged Company shall not vary or alter, except in the ordinary course of its business and as may be
required for reorganization, the terms and conditions of employment of any of its employees.

The Resulting Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme by the NCLT, to apply to the
Central Government, BSE, NSE, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) and all other agencies,
regulators, departments and authorities concerned as are necessary under any law for such consents, approvals
and sanctions which the Resulting Company may require to own and carry on the business of the Demerged
Undertaking.

10. REMAINING BUSINESS

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

The Remaining Business and all the assets, liabilities and obligations pertaining thereto shall continue to belong
to and be vested in and be managed by the Demerged Company, subject only to the provisions of this Scheme
in relation to Encumbrances in favour of banks, financial institutions and trustees for the debenture-holders and
lenders.

All legal, taxation or other proceedings (including before any statutory or quasi-judicial authority or tribunal) by
or against the Demerged Company under any statute, whether pending on the Appointed Date or which may be
instituted at any time thereafter, and in each case relating to the Remaining Business (including those relating to
any property, right, power, liability, obligation or duties of the Demerged Company in respect of the Remaining
Business) shall be continued and enforced by or against the Demerged Company after the Effective Date. The
Resulting Company shall in no event be responsible or liable in relation to any such legal, taxation or other
proceedings against the Demerged Company, which relates to the Remaining Business.

If proceedings are taken against the Resulting Company in respect of the matters referred to in sub-Clause 10.2
above, it shall defend the same in accordance with the advice of the Demerged Company and at the cost of the
Demerged Company, and the latter shall reimburse and indemnify the Resulting Company against all liabilities and
obligations incurred by the Demerged Company in respect thereof.

With effect from the Appointed Date and up to and including the Effective Date:

a) the Demerged Company shall carry on and be deemed to have been carrying on all business and activities
relating to the Remaining Business for and on its own behalf;

b)  all profits accruing to the Demerged Company thereon or losses arising or incurred by it relating to the
Remaining Business shall, for all purposes, be treated as the profits or losses, as the case may be, of the
Demerged Company;

c) all assets and properties acquired by the Demerged Company in relation to the Remaining Business on and
after the Appointed Date shall belong to and continue to remain vested in the Demerged Company; and
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d) all assets acquired and all liabilities incurred by the Demerged Company after the Appointed Date but prior to
the Effective Date for operation of and in relation to the Demerged Undertaking shall also without any further
act, instrument or deed stand transferred to and vested in or to be deemed to have been transferred to or
vested in the Resulting Company upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, subject to the provisions of this
Scheme in relation to Encumbrances in favour of lenders, banks and/or financial institutions and trustees for
the debenture-holders.

CONSIDERATION

1.1.

11.2.

11.4.

11.5.

11.6.

11.8.

11.9.

11.10.

11.11.

Upon this Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of the transfer of and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking
in the Resulting Company in terms of the Scheme, the paid up share capital of the Resulting Company shall be
increased in the manner set out below.

Upon this Scheme coming into effect, the Board of BEL shall determine a record date, being a date on or subsequent
to the effective date (“Record Date”) for the allotment of fully paid up equity shares in accordance with sub-clause
11.3 below. On determination of the Record Date, HLL shall provide to BEL, the list of shareholders of HLL as on
the Record Date who are entitled to receive fully paid-up shares of BEL in terms of this Scheme in order to enable
BEL to issue and allot such fully paid-up shares of BEL in terms of this Scheme.

BEL shall, without any further application or deed, issue and allot to every shareholder of HLL, holding fully paid-up
equity shares in HLL and whose names appear in the register of shareholders of HLL, except BEL on the Record
Date, his/her/its heirs, executors, administrators or the successors in title as the case may be, in respect of every
1,000 equity shares of the face value of ¥ 25/- each fully paid-up held by the shareholders in HLL, 97 equity share
of the face value of ¥ 2/- each fully paid up of BEL (hereinafter called the “New Equity Shares”), credited as fully
paid-up.

No equity or preference shares of BEL shall be required to be issued in lieu of shares (both Equity and Preference)
of HLL held by BEL on the Record Date.

The New Equity Shares in BEL to be issued to the shareholders of HLL above shall be subject to the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of BEL and shall rank pari passu in all respects, including dividend, with the existing
equity shares of BEL.

The New Equity Shares of BEL will be issued in dematerialised form to the shareholders holding shares of HLL in
physical / dematerialized form. Shares allotted by BEL pursuant to the Scheme and issued in dematerialised form
shall be credited to the depository accounts of the shareholders and shall be subject to all requirements of the BSE
and NSE including listing and trading approvals.

In the event, the aforesaid allotment of new equity shares of BEL to the equity shareholders of HLL result in
fractional entitlements, the same shall be rounded off to the nearest whole number.

The issue and allotment of New Equity Shares in the Resulting Company to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company as provided in the Scheme as an integral part thereof, shall be deemed to have been carried out as if the
procedure laid down under Section 62 and any other applicable provisions of the Act, the SEBI (Issue of Capital
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and all other relevant Rules, Regulations and Laws for the time
being in force were duly complied with.

The New Equity Shares of BEL issued above shall, subject to applicable regulations, be listed and/or admitted to
trading on the BSE and NSE where the existing equity shares of the Resulting Company are listed and/or admitted
to trading.

In the event that BEL restructures its Equity Share Capital by way of share split / consolidation / issue of bonus
shares during the pendency of the Scheme, the Share Allotment Ratio shall be adjusted accordingly to take into
account the effect of any such corporate actions.

The Board of BEL shall be empowered to remove such difficulties as may arise in the course of implementation of
this Scheme and registration of the shareholders of HLL as shareholders in BEL.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

12.1.

Treatment in the accounting books of the Resulting Company

The Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together
with paragraph 3 of The Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 is applicable to the Resulting
Company from the year ended March 31, 2017 with transition date of 1st April, 2015.



12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

In the statutory books of account of the Resulting Company, the scheme will be accounted from effective date in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS) 103 — Business Combination.

Hence, on the Scheme becoming effective, the Resulting Company shall account for the Scheme and its effects
in its books of account as under :

(@) The Resulting Company shall, upon the Scheme coming into effect, record all the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking vested in it pursuant to this Scheme, at their
acquisition date fair values

Accordingly, if the fair values of identifiable assets acquired, separately from goodwill, are less than the
fair values of liabilities assumed and the consideration issued as per Clause 11 on account of demerger
of Demerged Undertaking, then as per Ind AS 103, the Resulting Company shall on the acquisition date
recognise the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at their acquisition date fair values and
accordingly determine the difference as goodwill.

Conversely, if the fair values of identifiable assets acquired are more than the fair values of liabilities assumed
and the consideration issued as per Clause 11 on account of demerger of Demerged Undertaking, then as
per Ind AS 103, the Resulting Company shall on the acquisition date determine the difference as capital
reserve in accordance to the treatment to be given for bargain purchase in business combination (para 34
of Ind AS 103 — Business Combinations) and shall credit the same in other comprehensive income on the
acquisition date and accumulate the same in equity.

(b) BEL shall credit its share capital account with the aggregate face value of shares issued by it to the
shareholders of HLL pursuant to Clause 11 of the Scheme.

Any matter not dealt with in this Scheme or hereinabove shall be dealt with in accordance with the applicable
Accounting Standards prescribed.

Accounting treatment in the books of the Demerged Company

(@) Upon the scheme coming into effect; the assets and the liabilities of the Demerged Company being
transferred to the Resulting Company shall be transferred at values appearing in the books of account
(ignoring revaluation) of the Demerged Company;

(b) The net difference between the liabilities and assets as transferred under sub-clause (a) above shall be
adjusted to capital reserve.

Any matter not dealt with in this Scheme or hereinabove shall be dealt with in accordance with the applicable
Accounting Standards prescribed.

The mere adoption of the accounting treatment in the books of Resulting Company as per Ind AS 103 pursuant to
the aforesaid Clause 12.1 of the Scheme shall not in any manner affect the vesting of the Demerged Undertaking
from the Appointed Date for tax and other regulatory purposes

Accounting Treatment for Tax Purposes

The Scheme set out herein in its present form duly approved by the NCLT shall be effective from the Appointed
Date, including for regulatory & tax purposes. Accordingly, the Resulting Company and the Demerged Company
shall, for tax and other regulatory purposes, account for the Scheme and all its effects with effect from the Appointed
Date viz. 31st March, 2014 as under:-

a.  The Resulting Company will record all assets, liabilities and reserves pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking
vested in it pursuant to this Scheme, at the respective book values thereof (ignoring revaluation) and in the
same form as appearing in the books of the Demerged Company at the Appointed Date.

b.  The Resulting Company shall credit its share capital account with the aggregate face value of shares issued
by it to the shareholders of HLL pursuant to Clause 11 of the Scheme.

c.  The difference between the net assets of the Demerged Undertaking under sub-clause (a) above and the
consideration issued as per Clause 11 on account of demerger shall be adjusted to the reserves in the books
of the Resulting Company.

d. The assets and liabilities of the Demerged Company being transferred to the Resulting Company shall be
transferred at values appearing in the books of account (ignoring revaluation) of the Demerged Company at
the Appointed Date;
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e. The net difference between the assets and liabilities as transferred under sub-clause (d) above shall be
adjusted to capital reserve in the books of the Demerged Company.

Aforementioned accounting treatment will be incorporated in the books and in the financials drawn up therefrom
for tax and regulatory purposes and related compliances. These shall be approved by the Board of Directors of
BEL and HLL and furnished to the authorities as may be applicable upon audit thereof from the tax auditors of both
the Companies. The drawn up financials will be furnished along with the returns/ filings to be made with the tax
authorities and will form the basis of tax assessments and tax compliances.

PART C
OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS

13. APPLICATION TO THE NCLT

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall separately make the requisite company applications/ petitions
under Section 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the Act to the respective NCLT for seeking the sanction of
this Scheme.

14.

MODIFICATIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

14.1.

14.2.

Both the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company (acting through their Board of Directors, Committee
thereof or any director or any other person authorised by the Board of Directors, Committee thereof to this effect)
may assent to any modifications or amendments to this Scheme, including pursuant to the orders of the NCLT and/
or any other authorities as they may deem fit to direct or impose or which may otherwise be considered necessary
or desirable for settling any question or doubt or difficulty that may arise for implementing and/or carrying out the
Scheme. Each of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company (acting through their Board of Directors,
Committee thereof or any director or any other person authorised by the Board of Directors, Committee thereof to
this effect) shall be authorised to take such steps and do all acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, desirable
or proper to give effect to this Scheme and to resolve any doubts, difficulties or questions whether by reason of
any orders of the NCLT or of any directions given by any other appropriate authorities or for any reason otherwise
arising out of this Scheme and/or any matters concerning or connected herewith.

If any part of this Scheme is held to be invalid, ruled illegal by any court of competent jurisdiction, or becomes
unenforceable for any reason, whatsoever, whether under present or future laws, then it is the intention of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company that such part shall be severable from the remainder of this
Scheme and this Scheme shall not be affected thereby, unless the deletion of such part shall cause this scheme to
become materially adverse to either the Demerged Company or the Resulting Company in which case they shall
attempt to bring about a modification in this Scheme, as will best preserve for the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company the benefits and obligations of this Scheme, including but not limited to such part.

15. CONDITIONALITY OF SCHEME
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15.1.

This Scheme shall be conditional upon the following:

a) Obtaining observation letter or no-objection letter from the Stock Exchanges by the Resulting Company
in respect of the Scheme, pursuant to Regulations 11, 37 and 94 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with relevant SEBI Circulars, subject to modification, if
any, in accordance with any subsequent circulars and amendment that may be issued by SEBI from time
to time;

b)  Approval and agreement by the public shareholders of the Resulting Company through resolution passed
through postal ballot and e-voting (after disclosure of all material facts in the explanatory statement sent
to the shareholders in relation to such resolution), and the votes cast by public shareholders in favour
of the proposal are more than the number of votes cast by public shareholders against it in accordance
with the SEBI Circular No.CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10th March 2017, subject to modification, if any, in
accordance with any subsequent circulars and amendment that may be issued by SEBI from time to time.
For the purpose of this clause, the term 'public’ shall carry the same meaning as defined under Rule 2 of
Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957;

c) The Scheme being approved by the requisite majorities in number and value of such classes of persons
including the respective members and/or creditors of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company, as
prescribed under the Act;



16.

17.

18.

d) The Scheme being approved by the NCLT whether with any modifications or amendments as the NCLT may
deem fit or otherwise; and

e) The certified copies of the Orders of the NCLT being filed with the Registrar of Companies.

REVOCATION AND SEVERABILITY

16.1. In the event of any of the sanctions and approvals referred to in this Scheme not being obtained and/or this
Scheme not being sanctioned by the NCLT or such other appropriate authority and/or order or orders not being
passed as aforesaid, or for any other reason, this Scheme cannot be implemented, then the Board of Directors
of BEL and HLL shall mutually waive/incorporate such conditions as they consider appropriate to give effect, as
far as possible, to this Scheme and failing such mutual agreement, the Scheme shall become null and void, and
each company herein shall bear its respective cost, charges and expenses in connection with this Scheme unless
otherwise mutually agreed.

16.2. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Scheme, if any provision of this Scheme is found to
be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, the same shall not, subject to the decision of HLL and BEL, affect the
validity or implementation of the other provisions of this Scheme.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

Subject to clause 16 above, all costs, charges and expenses, in relation to or in connection with negotiations leading up to
this Scheme and of carrying out and implementing the terms and provisions of this Scheme shall be borne and paid by the
Resulting Company.

ACTION TAKEN BY SEBI/ RBI

As required under SEBI Circular No.CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, a copy of the Scheme was filed with the
Stock Exchanges / SEBI for their No-objection for filing the Scheme with NCLT for its approval. In connection therewith SEBI
observed that the name of Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh, an independent director on the Board of the Resulting Company, is
appearing in the Reserve Bank of India’s (RBI) wilful defaulters list being a director of defaulting company named G.E.T.
Power Limited. The Resulting Company furnished it's reply via email dated March 12, 2018 to the queries raised by Stock
Exchanges/SEBI. Based on the explanation and documents provided by the Resulting Company, the Stock Exchanges have
issued the Observation letters dated March 21, 2018 inter alia advising the Resulting Company to disclose in the Scheme the
information about the directorship of Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh in G.E.T. Power Limited and to bring the same to the notice
of shareholders and Hon’ble NCLT.

Accordingly, the relevant information in respect of the directorship of Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh in G.E.T. Power Limited is
provided hereinbelow:

. Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh (DIN 00004812), was appointed as an Additional Independent Director in G.E.T. Power
Limited on February 25, 2014.

. On August 12, 2014, he resigned from the directorship of G.E.T. Power Limited and forwarded a copy of his resignation
to the Registrar in Form No. DIR 11 pursuant to the proviso to Section 168(1) of the Act and Rule 16 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014.

. However, from the search carried online on the website of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA): www.mca.gov.in, it
appears that G.E.T. Power Limited has not yet filed required Form No. DIR 12 to intimate the details of the resignation
of Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh to the Registrar and therefore his resignation status has not been updated in the signatory
details of the said company

. Since, Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh has filed required Form No.DIR 11 with the Registrar, as mentioned above, his
directorship / signatory status in the master details of the said company is showing as ended on August 12, 2014.

. Further, the present status of the directorship of Dr. Rajendra Prasad Singh in the Director Master Data on MCA website
does not reflect the name of G.E.T. Power Limited.
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ANNEXURE B-1

Katre Barwe & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Date : 3 1 BCT ZU”

Valuation Report fram an Independent Chartered Accountant for recommendation of fair
entitlement ratie of equity shares of Bajaj Electricals Limited to be issued to the sharcholders of
Hind Lamps Limited for the proposcd demerger of manufacturing buginess of Hind Lamps
Limited into Bajaj Electricals Limited

To

The Beard of Directors,
Baya) Electncals Limited
45/47_ Weer Nariman Road,
Mumbar400 001

1. Thus report 15 s5ued in accordance with the terms of our service scope letter dated October 17 2017
with Baja) Electricals Limited {"the Company”, "BEL").

2. Wa have been requested by the Company to issus a valuation repart for recommendalicn of fair
entitlement ratio of equity shares of BEL (o be issued to the shareholders of Hind Lamps Limded
{ HLL} {other than BEL), in comphiance with pricing provisions of Chapler Vil of Secunties and
Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regutations, 2009
thereinatter referred to as "SEBI (ICOR) Regulations, 20097), for the proposed demerger of
munufacturing busineee of HLL into BEL {'Proposed Demerger’)

3. Inthe SEEI (Issue of Capial and Disclosure Requirements) {tAmendment) Regulations 2017,
nofified vide SEBI Notification Na. SEBUVLADINROIGN/2018-17/020 dated February 15, 2017,
Proviso o Clause TO[1)(6) of SEBI {ICDR) Regulations, 2009 was inserted 1o provide that the
prcing provisions of Chapter VIl of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 shall apply to the issuance of
shones pursuant o schemes, in case shares are allolled only lo a seledt group of sharehalders or
shareholders of unlisted companies.

4. In terms of newly inserted Provise 1o Clauge TO(1)(b} read with Clause 78 of Chapler VIl of the
Securities and Exchangye Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosura Requirements) Regulations,
2009 (as amended] ['the ICDR regulations’), if the equity shares of the issuer have been listed an a
recognised stock exchange for a period of twenty six weeks o mare as on the relevant date. the
equily shares shall be allotled al a price not less than higher of the fallowing

ia)  The average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighled average price of the relared
equily shares quoted on tne recognited stock exchange dunng 1ne bwenly si weeks precading
the relevant dale; or

it} The average of tha weekly high and low of the valume weighted average prices of the relaled
'E'-‘li:il‘f 1hdlms quated 6n a recognised stock exchange during the two weeks preceding Lhe
relevant date.

5. With reference (o SEBI Circular Mo, CFDIDIL3ICIRIZ017/21 dated March 10, 2017 read with SEBI
Circular No. CFOVDILCIR/Z017/26 dated March 23, 2017, the ‘relevant date’ for the purpase of
compuling pricing shall be the date of Board Meating in which the scheme s approved

6. This valuation report is required for submission to the Securities and Exchange Board of India.
Matiznal Stock Exchange. Bombay Stock Exchange and National Company Law Trbunal or any
other statutory body to which the reperl is required to be submitted to consummale the Proposed
Demearger.

T We have relied upan the valuation report issued by S, R. Batliboi & Co. LLP dated Movember 22
2015 a5 annexed 1o this valuation report as Annexure 1. for the valuation of manufacturing business
of HLL. 1o arrive at tha recammendation of fair entilement ratio of equity shares of BEL 1o be issued
to the sharehalders of HLL (other than BEL) for the proposed demerger of manufacturing businoss
ol HLL info BEL

Regd Office: 15, Unnati, Shahaji Raje Marg, Vile Parle (East), Mumbai - 400057,

Branch Office: Gala MNo. 7, Shri Tirupati Balaji CHS, Bldg. Na. 2, Koldongari, Sahar Road, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 0068,
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fi. We have issued the valuation report recommending the fair entiltement ratio of equity shares of
AEL fo be issuad to the shareholders of HLL (other then BEL) for the proposed demerger of
manufacturing business of HLL into BEL, had the pricing provigions of Chapter VI of SEBI (lssue of
Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulalions, 2008 been applicable to issuance of shares
under schemes in case of ellotment of shares only (o @ select group of shareholders or
gharaholdars of unlisted companies pursuant to such schemes ot the Rebevant Dale.

f. Wih ragard to the amounis mentioned in this valuation reporl, we have perlormed the foliowing
procedures

a} Downloaded the data of the volume weighted average price ol equily shares of the Company
from olficial websile of the NSE for the period fram May 26, 2015 to Movamber 22, 2015 and
srmived at the weekly hagh and law of the volume weighled average price as mentioned in the
valuslion reporl.

b} Used the volume weighted average price calculated during the twenty six weeks precading the
relevant dete in plece of the two weeks volume weaighled avarage prica preceding the ralavant
deie a3 considered in the veluabion report a3 per Annexung 1, being higher of the two #, to arfive
at fair entittement ratio of equity shares of BEL to be issued (o the sharehobters of HLL (olher
ihan BEL) for the proposed demerger of manufacturing business of HLL into BEL.

10 We performed the above-mentioned proceduras, in accordance with the Guidance MNote on Repons
or Certificates for Speciel Purposes issued by the Instilule of Chartefed Accountants of India, The
Guidance Mote requires that we comply with the ethical reguirements of the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

11 We have complied with the relevant epplicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Coantrol (SQG)
1, Quality Control for Firms thal Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and
Other Assurance and Relaled Services Engagements.

Conchuskon:

12 Basad on the procadures performed by us ebove end ecoording 1o the infarmation and explanations
given to us and based on the management representalions and valuation of manufaciuring business
of HLL as par Annexure 1, the fair enfilement ratio of equity shares of BEL o be issued to the
eharaholdars of HLL (othar than BEL) for the proposed demerger of manufacturing busingss of HLL
into BEL is as follows :
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Share Entitlerment Retio in compliance with pricing provisions of Chapter VIl of SEBI (ICDR} Regulations, 2009

Particulars Bajaj Electricals Limited Manufacturing Business of Hind
{"BEL") Lamps Ltd ["HLL"}
Valuation appraach Value per Walght (%) Value per Waeight (%)
share share
NAV Method Approach [ Asset M.A - 0.00 30.00
Approach
DCF Method Approach /[ income N.A. 31.70 E0.00
Approach
market Approach / Market Approach 260.50* N 100.00 M.A. -
Relathve value per share 260.90 25.40
Shara entitlerment ratio (rounded off) 0.087

* Refer Annexure 2 for statement determining récognised stock exchange whera the equity shares of 8L are
listed ond in which the highest troding valume in respect of the equity shares of the BEL (issuer) has been

recorded during the preceding twenly sis weeks prior to the relevant date.

# Refer Anngxure 3 for computation of price af BEL shares under Regulation 76{1) ef SEBI {ICOR) Regulations,

2003

Conclusion © The foir eatitiement ratio of equity shares for the proposed demerger of the monufacturing
business of HLL into BEL, should be o ratio of 97 equity shares of BEL of Rs 2 each fully paid up for every
1,000 vquity shares of HLL of Rs 25 each fully paid up

Resirichon on Use

13.The valuation repart has besn Issusd an requast of the Company, salely for the purpose sel forth in
the point 6 of this valuation report. It should nat be used by any other person or for gny other purpose.
Accordingly, we do nol accept or assuma any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or fo
any olhe person to whom this cerificate is shown ar inte whoea hands it may come witheut our prier
consent in writing. We have no responsiblity to update this valuation report for evenis and
circumstances occurming after the date of this valuation repart.

For Katre Barae & Associales
Charlered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 1376900/

ki

Abhishek Kalre
Partner

Membership Number: 132342
Place of Signature; Mumbai

3 1 0CT 2017

Date,




Annexure-1

S.R. Baruisoir& Co. LLP A aea st Marg
Chartered Accountants mﬂ:{:ﬂi‘vl:ruﬁ::lm India

Tel :+91 22 6192 0000
Fam ;+91 22 61592 1000

22 November 2015
To,

The Board of Directors
Bajaj Electricals Limited
45-47, Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai - 400001

The Board of Directors
Hind Lamps Limited
Shikohabad,

Firozabad,

Uttar Pradesh — 283141

Sub: Recommendation of fair entitlement ratio of equity shares of Bajaj Electricals
Limited to be issued to the shareholders of Hind Lamps Limited for the proposed
demerger of manufacturing business of Hind Lamps Limited (“HLL") into Bajaj
Electricals Limited (“BEL™

Dear SirsMadams,

We refer (o the engagement letter dated 12 October 2015 and addendum letter dated
9 Movember 2015 with S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP (hercinafier referred 10 as “we™ or
“SREC™ or “us™) wherein Bajaj Electricals Limited (“BEL™) and Hind Lamps Limited
(“HLL"} have requested us to recommend a fair entitlement ratio as at 20 November
2015 (“Valuation Date™), based on the balance sheet as at 30 September 2015, of equity
shares of BEL to be issued to the shareholders of HLL for the proposed demerger of the
manufacturing business of HLL into BEL (*Fair Entitlement Ratio™).

5, R Bl ool B Co LLP @ |Lfiitis L sakiy Parinassnas wim LUP igemkiy ho. AlB-4294
WA Ofate T Camar Sarel Back T dnd Fioar MoialerT00 01
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S.R. Baruisoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of fair entitlement ratio of equity shares of BEL to be issued to the
sharcholders of HLL for the proposed demerger of manufacturing business of HLL into
BEL

SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

Bajaj Electricals Limited was incorporated in India on 14 July 1938. The business of BEL
is bifurcated into two major segments — the Engineering procurement and construction
segment and the Consumer Durables and Lighting Segment. BEL is engaged in the
business of sales, distribution and marketing of consumer appliances, fans, lighting &
luminaries, high masts, poles and towers and products relating to industrial, commercial,
and domestic lighting. BEL also undertakes turnkey, commercial and rural lighting
projects; designs, manufactures erects and commissions high masts, poles and towers.
BEL's registered office is at 45/47, Veer Nariman road, Fort, Mumbai — 400 001,
Maharashtra, India. Its equity shares are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (“BSE™),
Mational Stock Exchange (“NSE") and Delhi Stock Exchange.

Hind Lamps Limited was founded on 30 April 1951. Its registered office is at
Shikohabad, Firozabad, Uttar Pradesh India. HLL is engaged in manufacturing of glass
bulbs, high intensity discharge (HID) bulbs and aluminum caps. Its manufacturing unit is
located at Shikohabad, Uttar Pradesh and Parwanoo, Himachal Pradesh. The
manufacturing activity of HLL is hereinafter referred to as ‘the Undertaking’. HLL also
has a trading unit which is engaged in the business of selling these units to the end
consumer., HLL has been declared as a sick industrial company within the meaning of
section 3(1)o) of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 ("SICA™)
by the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (“BIFR™).

BEL and Undertaking of HLL are hereinafler collectively referred to as *Valuation
Subjects”.

BEL and HLL are hereinafter collectively referred to as “Companies™.

We understand that Managements of the Companies (*Management™) are evaluating a
demerger of the Undertaking into BEL on a going concemn basis under a Scheme of
Arrangement under the provisions of Section 18 of the SICA (hereinafter referred to as
“the Demerger Scheme™ or “Proposed Demerger™). We understand that as consideration,
HLL shareholders (except BEL) would be issued equity shares of BEL, in proportion to
their shareholding in HLL, for demerging the Undertaking into BEL. The Fair
Entitlement Ratio would be determined based on the value of each equity share of BEL
and the equity value of the Undertaking per equity share of HLL.




S.R. BatLigoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of fair entitlement ratio of equity shares of BEL to be issued 1o the
shareholders of HLL for the proposed demerger of manufacturing business of HLL into
BEL

For the aforesaid purpose, BEL and HLL have appointed us to recommend a Fair
Entitlement Ratio for distribution of BEL shares to the shareholders of HLL.

The scope of our services is to conduct relative (and not absolute) valuation of equity-
shares of BEL and the Undertaking of HLL in order 1o recommend a Fair Entitlement
Ratio for the Proposed Demerger.

We have considered financial information of BEL and the Undertaking of HLL upto 30
September 2015 in our valuation and made adjustments for facts made known to us till
the date of our report. The Management has informed us that they do not expect any
events which are unusual or are not in normal course of business till the demerger is
effective. The Management has further informed us that:

{z) there would not be any substantial capital variation in either of the Companies till the
demerger becomes effective without approval of the shareholders other than on
account of existing ESOP Schemes in BEL.

{(b) neither Companies would declare any special dividend till the date the shares of BEL
are issued under the Demerger Scheme.

We have relied on the above while arriving at the Fair Entitlement Ratio for the Proposed
Demerger.

This report is our deliverable in respect of our recommendation of Fair Entitlement Ratio
as at 20 November 2015 for the Proposed Demerger of the Undertaking of HLL into
BEL.

This report is subject to the scope limitations detailed hereinafter. As such the report is to
be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant documents referred to
herein.




S.R. BatuiBoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of fair entitlement ratio of equity shares of BEL to be issued to the
shareholders of HLL for the proposed demerger of manufacturing business of HLL into
BEL

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

In connection with this exercise, we have received the following information from the
respective Management and/or gathered from public domain:

Annual reports of BEL for FY 13, FY'14 and FY15
Unaudited financials of BEL for half year ended 30 September 2014 and 30
September 2015

s Audited financials of HLL for FY 13, FY14 and FY15 and management certified
provisional financials of HLL for half year ended 30 September 2015

s HLL Management certified carved-out financials of the Undertaking for FY 13, FY 14
and FY15 and provisional financials for half year ended 30 September 2015

s Projected Anancials of BEL from | Getober 2015 1o 31 March 2021

e Projected profit and loss account till Earning Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and
Amortization (“EBITDA"), working ecapital and capital expenditure of the
Undertaking from | October 2015 to 31 March 2021

s Details of ESOPs outstanding as on 20 November 2015 of BEL

During the discussions with the Management of both Companies, we have also obtained

explanations and information considered reasonably necessary for our exercise. The

Companies have been provided with the opportunity to review the draft report (excluding

the recommended exchange ratio) as part of our standard practice to make sure those

factual inaccuracies / omissions are avoided in our final report.

SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS
AND DISCLAIMERS

Provision of valuation opinions and consideration of the issues described herein are areas
of our regular valuation practice. The services do not represent accounting, assurance,
accounting / tax due diligence, consulting or tax related services that may otherwise be
provided by us or our affiliates.

This report, its contents and the results herein are specific to (i) the purpose of valuation
agreed as per the terms of our engagement; (i) the date of this report (iii) are based on the
unaudited balance sheets as at 30 September 2015 of BEL and the Undertaking,

A valuation of this nature is necessarily based on the prevailing stock markert, financial,
economic and other condition in general and industry trends in particular as in effect on,
and the information made available to us as of, the date hereof. Events occurring after
this date may affect this report and the assumptions used in preparing it, and we do not
assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this report.




SR Barusor& Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Recommendation of fair entitlement ratio of equity shares of BEL to be issued to the
shareholders of HLL for the proposed demerger of manufacturing business of HLL into
BEL

The Management has represented that the business activities of BEL and HLL have been
carried out in the normal and ordinary course between 30 September 2015 and the report
date and that no material adverse change has oceurred in their respective operations and
financial position between 30 September 2015 and the report date.

The recommendation(s) rendered in this report only represent our recommendation(s)
based upon information furnished by the Companies (or its representatives) and other
sources and the said recommendation(s) shall be considered to be in the nature of non-
binding advice, (our recommendation will however not be used for advising anybody 1o
take buy or sell decision, for which specific opinion needs to be taken from expert
advisors).

In the course of the valuation, we were provided with both written and verbal
information, including market, technical, financial and operating data.

This report was prepared for the purpose of recommendation of Fair Entitlement Ratio as
at 30 September 2015 for the proposed demerger of the Undentaking into BEL for the
consideration of the Boards of BEL and HLL only. Its suitability and applicability for any
other use has not been checked by us. Neither the valuation report nor its contents may be
disclosed to any third party or referred to or quoted in any registration statement,
prospectus, offering memorandum, annual report, any public communication, loan
agreement or other agreement or document given to third parties without our prior written
consent except to the extent as required by the applicable law to consummate the
Proposed Demerger. We retain the right to deny permission for the same.

We have been given to understand by the Management that it has made sure that no
relevant and material factors have been omitted or concealed or given inaccurately by
people assigned to provide information and clarifications to us for this exercise and that it
has checked out relevance or materiality of any specific information to the present
exereise with us in case of any doubt. We have assumed that the information provided to
us presents a fair image of BEL / the Undertaking and the assets being valued al the
Valuation Date.




SR Barusoi & Co. LLP

Chartared Accountantis

Recommendation of fair entitlement ratio of equity shares of BEL to be issued to the
shareholders of HLL for the proposed demerger of manufacturing business of HLL into
BEL

The report assumes that the Companies comply fully with relevant laws and regulations
applicable in all their areas of operations unless otherwise stated and that the Companies
will be managed in a competent and responsible manner. Further, except as specifically
stated to the contrary, this valuation report has given no consideration o matters of a
legal nature, including issues of legal title and compliance with local laws, and litigation
and other contingent liabilities that are not recorded in the audited/unaudited balance
sheet of the Valuation Subjects. Our conclusion of value assumes that the assets and
liabilities of the Valuation Subjects, reflected in their respective latest balance sheets
remain intact as of the valuation report date,

This report does not look into the business/ commercial reasons behind the Proposed
Demerger nor the likely benefits arising out of the same. Similarly, it does not address the
relative merits of the Proposed Demerger as compared with any other alternative business
transaction, or other alternatives, or whether or not such alternatives could be achieved or
are availahle.

The valuation and result are governed by concept of materiality. The financial forecasts
used in the preparation of the report reflects Management's judgment, based on present
circumstances, as to the most likely set of conditions and the course of action it is most
likely to take. It is usually the case that some events and circumstances do not occur as
expected or are not anticipated. Therefore, actual results during the forecast period will
almost always differ from the forecasts and as such differences may be material.

The fee for the report is not confingent upon the results reported.

We owe responsibility only to the Board of Directors of BEL and HLL that have retained
us and nobody else. In no event shall we be liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses
arising in any way from fraudulent acts, misrepresentations or willful default on part of
the Companies, their direetors, employees or agents.

We do not aceept any liability to any third party in relation to the issue of this report.

This report is subject to the laws of India.
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Recommendation of fair entitlement ratio of equity shares of BEL to be issued to the
shareholders of HLL for the proposed demerger of manufacturing business of HLL into

BEL

SHARE CAPITAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANIES

Bajaj Electricals Limited

The issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of BEL as at 30 September 20135

is ¥ 201.80 million consisting of 100,902,426 equity shares of  2/- each fully paid up.

Shareholding pattern as at 30 September 2015:

Sharcholder No. of shares | % sharcholding |
Promoter and Promoter group 64,218,485 63.64
Finaneial Institutional Investors 11,669,961 11.57
Domestic Institutional Investors 4,857,371 4.82
Public 20,156,609 19.97
Taotal 100,902,426 100.00

Source: BSE filing (As al 30 September 2015)
As at 20 November 2015, total number of employee stock options outstanding are
2,734,039 out of which 1,464,350 stock options are ‘in the money’ considering their
exercise price as compared to average of daily weighted average price for 2 weeks ended
18 November 2015 of BEL. Dilution on aceount of ‘in the money stock options’ has been
considered for the purpose of valuation of BEL.

Hind Lamps Limited

The issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of HLL as at 30 September 2015
is ¥ 150 million consisting of 6,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 25/- each fully paid up.

Shareholding pattern as at 30 September 2015:

Sharcholders No. of shares | % shareholding

Bujaj Electricals Lid. 1,140,000 19.00%
| Jamnalal Sons Pvt. Lid, 495,000 8.25%

Baroda Industries Pvt. Lid, 1,170,000 19.50% |

Bajaj International Pvt. Ltd. 180,000 3.00%

Smi. Kiran Bajaj 1,170,000 19.50%
| Ms. Geetika Bajaj 1,170,000 19.50%

Bachhraj & Company Pvt.Ltd. 675,000 11.25%

TOTAL 6,000,000 100.00%
Source: Managament of HLL
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Recommendation of fair entitlement ratio of equity shares of BEL to be issued 1o the
shareholders of HLL for the proposed demerger of manufacturing business of HLL into
BEL

APPROACH - BASIS OF DEMERGER

The Proposed Demerger scheme contemplates the demerger of Undertaking into BEL
pursuant to the Demerger Scheme under the provisions of Section 18 of the SICA.
Arriving at the Fair Entitlement Ratio of equity shares for the Proposed Demerger of the
Undertaking into BEL would require determining the relative values of the Undertaking
in terms of BEL, These values are to be determined independently but on a relative basis
and without considering the effect of the current demerger transaction,

There are several commonly used and accepted wmethods for wvaluation of
companies/businesses to determine the fair entitlement ratio for a demerger, which have
been considered in the present case, to the extent relevant and applicable, including:

e Market Price method

¢ Comparable Companies’ Multiples (CCM) method / Comparable Transactions
Multiple (CTM) method
Discounted Cash Flows method
Net Asset Value method

It should be undersiood that the valuation of any company/businesses or its assets is
inherently imprecise and is subject to certain uncertainties and contingencies, all of which
are difficult to predict and are beyond our control. In performing our valuation, we made
numerous assumptions with respect to industry performance and peneral business and
economic condition, many of which are beyond the control of the companies. In addition,
this valuation will fluctuate with changes in prevailing market condition, the condition
and prospects, financial and otherwise of the companies, and other factors which
generally influence the valuation of the companies / businesses and their assets.

The application of any particular method of valuation depends on the purpose for which
the valuation is done. Although different values may exist for different purposes, it
cannot be too strongly emphasized that a valuer can only arrive at one value for one
purpose. Our choice of methodology of valuation has been arrived at using usual and
conventional methodologies adopted for transactions of a similar nature and our
reasonable judgment, in an independent and bona fide manner based on our previous
experience of assipnments of a similar nature.
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Recommendation of fair entitlement ratio of equity shares of BEL to be issued to the
sharcholders of HLL for the proposed demerger of manufacturing business of HLL into
BEL

Markei Price Method

The market price of an equily share as quoted on a stock exchange is normally considered
as the fair value of the equity shares of that company where such quotations are arising
from the shares being regularly and freely traded in, subject to the element of speculative
support that may be inbuilt in the value of the shares. But there could be situations where
the value of the share as quoted on the stock market would not be regarded as a proper
index of the fair value of the share especially where the market values are fluctuating in a
volatile capital market. Further, in the case of a demerger, where there is a question of
evaluating the shares of one company against those of another, the volume of transactions
and the number of shares available for trading on the stock exchange over a reasonable
period would have to be of a comparable standard.

In the present case, the shares of BEL are listed on recognized stock exchanges like BSE,
NSE and Delhi Stock Exchange and there are regular transactions in its equity shares
with adequate volumes on BSE and NSE. In these circumstances, the share price
observed on NSE for BEL over a reasonable period have been considered for determining
the value of BEL under the market price methodology. The Undertaking is a part of HLL
and HLLs shares are not listed on any recognized stock exchange.

Comparable Companies’ Multiple (CCM) method / Comparable Transactions
Multiple (CTM) method

Under this method, value of the equity shares of a company / business is arrived at by
using multiples derived from valuations of comparable companies or comparable
transactions, as manifest through stock market valuations of listed companies and the
transaction valuation. This valuation is based on the principle that market valuations,
taking place between informed buyers and informed sellers, incorporate all factors
relevant to valuation. Relevant multiples need to be chosen carefully and adjusted for
differences between the circumstances.
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In the present case, there are no listed Indian comparable companies having business
similar to the Undertaking and since we have considered Market Price Method for
valuation of BEL, we have not considered market based multiples method for the purpose
of this exercise.

Discounted Cash Flows (DCF) Method

Under the DCF method, the projected free cash flows to the firm are discounted at the
weighted average cost of capital. The sum of the discounted value of such free cash flows
is the value of the firm.

Using the DCF method involves determining the following:
Estimating future free cash flows:

Free cash flows are the cash flows expected to be generated by the company that are
available to all providers of the company’s capital - both debt and equity.

Appropriate discount rate to be applied to cash flows Le. the cost of capital:

This discount rate, which is applied to the free cash flows, should reflect the opportunity
cost to all the capital providers (namely shareholders and creditors), weighted by their
relative contribution to the total capital of the company. The opportunity cost to the
capital provider equals the rate of return the capital provider expects o cam on other
investments of equivalent risk.

The Value arrived above under DCF method is adjusted for the value of leans, cash, non-
operating assets/liabilities as deemed appropriate.

Considering that the market price method is the best indicator of the value of a company,
we have worked out value of BEL as per the DCF method, by using the business plan
provided to us by the BEL Management, anly for benchmarking purpose.

We have used the DCF method for our valuation of the Underaking by using the
business plan provided to us by the HLL Management.
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Net Asset Value (NAV) Methodology

The asset based valuation technique is based on the value of the underlying net assets of
the business, ¢ither on a book value basis or realizable value basis or replacement cost
basis. A Scheme of Arrangement would normally be proceeded with, on the assumption
that the demerged business will continue on agoing concern basisand an actual
realization of the operating assets is not contemplated. In such a going concern scenario
the relative eaming power is of importance, with the values arrived at on the net asset
basis being of limited relevance.

Considering the nature of the business of BEL and the Undertaking, we feel it is
appropriate to give no weightage to this method for BEL and lower weightage for the
Undertaking for valuation,

Recommendation of Fair Entitlement Ratio for Equity Shares

The fair basis of valuation would have to be determined after taking into consideration all
the factors and methodologies mentioned hereinabove. For the purposes of
recommending a Fair Entitlement Ratio of equity shares it is necessary to arrive at a
single value for the Undertaking and the equity shares of BEL. It is however important to
note that in doing so, we are not attempting to arrive at the absolute equity value of the
Waluation Subjects but at their relative values to facilitate the determination of a Fair
Entitlement Ratio. For this purpose, it is necessary to give appropriate weights to the
values arrived at under each methodology.

In the ultimate analysis, valuation will have to be tempered by the exercise of judicious
discretion and judgment taking into account all the relevant factors. There will always be
several factors, e.g. quality and integrity of the Management, present and prospective
competition, vield on comparable securities and markel sentiment, etc. which are not
evident from the face of the balance sheets but which will strongly influence the worth of
a share. This concept is also recognized in judicial decisions,

In light of the above and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances
as discussed and outlined hereinabove, we consider that the Fair Entitlement Ratio of
equity shares for the proposed demerger of the Undertaking into BEL should be a ratio of
109 equity shares of BEL of T 2/- each fully paid up for every 1,000 equity shares of HLL
of ¥25/- each fully paid up.
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We have examined only the fair and equitable basis of the Fair Entitlement Ratio for the
shareholders and not examined any other matter including accounting and tax matters
involved in the Proposed Demerger exercise.

Respectfully submitted,

S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E

Rpt
Per Ravi Bansal
Partner
Membership No: 49365

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22 November 2015
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22 November 2015
To,

The Board of Direclors
Bajaj Electricals Limited
45-47, Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai — 400001

The Board of Directors
Hind Lamps Limited
Shikowabad,

Firozahad,

Uttar Pracesh — 283141

Dear Sir / Madam,
This is with reterence to the above given report. As desired by vou, S.R. Batliboi & Co.
LLP (“SRBC” or “we”) have given working of our valuation analysis herein,

As explained in our report, the fair entitlement ratio of equity shares of BEL to be issued
to the sharcholders of HLL for proposed demerger of manufacturing business of HLL
(“Undertaking”™) into BEL has been arrived at based on the various methodologies as
indicated in our report and various qualitative factors relevant to each company/business
and the business dynamics of the companies, having regard to information base,
managemenlt representations and perceptions, key underlying assumptions and limitations
as referred to in the report.

For our valuation working of BEL, we have considered Market Price Method and assigned
100% weightage to the same and for the valuation working of the Undertaking, we have
considered Discounted Cashflow Method (*DCF”) Method and Net Asset Value Method
(“NAV™ and assigned 80% weightage to DCF Method and 20% weightage to NAV
Method.

LA ..'.I

R R BN & T LLP, o Lisited Linsshty Partnershig wion LLP idenity he. AAS-4794
T, Ot © B, Cammar Strewd, Biogh 'C, drd Flooe, Koluts 700 018
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In light of the above and on a consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances as
discussed and outlined in our report dated 22 November 2015, we consider that the Fair
Entitlement Ratio of equity shares for the proposed demerger of the Undertaking into BEL
should be a ratio of 109 (One hundred and nine) equity shares of BEL of T 2/- each fully
paid up for every 1,000 (One thousand) equity shares of HLL of ¥ 25/- each fully paid up.

The above including the attached valuation workings should be read in conjunction with
our report dated 22 November 20135 and is subjected to scope limitations enunciated in the
report.

Thanking You,

For 8.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm registration number: 301003E
Chartered Accountants

R e

Partner
Membership Mo.;49365

MUMBAL |+ |

:
ﬁr} ..-/.*"".' 'J
s ﬂ‘]";:r:{i‘f}z#
Place: Mumbai

Date: 22 November 2015
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GQ( Katre Barwe & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Date: 4 December 2017

Approaches [ methods of valuation cansidared in Valuation Report for recommendation of fair
entitlement | allotment ratio of equily shares of Bajaj Electricals Limited to be issued to the
shareholders of Hind Lamps Limited

Te,
The Board of Direclors, The Board of Directors,
Bajal Electricals Limitad Hind Lamps Limited
45/47 Veer Manman Road, Shikohabad, Firozabad
Mumbai-400 001 Uttar Pradesh 283141

1. This is with reference 1o our repor dated 31 Oclober 2017 on recommendation of fair entitlement
fallotment ratio of equity shares of Bajaj Electncals Limited ("BEL") to be issued to the shareholders
of Hind Lamps Limited ("HLL") for the proposed demarger of manufacturing business of HLL into BEL

Az required by Circular No. LIST/COMP/D2/2017-18 dated 29 May 2017 issued by the BSE Limited
("BSE") and Circular Mo NSE/CMLRZ01TM2 dated 01 June 2017 issued by the National Stock
Exchange of India Limded ("NSE") (heremnafter referred to as “Circulars”), we hereby present the
requisita information in the format prescribed along with the approaches / mathods of valuation
considerad in the Valuation Report

Share Entitlement/aAllatment Ratio in compliance with pricing provisions of Chapter VIl of SEBI {ICDR) Regulations, 2009

Particulars BEL Manufacturing Business of HLL
Valuation Approach Value per share | Weight (%) Value per Weight (%)

shars
MNAV Method Approach [ Asset Approach N.A J (.00* 20,00
- Mote L
DCF Method Approach / Income M.A - 3170 80.00
Approach - Note 2
Market Price Method / Market Approach 260.90 100.00 N.A.
- Mote 3
Relative value per share 260.90 25.40
Share entitlement f allotment ratio 0.097
{rounded off)

* Considered NI, since net ossel value is negative ond HLL fs o limited Bobllity entity

Conclusion : The fair entitlement/allotment ratio of equity shares for the proposed demerger of the manufacturing
business of HLL Into BEL, should be a ratio of 37 equity shares of BEL of Rs 2 eoch fully poid up for every 1000 equity
shores of HLL of Ry 25 eoch fully paid up.

Approaches ! methods of valuation considered in Valuation :

Hote1:

NAYV Method Approach | Asset Approach

The asset based valuation technigue is basad on the value of tha underlying nat azsats of the businass,
ether on a book value basis or realizable value basis or replacement cost basis. A Scheme of

Arrangement would normally be proceeded with, on the assumption thal the demerged business will
conlinue on @ going concemn basis and an actual realization of the oparating assets is not contemplated

Regd Office: 15, Unnati, Shahaji Raje Marg, Vile Parle (East), Mumbai - 400057,
Branch Office: Gala No. 7, Shr Tirupali Balaji CHS, Bidg. No. 2, Koldongan, Sahar Road, Andher (E), Mumbal - 400 0068,
Thane Branch : 2/6, Yogesh CHS, Ram Maruti Road, Thana (W), Thane - 400 602,
E-mail: abhishekkatred@katrebarwe. com » Tal - 022-26834864 « Mob: 8821068858 | 77380045834



In such a going concern scenario the relative earning power is of importance, with the values arrived at
on the net asset basis being of limited relevance.

Considering the nature of business of BEL and the Manufacturing Undertaking of HLL, we feel it is
appropriate to give no weightage to this method for BEL and lower weightage for the Manufacturing
Undertaking of HLL for valuation. The NAV of Manufacturing Undertaking of HLL is considered Nil since
the net assets value is negative and HLL is a limited liability entity. Further, considering that the market
price method is the best indicator of the value of the listed company, market price methodology was used
for valuation for BEL (please refer Note 3 below) and NAV Method is not applicable for BEL.

Note 2 :

Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) Method Approach / Income Approach

Under the DCF method, the projected free cash flows to the firm are discounted at the weighted average
cost of capital. The sum of the discounted value of such free cash flows is the value of the firm.

Using the DCF method involves determining the following:

Estimating future free cash flows:

Free cash flows are the cash flows expected to be generated by the company that are available to all
providers of the company's capital — both debt and equity.

Appropriate discount rate to be applied to cash flows i.e. the cost of capital:

This discount rate, which is applied to the free cash flows, should reflect the opportunity cost to all the
capital providers (namely shareholders and creditors), weighted by their relative contribution to the total
capital of the company. The opportunity cost to the capital provider equals the rate of return the capital
provider expects to earn on other investments of equivalent risk.

The value arrived above under DCF method is adjusted for the value of loans, cash, non-operating
assets/liabilities as deemed appropriate.

In business valuations, it is essential for the valuers to not only take into consideration the past profits of
the company, but also look at its future profitability. The DCF method values the business by discounting
the free cash flows for the explicit forecast period and the perpetuity value (terminal value) thereafter. The
free cash flows represent the cash available for distribution to both, the owners and the creditors of the
business. The perpetuity value of the entity is calculated to fully capture the growth capacity of the entity
to infinity after the explicit period of projections. It is important for the valuer to consider the past growth
rate of the company as well as to consider the future growth rate expected basis the future projections
for the explicit period to arrive at the perpetuity growth rate. Thus, considering the multiple factors of
inputs required for the calculation of DCF method, the information so required is regarded as price
sensitive information, and so not suitable for listed company and hence the market price is regarded as
the good barometer of fair value of the equity shares at which an informed buyer and an informed seller
are willing to transact in the equity shares of the company.

Therefore, considering that the market price method is the best indicator of the value of the listed
company, the value of BEL as per DCF Method is worked out by using the business plan provided by the
management of BEL only for benchmarking purposes and the valuation of BEL is considered basis for
the market price method (please refer Note 3 below) and hence DCF method for valuation for BEL is not
applicable.

The DCF Method for valuation of Manufacturing Business of HLL is based on the business plan provided
by the management of HLL
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HNote 3 :
Market Price Method |/ Market Approach

The market price of an equity share as quoted on a stock axchange is normally considered as the fair
value of the equity shares of that company where such quotations are arising from the shares beng
regularly and freely traded in, subject to the element of speculative support that may ba inbuilt in the valus
of the shares. Bul there could be situations where the value of the share as quoted on Ihe slock market
would not be regarded as a proper index of the fair value of the share especially where the market values
are fluctuating in a volatile capital markel Furthar, in the case of s demergar, where thera is 8 question
of avaluating the shares of one company against those of another. the volume of transactions and the
number of shares avallable for trading on the stock sxchange cver a reascnabla pariod would hava o ba
of a comparable standard.

In the prasent case, the shares of BEL are listed on the recognized stock exchanges.viz BSE and NSE
and there are regular transactions in its equity shares with adequate volumes. In these circumstances,
tha shara price obsarvad on NSE for BEL over 8 reasonable pericd have been considered for detarmining
the value of BEL under the market price methodology

Tha reascnabla pericd is considered in terms and compliance of newly inserted Proviso to Clause
70{1)(b) read with Clause 76 of Chapter VI of the Securiliss and Exchange Board of India (Issue of
Capital and Disclosure Regurements) Regulations, 2009 (as amended) ('the ICDR regulations’). if the
equily shares of the issuer have been listed on a recognised stock exchange for a pericd of twanty six
weeks ar mora ag on tha relevant date, the equity shares shall be allotied al a price not less than higher
ol tha foliowing.

{a) the average of the waskly high and low of the volume weighted average price of the related equily
;hnrﬂs quoted on the recogmised slock exchange during the twenty six weeks preceding the relevant
ale; or

(b} the average of the weekly high and low of the volume weighted average prices of the related equily
shares quoled on a recognised slock exchange during the lwo weeks preceding the relevant date

The Undertaking is a partl of HLL and HLL's shares are not listed on any recognized stock exchange,
hence market price methad / market approach is not applicable for HLL's valuation

Restriction on Usa

The above should be read in conjunction with cur Report dated 31 Oclober 2017 and the valuation repor
imsued by 5. R. Balliboi & Co. LLP dated 22 Movember 2015 and is subject to the scope of limitations
enuncialed in the reports. It should not be usad by any other persan ar for any olther purpose. Accordingly,
wa do nol accep! or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or t¢ any other person
to whom this certificate 1s shown or into whose hands it may come without our priar cansent in writing

For Katre Barwe & Associates
Charlered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 137690wW

Abhishek Katre
Partner
Membership Number, 132349

Place of Signature; Mumbai
Date: 4 December 2017
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Submitted to

Bajaj Electricals Limited

FAIRNESS OPINION REFORT

On Valuation Report for Share entitlement ratio on proposed scheme of demerger of
Manufacturing Business of Hind Lamps Limifed (HLL) into Bajaj Electricals Limited
(BEL)

From Katre Barwe and Associates

BY

Mys. SPA CAPITAL ADVISORS LIMITED

101-A, 10" Floor, Mital Court,
Nariman Pomt, Mumbai - 400 021, India
Tel: 91 22 4289 5609 |FH‘.‘. o1 22 4002 1466
E-mugil: valuation@spacapital.com

Website: www.spacapital.com

“The word value means different things lo different people and the result will not be
the same, should the context change”

emerement between HLL & BEL Page 1
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THE FINANCIAL ADVISORS
www spacapital com

Date: November 01, 2017

The Board of Directors
Bajaj Electricals Limited
4547 Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai - 400 001, India.

Re: Fairness Opinion on Valuation Report by Katre Barwe & Associates for share
entillement ratio on proposed scheme of Demerger of Manufacturing business
of Hind Lamps Limited (HLL) into Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL})

BACKGROUND

We understand that Bajaj Electricals Limited was incorporated in India on 141 july
1938. The business of BEL is bifurcated into 3 business segments- the engineering &
projects Segment, Consumer Durables Segment & Lighting Segment. BEL is engaged
in the business of sales, distribution & marketing of consumer appliances, fans,
lighting & luminaries, high masts, poles and towers & products relating to industrial,
commercial and domestic lighting. BEL also undertakes turnkey, commercial & rural
lighting projects, designs, manufacturing erects and commissions high masts, poles &
towers. BEL's registered office is at 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400
001, Maharashtra, India. Its equity shares are listed and traded on BSE Limited and
National Stock Exchange of India Ltd.

Hind Lamps Limited was founded on 30 April 1951. Its registered office is at
Shikohabad, Dist. Firozabad, Uttar Pradesh, India. HLL is engaged in manufacturing
of glass bulbs, high intensity discharge bulbs and aluminium caps. Its manufacturing
Lty gre located at Slukobabad, Uttsr Fradesh and Parwaooeo, Flioeachad Peoadesh, T
manufacturing activity of HLL is hereinalter referred to as ‘the Undertaking’. HLL
also has a trading unit which is engaged in the business of selling, lighting and
consumer durable products to the end consumer. HLL has been declared as sick
industrial company within the meaning of section 3(1)(c} of the Sick Industrial
Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 ("SICA") by the Board for Industrial &
Financial Reconstruction("RIFR”) in year 2002

.
o T
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L_ B PURPOSE

We understand that Managements of the companies are evaluating a demerger of
Manufacturing business of HLL into BEL on a going concern basis under the Scheme
of Arrangement under the provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2015
(herein after referred to as the “Demerger Scheme” or “Proposed Demerger”). We
understand that as consideration, HLL shareholders (except BEL} would be issued
equity shares of BEL, in proportion to their shareholding in HLL, for demerging the
undertaking into BEL. The fair entitlement ratio would be determined based on the
value of each equity share of BEL and equity value of manufacturing business per
equity share of HLL.

We have been engaged to give fairness opinion on Valuation Report dated October 31,
2017 issued by Katre Barwe & Associates, Chartered Accountants.

INFORMATION RELIED UPON

¢ Draft Scheme of Arrangement
» Reportof Valuation done by Katre Barwe & Associates
e Information & explanations given by management of BEL as used for valuation.

Statement of Limiting Conditions: The Final Report has been prepared for the
exclusive use of the management of HLL and BEL and/or for submission to the
appropriate authorities in conmection with the proposed demerger. Therefore, the
Final Report may not be disclosed, in whole or in part, to any third party or used for
any purpose whatsoever other than those indicated in the Engagement Letter and in
the Final Report itself, provided that the Final Report may be transmitted to the
experts appointed in compliance with the law and its content may be disclosed
publicly where required by regulations of the Indian authorities. Any other use, in
whole or in part, of the Final Report will have to be previously agreed and authorized
in writing by SPA CATITAL ADVISORS LIMITED (SPA).

In preparing the Final Report, SPA has relied upon and assumed, without
independent verification, the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of the
information and the financial data provided by HLL and BEL. SPA has therefore reliec
upon all specific information as received and declines any responsibility should the
results presented be affected by the lack of completeness or truthfulness of such

Valuation Report on prsed Scheme of Arrangement betweern _ o)
By SPA Capital Advisors Limited

Fimss Opinion on
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information. Publicly available information deemed relevant for the purpose of the
analyses contained in the Final Report has also been used.

Publically available information deemed relevant for the purpose of analyses
contained in the Final report has also been used. Therefore, the Final report is based on
our interpretation of the information which BEL, as well as their representatives &
advisers, have supplied to us to date, our understanding of the terms upon which BEL
intends to consummate the transaction; and the assumption that the transaction will
be consummated in accordance with the expected terms and within the expected time
periods. In the execution of the Engagement, SPA has elaborated its own analyses
based on the memodu]ngi.es illustrated below, reaching the conclusions contained in

the final paragraph of this Final Report.

The Final Report and the Opinion concern exclusively for the purpose of proposed
demerger & do not constitute an opinion by SPA as to the absolute value of shares of
BEL. The conclusions contained in this Final Report are based on the whole of the
valuations contained herein and therefore no part of the Final Report may be used
apart [rom the document in its entirety,

The Final Report and the Opinion are necessarily based on econemic, market and
other conditions as of the date hereof, and the written and oral information made
available to us until October 31, 2017. It is understood that subsequent developments
may affect the conclusions of the Final Report and of the Opinion and that, in addition,
SPA has no obligation to update, revise, or reaffirm the Opinion.

In addition, SPA is expressing no opinion as to the price at which any securities of BEL
will trade on the stock market at any time. Other factors after the date hereof may
affect the value of the businesses of BEL or its business units. It is understond that SPA
or certain SPA affiliates, in the ordinary course of their activities, may actively trade,
for their own account or for the account of custormers, the equity and debt securities of
BEL or companies directly or indirectly controlled by, affiliated with BEL or in which
BEL helds securities, and, accordingly, may at any time hold long or shorl positions in
such securities,

It also remains understood that SPA or certain SPA affiliates may currently have and
may in the future have commercial banking, investment banking, trust and other
relationships and / or engagements with Counterparties which may have interests with
respect to BEL, or companies directly or indirectly controlled by, affiliated with BEL or
in which BEL holds securities. Finally, it remains understood that SPA or certain SPA
afﬁ_liateﬁ may have fiduciary or other relationships and engagements whereby SPA or

Fairness Opinion on Valuation Rert nnppnseS-:h eme of Arranget betwee
By SPA Capital Advisors Limited
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certain SP'A. affiliates may exercise voting power over securities of various persons,
which securities may from time to time include securities of BEL, or companies
directly or indirectly controlled by, affiliated with BEL, or in which BEL holds
securities, or other parties with an interest in the Transaction.

J—EWM&RY OF VALUATION PERFORMED BY KATRE BARWE & ASSOCIATES

For valuation working of BEL, Katre Barwe & Associates have considered Market
Price Method and for valuation working of HLL, they have considered DCF Method &
Net Asset Value Method (NAV) and assigned 80% weightage to DCF Method and 20%
weightage to NAV Method, :

Bajaj Electricals Limited (BEL}

1. Market Value Approack

Valuation of BEL is derived based on higher of the following:

- The average of weekly high & low of volume weighted average price of related
equity shares quoted on the recognized stock exchange during the twenty six
weeks preceding the relevant date; or

- The average of the weekly & low of the volume weighted average price of the
related equity shares quoted on the recognized stock exchange during the two
weeks preceding the relevant date,

Relevant date for computation purpese is taken as the date on which the Scheme of
Arrangement is approved by the Board of Directors of BEL and HLL; i.e. November

23, 2015.

Hind Lamps Limited {(HL.1)
1. Net Asset Value Method

Valuation of HLL is derived on the basis of its book value of Assets and Liabilities,
which is negative and hence considered as NIL, while giving weightage of 20%.

By SPA Capital Advisors Limited
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2. Discounted Cash Flow Method

The value of HLL under this method is calculated by discounting the sum of free cash
flows to firm based on five year projections and the Terminal Value as calculated on
replacement cost basis and thereafter the total value under DCF is given a we:ghtage
of B0% to arrive the fair value of HLL.

The entitlernent ratio as recormmended by Katre Barwe & Associates is in a ratio of 97
Equity shares of BEL of Rs. 2/- each fully paid up for every 1,000 'E.qu:ty shares of
HLL of Rs. 25/- each fully paid up.

CONCLUSION

Subject to the assumptions presented herein, in cur opinion, the valuation done &
Share entitlement ratio as suggested by Katre Barwe & Associates is fair considering
the circumstances & purpose of valuation.

Far SPA Capital Aduisors Limiled
{SEBI Regn. No.: INMOO00T0825)

Wo{iv S,

Rafiv Sharma
Senior Manager

BT N S — =
Falrness Uplnfon on Valuatlon Report on proposed Scheme of Arranpement belween HLL & BEL Page &

Oy SPA Capital Advisors Limited
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EXFPERIENCE THE NEW

DCS/AMALIACIR37/1072/2017-18 March 21, 2018

The Company Secretary

BAJAJ ELECTRICALS LTD

45/47 Veer Nariman Road ,Mumbai,
Maharashtra, 400001,

Sir,

Sub: Observation letter regarding the Draft Scheme of Demerger of manufacturing business of
Hind Lamps Limited into Bajaj Electricals Limited.

We are in receipt of Draft Scheme of Demerger of manufacturing business of Hind Lamps Limited into
Bajaj Electricals Limited and their respective shareholders and Creditors filed as required under SEBI
Circular No. CFD/OIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, SEBI vide its letter dated March 21, 2018,
has inter alia given the following comment(s) on the draft scheme of arrangement:

. “Company to ensure that information pertaining to Rajendra Prasad Singh being a
wilful defaulter in the matter of G.E.T. Power Limited, the company in which he has
since resigned as a director, is disclosed in the scheme under the heading "action
taken by SEBI/RBI" and the same is brought to the notice of shareholders and Hon'ble
NCLT.”

+ “Company shall ensure that applicable information pertaining to unlisted Hind Lamps
Limited is included in the abridged prospectus as per the format specified in the
circular.”

+  “Company shall ensure that additional information, if any, submitted by the Company,
after filing the Scheme with the Stock Exchange, from the date of receipt of this letter
is displayed on the websites of the listed company.”

+  "Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circulars.”

+  “Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)
and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT."”

= “It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after
processing and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by
SEBl/stock exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for
representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI
again for its comments / observations / representations.”

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised:

= To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to
the Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website.

+  To ensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various
documents are disseminated on their (company) website.

«  To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars.

In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to
those matters having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the
provisions of Listing Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with Hon'ble NCLT.
Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted
companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated
March 10, 2017.

BSE Limited {Formerly Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.)
Registered Office : Floor 25, P | Towers, Dalal Street, ‘1umba| 400 00
T: +91 22 2272 1234/33] E: corp.comm@bseindi |
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EXPERIENCE THE MNEW

Kindly note thal as required under Regulatlon 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disciosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Obsarvation Letter shall be sk
manthe from tha date of this Lettar, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.

The Exchenge reserves ils nght to withdraw ts 'No adverse observation' al any stage If the
information submitted to the Exchanga is found to ba incomplata / incorract / misleading / false or for
any contravention of Fules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement,
Guidelinaz/Regulations issued by staiutory authorities.

Please note that the aforesald obsarvalions does nol preclude the Company from complying with any
ather raquiramants.

“aurs faithfully,

BSE Limited (Formecly Bombay Stk Excnange Ltd)
wm:nﬂls,FijM;uwr_hTm-mm

Te =91 22 2372 143401 E g T
- —8ENSEX  Corporsin ity Numirer . 1671201
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1[- NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE NIF T
OF INDIA LIMITED
Stock of the nation
Ref: NSE/LIST/13505 March 21, 2018

The EVP — Legal & Taxation and Company Secretary
Bajaj Electricals Limited

45 /47, Veer Nariman Road,

Mumbai — 400001

Kind Attn: Mr. Mangesh Patil

Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation letter for Scheme of Arrangement between Hind Lamps Limited and
Bajaj Electricals Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors.

This has reference to Scheme of Arrangement between Hind Lamps Limited and Bajaj
Electricals Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors submitted to NSE on
September 29, 2017.

Based on our letter reference no Ref: NSE/LIST/13505 submitted to SEBI and pursuant to
SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, SEBI has vide letter dated
March 21, 2018, has given following comments on the draft Composite Scheme of
Arrangement:

1.

Company to ensure that information pertaining to Rajendra Prasad Singh being a
willful defaulter in the matter of G.E.T. Power Ltd, the company in which he has since
resigned as a director, is disclosed in the scheme under the heading “action taken by
SEBI/RBI” and the same is brought to the notice of shareholders and Hon’ble NCLT.

Company to ensure that applicable information pertaining to unlisted Hind Lamps
Limited is included in the abridged prospectus as per the format specified in the
circular.

Company to ensure that additional information, if any, submitted after filing the scheme
with the Stock Exchanges, shall be displayed from the date of receipt of this Iletter on
the website of the listed company.

Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the circulars.

Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)
and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the Company before NCLT afier
processing and communication of comments/observations on drafi scheme by
SEBl/stock exchange. Hence the company is not required to send notice for
representation as mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI
again for its comments /observations /representations.

I

Regd. Office: Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G-Block, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051, India

CIN: U67120MH1992PLCO6S769 Tel: +91 22 26598235/36, 26598346, 26598459/26598458 Web site: www.nseindia.com
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Continuation Sheet

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including
undertaking given in terms ol regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, we herchy
convey our “No-objection” in terms of regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, so as
to enable the Company to file the draft scheme with the National Company Law Tribunal,

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect’ misleading’ false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bve-laws and Regulatons of the Exchange, Listing Agreement, Listing
Repulations, Guidelines/ Regulations 1ssued by statutory authorifies,

The valdity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from March 21, 2018, within

which the Scheme shall be submitted 1o the NCLT.

Yours faithfully,
Far National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Kautuk Upadhyay
Manager

P.S. Checkhist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following
URL http:/www.nseindia.com/corporates/content/ further 1ssues.him

Begd. Ofice: Exchange Maea, Plot No, C/1, G-Block, Bandrm-Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051, India
CIN: DOTTIOMITERCPLOMS TN Tel: 91 22 2632623530, 26508146, 2658430 260598458 Web sile: wiarw nseyndha oo



ANNEXURE D
. uq-q Electricals Ltd.
dugpirrmg Trust

L/HLL-Demearger/1526/MGP December 18, 2017

To,

BESE Limited : Code No, 500031
Phiroze Jeejesbhoy Towers,

Dalal Streat,

Mumbai 400001

Dear Madam/Sir,
Sub.: Report on Complaints

Re.: Filing of Scheme of Demerger of manufacturing business of Hind Lamps Limited
into Bajaj Electricals Limited with Stock Exchange(s) under Regulation 37 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015

This has reference to our application No.63766 filed with BSE Limited ('BSE’) on October 4, 2017
through BSE Listing Centre seeking "Observation Letter / No-objection” under Regulation 37 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 for the Draft
Scheme of Arangement batween Hind Lamps Limited and Baja] Electricals Limited (the
“Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (the 'Scheme’), in terms of the
provisions of Sections 230 — 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and further correspondence rasting
with our letter No. L/HLL-Demerger/1495/MGP dated Novermber 20, 2017.

Since lhe Scheme and related documents thereon were hosted by BSE on its website on
Movamber 23, 2017, the Company is required to file a Report on Complaints with BSE within 7
days from the expiry of 21 days from the date of upload / hosting, i.e. within 7 days from December
14, 2017, as per the requirements of Para & of Annexura | to the SEBI Circular No.
CFQ/DILSICIRI2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 ('SEBI Circular’),

Accordingly, based on the confirmation received from M/s. Link Intime India Private Limiled, the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company, and update available on SCORES, we enclose
herewith a Report on Complaints (Report'} in the format prescribed under the said SEBI Circular,

We request you to take the Report on your records and oblige. The said Report is also baing
uplcaded on the website of the Company.

Wae also request you to provida us the necessary "Observation Letier / No-objection” at the earliest

&0 as to enable us to file the Scheme with the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench,
Maharashtra and Mational Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench, Uttar Pradesh,

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,
Far Bajaj Electd L' i

M ngash Patil #
EVP - Legal & Taxation and Cnm gany Sﬂureiary

Encl.: as above.

hiula Housae, 571 Mahaima Gandh Road, Mumiba: 400 001
Tl + 812240148 7000, G148 TOB0 | Fax +F1-22- 2305 7179

Ragd. Office: 4507, Vear Mariman Road, Mumbas 400 00, Indla | wisw, bagsjeieciricals com
Emai ; legalbalamectiricaiz.com | CIN | LI16G00MHIBIEPLCODOBAT
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REPORT ON COMPLAINTS

BA_A )
. Boje) Electricats Ltd,
fn{pr}-r}e( Frasl

Part A
Sr. No. Particulars Number
1. | Number of complaints received directly Nil
2 Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges / SEE] il
3. Total Number of complaintsicomments recaived (1+2) Mil
4, Number of complaints resolved Mot Applicable
6. Mumber of complaints pending Mot Applicable
Part B
Sr. No. Name of complainant Date of Complaint Status
(Resolved/pending)
1. Not Applicable

Place: Mumbal
Date: December 18, 2017

Mtla House, 51 Mahaima Cancihi Rped, Murnbear 400 001
Tok +81-22-G145 7000, 6140 7090 | Fax: +01-22-2285 2179

Regd. OMice: 45/47, Vesr Narimen Road, Mumbal £00 001, inefia | www, bajajelectricals com
Emall ; legeiibalajelecticals com | CIN : L31500MH 1 838PLC00R8E7

For Bajaj Electricals Limited.~——,

L

2 Mangesh Patil
EVP - Legal !u Taxation and Company Secratary
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L/HLL-Demergar/1538/MGP January 5, 2018
Ta,
Mational Stock Exchange of India Ltd, : Symbal: BAJAJELEC - Series: EQ

Exchanga Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex
Bandra (East), Mumbai 400051

Dear Madam/Sir,
Sub.: Report on Complaints

Re.. Filing of Scheme of Demerger of manufacturing business of Hind Lamps Limited
into Bajaj Electricals Limited with Stock Exchange(s) under Regulation 37 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015

This has reference lo our application No.13505 filed with National Stock Exchange of India Limited
('NSE’) on September 29, 2017 through NEAPS seeking “Observation Letter / Mo-objection”
under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Ragulations,
2015 for the Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Hind Lamps Limited and Bajaj Electricals
Limited (the "Company”) and their respective shareholders and creditors (the ‘Scheme’), in terms
of the provisions of Sections 230 — 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and further correspondence
resling with our letter No. L/HLL-Demerger/1495/MGP daled November 20, 2017,

Since the Scheme and related documents thereon were hosted by NSE on its website on
December 13, 2017, tha Company is required to file a Report on Complaints with NSE within 7
days from the expiry of 21 days from the date of upload / hosting, i.e. within 7 days from January
3, 2018, as per the requirements of Para 6 of Annexure | to the SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DILIICIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (*SEBI Circular’).

Accordingly, based on the confirmation received from M/s. Link Intime India Private Limitad, the
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company, and update available on SCORES, we enclose
herewith a Report on Complaints (Repor’) in the format prescribed under the said SEB| Circular,

We request you to take the Report on your records and oblige. The said Report is also baing
uploaded on the website of the Company.

We also request you to provide us the necessary “Observation Letter / No-objection” at the earliest
s0 as 1o enable us to file the Scheme with the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench,
Maharashira and National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench, Uttar Pradesh.

Thanking you,
Yours faithiully

For Bajaj Limited
,.,/f-_E{“E;

angesh Patil
EVP - Legal & Taxation and Company Secretary

Encl.: as above.

Mulle House, 51 Mahatma Gandhl Road, Mumbs <00 (X1
Tel: +91-22-6149 7000, 6148 7080 | Fax: +81.22.2285 2179

Flegd. Office: 4547, Veer Manman Foad, Mumbal 400 001, India | www.bajajslecincals com
Emai : lagalibajajelectricals.com | CIN : LI1S00MH1238PL CODGRET
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REPORT ON COMPLAINTS
Part A
Sr. No. Particulars Number
1. | Number of complaints received directly Nil
2. MNumber of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchanges | SEB| il
3. | Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) Nil
4. Mumber of complaints resolved Not Applicabla
8. Mumber of complaints pending Mot Applicable
PartB
8r. No. | Name of complainant Date of Complaint Status
(Resolved/pending)
1. | Not Applicable
For Bajaj Electricals Ljrnl‘l'up
Place: Mumbai Mangesh Patil

Date: January 5, 2018

Mulla Houss, 51 Manatma Ginois Road, Momae 300 007,
Tat: +97-22-6148 7000, 6149 7080 | Fac -01-22-2285 2179

Fagd. Uffioe: 46747, Voor Nairman Road, Mumba 400 001, indla | waww. bajajsecticats. com
Email ; lagai@bajajelecticaiacom | CIN - L315000-1938PLCOO0RT

EVP - Legal & Taxation and Company Secretary



ANNEXURE E-1

[ HIND LAMPS LTD. Wiy

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE DIRECTORS OF THE DEMERGER COMPANY EXPLAINING EFFECT OF THE
SCHEME ON EACH CLASS OF SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND
NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS, LAYING OUT IN PARTICULAR THE SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO

1.

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

Background

The proposed S5cheme of Arrangement between Hind Lamps Limited ("HLL" or “Company” or
“Demerged Company” or “Transferor Company”) and Bajaj Electricals Limited ("BEL” ar
"Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company”) and their respective Shareholders and
Creditors  (“Scheme”) under sections 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 was approved by the Roard of Directors ("Board”) of the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company at their respective mestings held on November 23,
2015, after taking on record Valuation Report dated November 22, 2015 issued by Messrs 5.8,
Batliboi & Co. LLP, Independent Chartered Accountants and Fairness Opinion dated
November 23, 2015 issued by SPA Capital Advisors Limited, Merchant Bankers.

Subsequently, the Board of Diractors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company,
in their respective meetings held on November 9, 2017, considered and approved the revised
valuation [ share entitlerment ratlo for a demerger of the manufacturing business of
Demerged Campany inte the Resulting Company and made consequential amendment to the
Scheme based on the revised Valuation Report dated October 31, 2017 issued by Messrs
Katre Barwe & Associates, Independent Chartered Accountants and revised Fairness Opinion
dated Navember 1, 2017 issued by SPA Capital Advisors Limited, Merchant Bankers,

Further, in order to meet the requirements of the observation letters issuad by the stock
exchanges dated March 21, 2018, the Scheme was once again amended by the Board of
Directors of the Resulting Company and the Demerged Company at their respactive meetings
held an March 29, 2018 and April 23, 2018, by inserting clause 18,

Purpose of this Report

Provisions of section 232(2)(c] of the Companies Act, 2013 require the Directors to adopt a
report éxplaining the effect of the arrangement on each class of sharshalders, Key Managerial
Personnel (“KMPs"), promoters and non-promoter shareholders of the Demerged Company
laying out in particular the share exchange ratio and specifying any special valuation
difficulties and the same is reguired to be circulated as part of the notice of the mesting(s) to
be held for the purpose of approving the Scheme,

This report of the Board is accordingly being made in pursuance to the requirements of
section 232{2){c) of the Companies Act, 2013, '."-'-_;?\f‘l.__;-'.-.‘;&“« 3

Regd. Office: Shikohabad, Dist. Firozabad, UP - 283141, India

Tel. +81-05876-234501 | Fax : +91-0587¥8-234300
E-mail : hindlamps@hindiamps.com | CIN, U27302UP1851PLCO02355
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5.1,

5.2,

5.3.

The Scheme provides for:

a) demerger of the entire Demerged Underlaking (manufacturing business) of the
Demerged Company, together with all its assets and liabilities, into the Resulting
Company on a going concern basis,

b) issue of 471420 fully paid-up equity shares of the Resulting Company of the face value of
% 2/- cach to the shareholders of the Demerged Company, except to the Resulting
Company itself, in consideration for the demerger in compliance with the provisions of
Section 2{1944) of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Demerged Company will retain the Remaining Business which includes all the undertakings,

businesses, activities (including trading activities and support services Lo other undertakings),

employees and operations ather than that of the manufacturing business.

The following documents were, inter-alia, placed before the Board:

a) Draft Scheme duly initialed by the Company Secretary for the purpose of identification;

b} Revised valuation Repart dated October 31, 2017 issued by Messrs Katre Barwe &
Associates, Independent Chartered Accountants on share entitlement ratio; and

¢} FRevised Fairness Opinion dated November 1, 2017 issued by SPA Capital Advisors Limited,
Merchant Bankers.

Effect of the Scheme:

On Equity Shareholders:

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, there will not be any change in the equity share capital
of the Demerged Company.

On Preference Shareholders:

Since the entire preference share capital of the Demerged Company has been singly held by
the Resulting Company, the same shall stand cancelled, extinguished and aonulled on and
fram the Effective Date, which shall be regarded as reduction of share capital of the
Demerged Company, pursuant 1o section 66 or any other applicable provisions of the
Campanies Act, 2013,

On Creditors:

Upan this Scheme coming into effect, the creditors relating to the Demerged Undertaking,
shall become the creditors of the Resulting Company. However, the proposed Scheme does
nol involve any compromise or arrangement with the creditors. The rights of the creditors
shall nat be affected by the Scheme. There will be no reduction in their claims an acccrunt of

PSR

Yo ,|".l ‘fr" ) "-.'-?"‘,"l

Regd. Office; Shikohabad, Dist. Firozabad, UP - 283141, India \ /,'
Tel +51-05676-234501 | Fax | +81-05676-234300 W
E-mail : hindlamps@hindlamps.com | CIN: U27302UP1851PLCO02355
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5.4,

5.5

5.6.

3.7.

the Scheme. The crediters will be paid in the ordinary course of business as and when their
dues are payable. There is no likelihood that the creditors would be prejudiced in any manner
as a result of the Scheme being sanctioned.

On Dehenture-holders:

The Demerged Company has not issued any debentures and therefore, the question of the
Scheme having any effect on any such Debenture-holders or Debenture Trustee does not
arise.

On Deposit-holders:

The Demerged Company has not accepted any Fublic Deposits and therefore, the question
of the Scheme having any effect on any such Depositars or Deposit Trustee does not arise.

On Employees:

With effect from the Effective Date, the permanent employees of the Demerged Undertaking,
in service on the Effective Date shall become the employees of the Resulting Company with
effect from the Effective Date without any interruption or break in their service as a result of
the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking to the Resulting Cormpany. The terms
and conditions of their employment with the Resulting Company with effect from the
Effective Date shall not be less favourable than those applicable 1o them with reference to
the Demerged Company on the Effective Date,

The existing provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, trusts, retirement fund or
benefits and any other Funds or benefits created by the Demerged Company inter alia for the
Employees (collectively referred to as the “Funds”) in terms of this Scheme shall be continued
for the benefit of such Employees on the same terms and conditions in the Resulting
Company. With effect from the Effective Date, the Resulting Company shall make the
necessary contribution for such Employees taken over,

The employees of the Remaining Business of the Demerged Company shall continue as
employees of the Demerged Company.

On the Directors, the KMPs and their relatives:

None of the Directors, the KMP (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed
theraunder) of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company and their respective
relatives (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder) have any
interest in the Scheme except to the extent of the equity shares held by them in the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company and/or to the extent that the said Director(s)
are common director(s) of the said companies and/for to the extent that the KMPs are holding
shares in the said companies as @ nominee and/or to the extent that the said Director(s),
KMPs and their respective relatives are the directors, members of the companies that hold
shares in the respective companies.

Regd. Office; Shikehabad, Dist, Firozabad, UP - 283141, India
Tal +81-DE6TE-234501 | Fax - +81-05676-234300

E-mail : hindlemps@hindiamps.com | CIN. U27302UP1951PLC002355
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The KMPs, if any, forming part of the Demerged Undertaking (manufacturing business) of the
Demerged Cormpany shall become emplayees of the Resulting Company on the Scheme
coming into effect.

6. The Scheme is not expected to have any adverse effects on the material interests of KMP,
Directars, Promoters, Non-promoters shareholders, Depositors, Creditors, Debenture
holders, Debenture Trustee and Employeas of the Demerged Company, wherever relevant,

7. Share Entitlemeant Ratio

7.1.  Messrs Katre Barwe & Associates, Independent Chartered Accountants (“Valuer”), have
provided a report in respect of issuance of equity shares by the Resulting Company to the
equity shareholders of the Demerged Company. The report states that, upon the Scheme
becoming effective, the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company will be issued 471420
fully paid-up equity shares of the Resulting Company of the face value of % 2/- each, except
1o the Resulting Company itself, in consideration for the demerger in compliance with the
provisions of Section 2{19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

7.2.  The equity shares 1o be so issued to the shareholders of the Demerged Company have been
determined based on the Share Entitlement Ratio of 97 equity shares of the Resulting
Company of the face value of T 2/- each for 1000 equity shares of the Demerged Company of
the face value of % 25/- each, as recommended by the Valuer and the same will be issued on
the record date.

7.3.  No special valuation difficulties were reported by the Valuer,

By Order of the Board
For Hind Lamps Limited

‘P

—

Shekhar Baja)
Chairman
Date: Jlanuary 2, 2019 . DiN; DO0BO358

Note: The features/details set aut above being only the salient features of the Scheme, the aquity
shareholders/creditors of the Company are réquested to read the entire text of the Scheme to get
themselves fully acquainted with the provisions thereof. The words and expressions used above
and not defined but defined in the Scheme, shall have the same meanings respectively assigned o
them in the Scheme,

Reqd, Office: Shikohabad, Dist. Firozabad, UP - 283141, India
Tel: +81-05876-234501 | Fax : +81-05675-234300
E-mail : hindlamps@hindlamps.com | CIN: U272020P1951PLCON2355



ANNEXURE E-2 ) BAJAJ
. Bajaj Electricals Ltd.

Hagpreing Trust

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE DIRECTORS OF THE RESULTING COMPANY EXPLAINING EFFECT OF THE
SCHEME ON EACH CLASS OF SHAREHOLDERS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL, PROMOTERS AND
NON-PROMOTER SHAREHOLDERS, LAYING OUT IN PARTICULAR THE SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO

1.

1.1.

1.2,

1.3,

Mutla House, 51 Mahatma Gandhi Hond, Murmbai 400 001, .____,._ﬂ

Background

The propesed Scheme of Arrangement between Hind Lamps Limited ("HLL" or “Company” or
"Demerged Company” or "Transferor Company”) and Bajaj Electricals Limited (“BEL" or
“Resulting Company” or “Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and
creditars  (“Scheme”) under sections 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 was approved by the Board of Directors ["Board”} of the Demearged
Company and the Resulting Company at their respective meetings held on November 23,
2015, after taking on record Valuation Report dated November 22, 2015 issued by Messrs 5.R,
Batliboi & Co. LLP, Independent Chartered Accountants and Fairness Opinion dated
November 23, 2015 Issued by SPA Capital Advisors Uimited, Merchant Bankers.

Subsequently, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company, in
their respective meetings held on November 9, 2017, considered and approved the revised
valuation / share entitlement ratio for a demerger of the manufacturing business of
Demerged Company into the Resulting Company and made consequential amendment to the
Scheme hased on the revised Valuation Report dated October 31, 2017 issued by Messrs
Katre Barwe K Associates, Independent Chartered Accountants and revised Fairness Opinion
dated November 1, 2017 issued by SPA Capital Advisors Limited, Merchant Bankers.

The Scheme was once again amended by the Board of Directors of the Resulting Company
and the Demerged Company at their respective meetings held on March 29, 2018 and April
23, 2018, by inserting clause 18 to it in order to meet the requirements of the observation
letters issued by the stock exchanges dated March 21, 2018.

Purpose of this Report

Pravisions of section 232{2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 require the Directors to adopt a
report explaining the effect of the arrangement on each class of shareholders, key managerial
personnel {"KMPs"], promoters and non-promoter sharehalders of the Resulling Company
laying out in particular the share exchange ratio and specifying any special valuation
difficulties and the same is required to be circulated as part of the notice of the meeting(s) to
be held for the purpose of approving the Scheme,

This report of the Beard is accordingly being made in pursuance to the requirements of
section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Tel: +81-22-6748 FOIK, G145 FOEX)

Regd, Office: 45/47, Veer Nariman Foad, Mumbal 400 001, Ingia | wwiv.bajajeecincs.oom
Emall ; ngaiGbajaisacticalecom | CIN | L31600MH1238PLOCO0RSET
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3. The Scheme provides for:

a) demerger of the entire Demerged Undertaking (manufacturing business) of the
Demerged Company, together with all its assets and liabilities, into the Resulting
Company on a going cancern basis,

b) issue of 471420 fully paid-up equity shares of the Resulting Company of the face value of
% 2/- pach to the shareholders of the Demerged Company, except to the Resulting
Company itself, in consideration far the demerger in compliance with the provisions of
Section 2{1944) of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Demerged Company will retain the Remaining Business which includes all the undertakings,
businesses, activities {including trading activities and support services to other undertakings),
employees and operations other than that of the manufacturing business.

4, The following documents were, inter-alia, placed before the Board
a) Draft Scheme duly initiated by the Company Secretary for the purpose of identification;

b} Revised Valuation Report dated October 31, 2017 issued by Messrs Katre Barwe &
Associates, Independent Chartered Accountants on share entitlement ratio; and

¢) Revised Fairness Opinion dated November 1, 2017 issued by SPA Capital Advisors Limited,
Merchant Bankers,

5. Effect of the Scheme:
5 f ity Sharchal

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Resulting Company shall issue 1o all the equity shareholders
of the Demerged Company 471420 fully paid-up equity shares of the Resulting Company
of the face value of T 2/- ecach, except to the Resulting Company itself, based on the
Share Entitlement Ratio of 97 equity shares of the Resulting Company of the face value
of £ 2/- each for 1000 equity shares of the Demerged Company of the face value of % 25/
each,

Therefore, upon such allotment of 471420 fully paid-up equity shares of X 2/- each by the
Resulting Company, the existing Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up share capital of the Resulting
Company shall increase by T 9,42,840/-,

Further, since both the entities pertanining to the same Bajaj Group and since all the
aforementioned 471420 equity shares shall he issued to the personsf/entities amongst
existing promoter equity shareholders of the Resulting Company, the shareholding of the
‘Promoters and Promater Group entities’ inthe Resulting Company will increase from existing
64218485 fully paid-up equity shares of % 2/- each to 64689905 fully paid-up equity shares of

x2/- each. ZARICA Y
"'ri‘-ﬁ/""\ -\ (';I'I.
|['?{ R 1.
Ml House, 5 Mahatma Gandhl Aoed, Mumbai 400 001, VN RS
Tal: £91-22-6149 7000, 6149 7050 2--*_ };-; ;\-,:_g_a 4
Regd. Office: 45/47, Vieer Nariman Road, Mummial 400 001, Indla | www.oajajalectricais.com STEs b
Email ; legai@tajsisiecticais.com | CIN : L31500MH1038PLC0008E7 i
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Also, due to above issue of equity shares to the existing promoter equity shareholders of the
Resulting Company, the shareholding of the non-promoter shareholders will get marginally
diluted in percentage terms.

5.2, On Creditors:

Upon this Scheme coming into effect, the creditors relating to the Demerged Undertaking,
shall become the creditors of the Resulting Company. However, the proposed Scheme does
not involve any compromise or arrangement with the creditors. The rights of the creditors
shall not be affected by the Scheme. There will be no reduction in their claims on accaunt of
the Scheme, The creditors will be paid in the ordinary course of business as and when their
rdues are payable, There is no likelihaod that the creditors would be prejudiced inany manner
as a result of the Scheme being sanctioned.,

5.3. On Debenture-holders;

The Resulting Company has not issued any debentures and therefare, the question of effect
of the Scheme on any such Public debenture-halders or Debenture Trustee does not arise.

5.4, On Depasit-halders:

The Resulting Company has not accepted any Public Deposits and therefore, the question of
effect of the Scheme an any such Depositor or Deposit Trustee does not arise,

5.5 OnEmployees:

The proposed Scheme does not have any impact on the existing employees of the Resulting
Company,

With effect from the Effective Date, the permanent employees pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking, in service on the Effective Date shall become the employees of the Resulting
Company with effect from the Effective Date without any interruption or break in their service
as a result of the transfer and vesting of the Demerged Undertaking to the Resulting
Company. Accordingly, the total strength of employees of the Resulting Company will
increase,

5.6, he O h il ir rel

Mone of the Directars, the KMPs (as defined under the Campanies Act, 2013 and rules framed
thereunder) of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company and their respective
relatives (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed thereunder] have any
interest in the Scheme except to the extent of the equity shares held by them in the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company and/far to the extent that the sald Directar(s)
are comman director|s) of the said companies and/or to the extent that the KMPs is holding

shares in said companies as a nominee and/or to the extent that the said Durqttor{s:, KMPs
o 1,?-'“"--1: T

; Tk
HETRE
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and their respective relatives are the directors, members of the companies that hold shares
in the respective companies,

The KMPs, if any, forming part of the Demerged Undertaking (manufacturing business) of the
Demerged Company shall become employees of the Resulting Company on effectiveness of
the Scheme.

6. The Scheme is not expected to have any adverse effects on the material interests of KMP,
Directors, Promaters, Non-promoters shareholders, Depositors, Creditors, Debenture holders,
Debenture Trustee and Employees of the Demerged Company, wherever relevant.

7. Share Entitlement Ratio

7.1.  Massrs Katre Barwe & Associates, Independent Chartered Accountants ("Valuer”), have
provided a report in respect of issuance of equity shares by the Resulting Company ta the
equity sharcholders of the Demerged Company. The report states that, considering that upan
the Scheme becoming effective, the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company will be
Issued 471420 fully paid-up equity shares of the Resulting Company of the face value of £ 2/-
each, except to the Resulting Campany itself, in consideration for the demerger in compliance
with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

7.2.  The equily shares to be so Issued to the shareholders of the Demerged Company have been
determined based on the Share Entitlement Ratio of 97 equity shares of the Resulting
Company of the face value of % 2/- each for 1000 equily shares of the Demerged Company of
the face value of % 25/- each, as recommended by the Valuer and the same will be issued on
the record date.

7.3.  Nospecial valuation difficulties were reported by the Valuer.

pm—— By Order of the Board
{fff‘;%‘?-‘ g For Rajaj Electricals Limited
Fh X
]'g ":L o Pl e
Y% P Shekhar Bajaj
JMERLT Chairman & Managing Director
Date: lanuary 2, 2019 DiN: 00089358

Mote: The features/details set out above being only the salient features of the Scheme, the equity
shareholders/creditors of the Company are requested ta read the entire text of the Scheme to get
themselves fully acquainted with the provisions thereof. The words and cxpressions used above
and not defined but defined in the Scheme, shall have the same meanings respectively assigned to
them in the Scheme.

Mula House, 51 Maehatma Gandhi Road, Mumbsal 00 001,
Tel: +81-22.6148 7000, 6148 760

Flegd. Offica: 45/47, Viear Mariman Road, Myribal 400 001, India | wwiw. bajajaiaciricals com
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ANNEXURE F-1

Sushil Maheshwari & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To
The Board of Directors of
Hind Lamps Limited

Keport on the Audit of Interim Ind A5 Financial Statements

We have audited the pccompanying Interim Ind AS Financial Statements of Hind Lamps Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprises the Balance Sheet as al Seplember 30%, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss
{including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity
for the period then ended and a summary of the significant accounting polices and other explanatory
infurmation (hereinalter referred o as "Interim Ind AS Financial Statcments"),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and acconding to the explanations given to vy, the aforesaud
Interim Ind AS Financial Stateraent give a true and fair view In conformity with Indian Accounting Standand
M “Interim Financial Reporting” {"Ind AS 34") prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the
Act’) and other sccounting principles generally acoepted i Indsa, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
30" September 2018, and loss including other comprehensive income for the year-to-date peried then ended,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year-to-date period ended on that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Interim Ind AS Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these [nterim Ind AS
Financial Statements that give o true and fair view of te financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive meome, cash flows and change in equity of the Company in accordance with the knd AS
34 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The Board of Ehrectors of the Company is also
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act tor
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgment and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of Titerim [od AS Financial Statements that give a truc and fair view and
are free from matenial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Interim Ind AS Financial Statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s abulity to continue as a going concern, disclosing. as applicable, matters related o
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either infends to liquidate
the Company of 1o cease operations, or has no realistic alternate to do so.

The Board of Directors is also u'sp|.1r|.'_-.-'i{'lTn_- forr o VETRERING, the Company’s financlal’ reporting process,

Auditors Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance alout whether the Interim Ind AS Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an suditors” report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaraniee that an audit
conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can
arise from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individually or in the appregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the ceonomic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Interim Ind AS Financial

Statements

Offlce : 607 & 307, Marutl Plaza,

Block 1188, Sanjay Place. AGRA- 252 002
Telefax « +91 562 $0H00L3

eemail ¢ casmeo@mail.oom
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As part of an audit in sccordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

b

Identily and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Interim Ind AS Financial Statements,
whether due 1o fraud or error, desipn and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and approprinte to provide o basis for our opimon. The risk of
not detecting @ material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional amission misrepresentation, or the override of
internal contral.

Uibtain an understanding of internal control relevant o the audit in onder o disigo andit procedures
that are appropriate in the cireamstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivencss of the entity’s internal control,

Evaluate the appropristencss of accounting policies used and the reasonaldeness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropristeness of management’s use of the gong concern basis of accounting amd
based on the sudit evidenoe obtamed, whether o material wcertainty exists relaled 1o evenls or
condibons thai may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability o conlinue as a going concern. [
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures In the Interim Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, o modify our epimion. Cur conclusions are based on the audit evidence oblained up o
date of our auditors” report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company b cease o
ol s o gl.l'il‘ﬂ COH R,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contents of the Interim Ind AS Financial Statements,
including the disclosure, and whether the Interim hd AS Financial Statements represent the
anclerlying transactions and events i a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and signiticant sudit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intermal controls that
wae dlentify during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Rasis for Qualified Opinion
W idree yeourr attention to the following matlers:

(1B

Regarding recogmrtion of Defereed Tax Assets, aggregaling Re DA 804185 as al Seplember 200, 2018
(Previous Year Rz, 11,46,52,8000) in spite of absence of convincing evidence of availability of adegrenle future
taxitble profits to demanstrate mrtial corlarmiy of resersal of such deferned tan pssets, which is mol in accordanee
toithe e requirements of nd AS-12, Income Taxes.



Qualificd Opinion

In cuer wpimmrare and Do Bhe et of anee infornnption and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Interim Ind
AS Financial Statements, give the infornation required by the Act in the minrer o required and exoept for the effects of
the matters referred to in the Busis of Qualified Opinion abooe, which hase an aggregale impact of Rs. 11,64,80 418/
{megutive un Diefirred Tax Assels), to the extent ascertainable, give a true mned fair view in conformity wnith the accovnting
principles generally acoepled i Irndw;

{i} in the case of the Balance sheet, of the state of affurrs of the Comtparny as at Septencber 300, 2018;

{1} in the cose of tie Staterment of Profit and Loss, of the Loss for the period ended on that date;

(titkin the case of ather comprelensioe tnceme, of the other comprehensive income for the pertod ended o that dule;
{ro) s e cnse of the Cash Flow Statement, of the oush flows for the period ended on that date; and

(v} in the case of Statement of Changes in equity, of the changes in eguily for the period ended o that dale.

For Sushil Maheshwart & Co.,
Chartered Ammm.tmts
E 3
C.ll Lnk.hml ﬂi'li.'l_lﬂm Bajaj

(Partmery— —
M. No. - 077637

Place: - Agra
Date: - 02-01-2019
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Regal. CHF. - Station Road, Shikohnabad, Firpzabad - 283141

il i)
Mote Az al As al
Particnlars No Ml Seprember, 2018 Alst March, 2B
Amginnd [in Rs) o Saneunt fin e
A|ASSETS
i
1| Mo Current Assats
a) Property, Plant & Equipmen A FAMLIT LY ! i siimri
b} Capital Weork in Frogriss 3A - 1059320
e} Imvestment Properties .
) Liammdwil] - .
) U Hlees Inbanigabilie Assils A 11,730,00 151,085,00
£} Intangible Assels winder developaneant i :
) Biokog scal Assets other than Dearer Plants o =
h) Fimancial Aecots
£ Inventments - -
it} Trade Reveivalbles - £
i} Lonmns . . .
v} Cleer Finaowcial Assola 1 E15, X, 00 BRSO
i) aefermed Tax Assats (Net) 5 TE T, 200, 00 TEL 545,000, 00
j) Ly Bon Currant Assals [] 4 E1E 479,00 4834, 601,00
Tt Wear Currven? Azl Pivh, 33070000 J0G WSH A 20
I|Current Asscls
a} Invemlaries 7 43,B05.241.00 SEA20E70.12
1) Finanwsal Assaols [}
1} Ivwsdmenis : -
) Trode Beveivaldis Ba 0, B A2 04 A0 10R 22T HE
i) sl & Cash Eaguivalents i 114555073 4224323
) Bank Dalances olher than (i) abowe i H
v} Loans
vi) Other Financial Asscls B E3LET200 1,253, 975,00
&) Current Tax Assets [Net) 4 599,900,797 S50
o) Other Current Assels 10 5004,571,54 5,275,063.71
112568 958,00 P10, 1G24 745
) Assets clnssified as held for sale an L3, 153,00
Tatal Corrreitt Assets 112569958 00 | 11246937545
Total Asscts 37E,500, 625,04 37HAZH 20,65
s por et altached of tven dlale alkached.
Fur Sushil Malicshwars & Cio, Forr and on Brehall of Board of DNiectors
Charbénemd Accountanis
FRN - 005519C f
- .
\ y ”
CA Lakhmi Chandra Bajaj Shekhar Bajaj Hulrir [alla
Partner [Hrector Wik Time Directos
M. Mo, - OF7EFT DIN - DIM - 08113932
Mhace; Agra Man run Pathak Sachin Uliaudlari

Dhate: 02-01-2N7

Chiel Finaiwe Cillicer
PAN - AKAI'PGMYK

Secrelary
ALCS - 28957




i o
Regd, O, - Station Road, Shikelabad, Firogaliad - 283141

Dulapge 3 it Sepiininber, M8
Mote Asat , Asal
Taticulars N 30th Seplember, 2018 it March, 2018
Amoami {in Es )} Amennd in Ha §
T ESIUTTY ANLY LIABILITTES
Equity g
a) Equity Share Capital o T, DR 00 U 150, £, 000, 00)
b} Otthare Exquity
1) Meserves & Surplus b {R54, K5, 70 B (TSR0 4T
i) Dl b 138.775,443,00 L35, 44200
Tudal Eqjuity (56 200.650.80) (ST 135003970
Liabilities
1| Mon Corrent Liabilities
a) Financis] Liabilities 12
1) Borrowings a B0 2800 24, 46100
i) Trade Payables . .
i) Other Financlal Liabilities - -
) Provivions 13 R, 520, 625,00 B, 636,418,00
¢} Deferned Tox Liabilltes (MNet) 5 .
i} Other Non-Cuorrent Linbiithes -
Tetw! Non Current Lintatilies 324,795 85300 ARMY 728 X798}
2 orrent Liabilities
a) Financial Liabdlities "
i) Barrowings a 30,964,310, ARATR AT AD
ii} Trade Payables [ W7, 114,250 89 BOLHA3 76561
iii) Other Financial Liabilities 3 165,319, 246,00 109, 141.535.00
) Other Carrent Linbilities 15 264013 K48 A5 P 332,618.54
] M'rovisions 16 12,307,536 00 13,037,006, 00
A} Current Tax Liabilities (Met) ~ .
Tudinl Carrrend Lindulilies SALATE 68189 507 83 978 61
Total| FTE, 900, 6TH.00 F78 A28 B 20,6
fﬁamﬂnumn}rmg sigmificant accounting polivies ) i
nd medes bo acconnis Formang part of the finencial w a
ftatemny |
A por our eport attached of even date attachsd
Fur Suslsil Maheshwart & Co. Fur and on bohalf of Board of Directors
Chartéted Accountanty -
FHMN - O551'H° 3
L
e
CA Laklmi Chandra Bajaj Shekhar Bajaj
Partner Director
M. No.- 077637 DM - 58 DM - 08113032
Flace Agra Mankdly Arin Pathak Sachin Chaudhari
Date: (2-01-2019 Chief Finance Officer Secretary

PAN « AKAPFGOJIK ACS - 28957
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Eiind Lamps Limited

Regd, Qff, - Station Road, Shikohaba, Firorabad - 263141

bt d

ar e preercnd epsledd 30y Seprlemeber, 2018

Note Fou the period ended Far the period ended
Partlculars N 3ilth Beptember, 2015 30th Septembo 2017
Aol (i Ksj Aot (in fls)
CONTINUING QPERATIONS
| [Revenme
Favesue from Operations 17 1O B0, 30041 AR RGN R
Other liuvnme 18 2727667 83 330732781
Total Revenud 200,567 51,29 7,730,190
2 |Expenses
a) Cost of Raw Malerial Consamas] 19 08,530, 70830 108 307 H19.75
b} Purchuise of Slock in Trade 20 11,430,307 84 1,566, 8499, 14
o] Manutacturing Expenses 21 21121198 64 22.080,132.60
d) Excise Duaty 17 . 8,185,045 vy
a) CJ'IJI'IRIH- m lnvendornes 2 12,362 467 25 (623, B66.69)
f) Emplayees Henelits Expenses n T HA5 44 B4, 4, 215 B2
) Finance Cost 24 25,066,685 28 WM N5 30
h) Depreviation & Amarbization Expenses 1 M4 40200 1,608 Bl 00
i) Dther Expenses i) 18, 570,607, 14 20,367 88800
Tutal Expenses 260,451,352 16 pac i e [0 R
A [Larss before Exceptional Items {1-2) {59,913,457.92) (48.346,967.25)
4 |BExceptional lfems
5 [Loss before Tax (3-4) {59,313 457.92) [958, 346,967.25)
6 | Tax Expensc:
a) Curnent Tax » .
b) Dheferoed Tox {2003, A0 N} 8.385,854.00
Total Tax Expense {20713 406,00) B,3B5,859,00
7 [Loss from Continuing Crperations (3-6) [57,900,051.92) {5, 732 E2H.T5)
& |Loss from Discontinued Cperations
W [ Tax Expense of Discontineed Operations -
11 Lerss From DHseontinoed Cperations (8-0)
11 |Lass for the Period (7+10} {57,900, 081.92) {86,732.826.25)




Hind Lamps Limited

Re| .-

Stitenrent af Profil s

abad - 283141

if J00h Septemier, 2118

Note| Forthe peviod ended For the peried endiad
Particulars o Joth September, 2018 Abth Seplember, 2017
Amount (in Bs.) Amonnt {in Fs)
Contned. ...,
12|Qther Comprehensive Incomyg i
Alf} Mems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss 24147200 8,789,178 0
(1] Trsconrne b refating bo ibems Dt will not be Kb 215.00 L.TO0 06,00
reclassilicd to profit or loss
B{i} lewns that will be reclassilicd 1o profit or loss
(i) Incomme tox: relating to ilems that will be
reclassiabied 1o profil or loss
Tirdd Other Connpreeliearsize Inovwme 1.825.258.00 GLEAR, 72200
15 [Total Comprehensive Income for the perfod (36,079, 423.91) {5,614, 054, 25)
14 {Farnings per share{of R4, 25~ cach): 7
) Basic
i) Continuing Operalions ] {65) {9440}
i} Digcontinuend Chpprations b a
i) Tertal Ohperations 3 (Sh65) {445}
bsp Diburbed
i} Comtinuing Cperations d (.65} {4.46)
i) Ciscontinued Operations e - -
itl) Total Operations f (%.64) {9.40)
See aceompanying significant scoounting policies amd notes | 1 ko
to accounits forming part of the fnancial statements 30

As por our report attached of even date attnched,
For Sushil Maheshwari & Co.

Clurbered Accountants

FIN - (5510, %

CA Lakhmi Chandm Bajaj
Partner
M. No. - 077637

Place Agra
Drate: 02-00-2019

For amd on behalf of Bowrd of Directors

Comeee—B— =

—

Shekhar Bajaj
Drirector
DM -

Man Arun Fathak
el Finanee CHices
PAN - AKATITGMIK

ubir Datta
Whale Time Diretor
MM - DET13932

Snch[q'-{'.lmﬂdhnrl
Srvrelry
ALCE - 26957
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Hind Lamps Limited

Regd, O3F, - Station Road, Shikaohaluad, Firosa bad - 283141
Cosli Flom Stetpweent finr Ui peeiod eadvd 3080 Syptemien 2018
Fur the previod ended | For the period ended
Particulars B0th Seplemier, 2008 | b September, 2017
Arnonank Jin Hu) Amatint (in Fs.)
Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Profit /(Loss) before tax ({Contimoed & Discontioaed) (57.272.014.92) {10,057, 7E0. 25}
Mat (Prafit)/ Loss on Fived Assels Sold (71372000 F3.840.00
Lasss on Tipaivnvent on Assels - -
Mt Profit f{Loss] belooe s provision and extea ordinary ftem {37, %73 386,97) 139,523, 340.25)
Adljuntuente for:
Peprrevialion 1304 462,10 1,0 i, 00
Trdemest Expresvy Citlier Dorrowing Cost 1947435728 18,946,552.61
Trieses] income (B1,707.40) (201 580, 01))
Lease Hent 528, 750,00 528007
Ctperating prafit before working capital changes {34, 707 415.04) (18,632,233.22)
.I\.dlullmrn.u for changes in working cagrital ©
Mt (Increase) / Decrease b Trade Recelvables {12401 515.08) (o, 827 4ria2 1211
Mt (lwrvase) [/ Decrease in Inventories 11,755 435,14 (10,456,480, 1)
Mot (Increase) / Decrease o Other Beoeivables (246017716 1,024 658 45
MNet Increase / (Decrease) m Prowvision (1,545, 960.00) 0,75, 175,00
et Increae / ([recrease) in Trade and Other Payables 17,2000 5,930, 5406, 64
Cash Cornerabed from Operalions 33,065, 578.21 {20 IHANT.5T)
Taxes (Paid) / Received
Nt Cosh Flosw from Operating Activibies < A 33.065.578.21 20, 159.037.81)
|Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Parchages of Tixed Asseis (S, 270.00) (B51,345.00)
Sale of Tined Assets 1,264, 500,00 1,387,505 ()
Med (Purchase) / Sale of Investment 41910300 5543500
Irrane in Capital work-in-progress 10,5520 (47.940.25)
Tnsberrest Hooeivesd (Revenue) 75,0540 206,993.00
Net Coralt Flowe fromn Invesfing Actirities - 8 i,ﬁﬂ,mﬁﬂ 1, 123,103,75

Canstbirrniad o poge = 2




Fage-2

. [Cash Flow from Financing Activities:

Met Proceeds from Working Capital Borrowings (Cash Crediis)
Met Procecds fromm Long Term Borpowings

Met Proceeds from Long Term Loans & Advances

Met Lease Rent

Mot Frnance Cost Faid

Net Cash Flowe from Financing Activities - C

[ | Met Increasef{ Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalenis| A+B+C)
L [Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of pericd

Cash and Cash Equivalents as ab the end of the Pcr_icld
F. |(See Mote Mo, 98)

(151443712

(3,371,304, 3%

(4,517, 233.040) 476171800
i 1200 1,003 380 33
(528, 75000} (352, 536.22)
(10,441,191,29) (19,561,029.61)
i34,263,420.41) 15,369,937.01
F23,127.40 {46,096.75)
AFL A2 e, 754 08
498,642,.33

1,145.559.73

As per our report attached of even date attached,
For Sushil Maheshwari & Co.

Chiartered Accountants

FEN - (N5519C

CA Lakhmi Chandra .ﬂniaj
Partrer

M. Ne. - 077637

Mlace: Agra
Diate; 02-01-2019

For ancd on behalf of Board of Directors

e—n—" “h';.r

-
Shekchar Bajaj Shibir Dhatta
Firee o .}-‘I.rlu e Tome Dhreclor
DIN EL] MM - D811 3932
Manish Arun Pathak  Sachin Chaudhari
Chief Finance Officer  Secrotary
PAN - AKAPPSDMOK  ACS - 28957
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Hinnd Lamps Limited
Repad. Office - Station Road, Shikaehabad, Firozabad - 205141

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
Note

Company Information

e Laenps Lawretied (the "Company”) Is a domestic public Timited Company and is not listed on any Stock
Exclange, The Company is registered in the state of Uttar Pradesh, India. The Corporate Identity Number
(CIN) allotted to the Company by e Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is [J273020P1951 PLODOZ35S,
The registered office of the Conyrany is situated alb Station Road, Shikohabad, Firozabad - 205041, The
Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of glass bulbs, high intensity discharge {1ID) bulbs
aluminium caps and Meter Boards (Below Poverty Line Kits). Is manufocturing unit is located al
Shikohabad, Uttar Pradesh and Parwanos, Himachal Pradesh. The Company also has a trading unit which
is engaged in the business of selling these products and other electrical appliances to the end consumers,

Significant Accounting Policies

This nete provides a list of the significant accounting policies adapted in the preparation of these Financial
Statements, These policies have been consistently applied te all the years presented, unless otherwise slatel

1) Basis for Preparation of Accounts

&) Compliance with Ind AS
These Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
underthe historical cost convention on the accrual basis. Accounts and Disclosures thereon comply with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act™) (to the extent natified). The lnd AS are prescribed ungder
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and
Compandes {Tindian Accounting Standard) Amendment FKules, 2016

The Cﬁl‘ﬂ"hﬂl'l}' has El.dupll!d all the Ind AS {35 amd where al_:l_'l]_ii:ﬂl'lllr}, other pronouncemenl of 1AL
provisions of the Companies Act and guidelines issued by SEBL as applicable.

b)
a)  The Company follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognizes income and expenditure
on an accrual basis except in case of significant umcerlainlies,

b)  Financial Stements are prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the lollowing,

»  Certain Property, Plants & Equipments that are measured at revalued amount accerding to
revaluation made by the Company in previous periods,

= Certain financial assels and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and contingent
consideration thakis measured at fair value, if any;

¢ Agsels held for sale - measured at fair value less cost ta sell; and

v Defined bepefit plans - plan assels measured at far value;

%

PAN - AAACHISTIO CIN - 273020195 1 PLC002355
E-Mail = hindlampsé@@hindlamps.com
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Hinel Lamps Limited
Regd, Office - Station Road, Shikehabad, Firozabad - 205141

)

Estimates and assumplions used in the preparation of the Financial Statements and disclosures are
based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and cireumstances as of the date of the
Financial Statements, which may differ from the actual resulls ab a subsequent date. Differences
between aclual resulls and estimales are recognised in the perdod in which the resulis are known.

¢} Revognition of Income and Expenses

)

Iy

Sale of Coods

Sales are recognizsed whuen the substantal risks & rewards of ownership in the goods are transfierned
to the buyer, npon supply of gowds, and are recorded net of trade Jdiscounts, rebates, sales taxes and
excise duties (on goods manufactured and oulsourced), U does nol include inter-divisional
transfers. g

Expenses
All expentes are provided on acorual basis unless stated otherwise,

oy Property, Plant & Equipment, Intangible Assets & Capital Wark in Progress

i)

b)

c}

i)

Properties, Mants & Equipments - Fixed Assels as imdicated in Note 3 were revalued by, the
Company in December 1986 and again as on Movember 18, 1997, Costs include costs of acqusitions
or constructions, including incidental expenses thereto and other attributable costs of bringing the
assels Lo ils working condition for its intended use and are net of available duty/ tax credits.

Imangible Fixed Asset - Intangille assels are recognised on the basis of recogmition eriteria s sel
out in Tnd AS 38 "Intangille Assets™.

The revilugdd assets are carried al the revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and
imprairmoenl loss, il any. '

Lapital Work in Progress - Expenditures related to and incurred during implementation ol
new fexpansion-cum modernization projects are included under Capital Work-in-Progress and the
same are allocatid Lo the respevtive Fixed Assels on completion of their construction/ erection.
Capital Wark in Progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not ready vet for their intencid s
at the reporting date,

Drepreciation amd Amortisation-The depreciation his been chiarged as per Straight Line Method as
per the rates derived from useful lives of fixed assets as per teclmical evaluation report taken by U
Company from My's Paras Consultants and as mandated in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2014
in the manner that 95% of the original cost of the assel is wrilten off over s useful life hereol, As
per Ind AS, deprecintion charged on the appreciated value of the revalued aslets is charged 10
Statement of Profit & Luoss, '

Where the remaining useful life of the assels is nil, afler retaining the residual value, the carrying
amcunt has been recognised in the opening balance of relained earnings.

Intangible Assets are amortized over a period of 3 years,

B

PAN - AAACHIWI0 CIN - U27302 U951 PLOD0Z3SE

E-Mail - hindlamps@hindlamnps.com



Hird Lannps Limibed
Repd. Office - Station Road, Shikohabad, Frrocabad - 205141

o) Impairment of Assels

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at esch Balance Sheet date if there 1s any Indication of
impairment based on Internal/external factors. An asset is inpaired when the carrying amount of the
mset exceeds the recoverable amount, An impairment loss is charged 1o the Stalement of Profit aml
Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. An Impairment loss recognised in the prior
accounting perieds are reversed if there has been change in the estimate of the recoverable amount.

] Mon-Current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Qperations

* Mon-current assels are elassified as helel for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than tirough continuing wse and a sale i35 considersd highly
probable, They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value hess costs to sefl,
except for assels such as deferred lax assuly, assels arising from employee benefits, financial assels
and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically  exempl from  this
requirgment,

» An impairment loss is recognised lor any initfal or subsequent write-down, of the asset 1 fair value
liess costs to scll. A gain iy recogrused for any subsequent increases n falr value less costs 1o sell of an
assel, bul nol in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recogntsed. A gain or loss nol
previously recopnised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset is recognised at the date of de-

recognition.

= Mon-current assets are not depreciated or amorticed while they are classificd as held Tor sale.

s Non-Current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in L
Balance Sheet.

» A discontinued operation is a component of the Company that has been disposed of or is classified as
held for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or ares of opembions, or is o
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to msale, The results of discontinuesd operations are
presented separately in the Statement of ProHt and Loss.

g Canh and Cash Eguivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash amd cash equivalents incluides
cash on hamd, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other shori-term, highly liguid
investments with original maturities of three months ar less that are readily convertible 1o known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdralls.

h} Trade Receivables
Tradde receivables are recognised initially at transaction value and subsequently at ransaction value

less provision for unrealizable amount.

FAN - AAACTINTIO CIN - UIF32UP1951 PLCIN2355
E-Mail = hindlamps@hindlamps.com
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Hind Lamps Limited
Repud, Office - Station Road, Shikehalsad, Firozalbad - 205141

i)

k)

Inventories
Inventories are valued at Firet In First Qut (FIFC) basis.

a)  Raw Malerials - Baw Materdal, Components, Packing Material, anc Stores oo spares are valued al
oost or Met Realisahle Value (MEV) whichever is lower.

b Finished Goods-The cost of Finished Goods include direct labour/ allocable charges and indirect

manmfachuring overheads aml are stated inclusive of goods and service tax. 1L is valued ab cost or
Met Bealisable Value (MEV) whichever is lower.

) Stock in Transit - Stock @0 Transit is recognised al cost and expenses divectly atteibutable to bring, it
o the present location of storage,

d) Wonk in Progress-Work in Progress is recorded at cost unlbess there is permanent circumstances thal
require the cost to be written down to Realisable value,

€] Sgraps- Scrap Material is valued at Net Realsable value,

N Slow and Mon-Moving- Tnventories have been valued al Met Realisalile Value,

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent linbilities for goods and servives provided to the Company prior to the erid of
fimancial year which are unpaid and the aneunts ae unsecurcd, Trade and other payables ane
presented as current liabilities wunless payment s not due within 12 menths after the reporting period.
They are recopnised initially at their ransaction value.

Bormowings
Borrgwings are initially recognised at fair value, net of lransaction costs incurrecd. Porrowings are

subsequently measured at amortised cost, Any difference between the progeeds (nel of transaction
costs) amd the redemption ameount is ecognised in profit or loss over the pedod of the borrawings
wsing e effectivee interest method, Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent thal it is probable that some or all of the facility will be deawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent here s no evidenee
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, e fee & capitalised as a
prepay ment for liquidity services and amortised over the peried of the facillty to which it relates.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific dale, are classified as abilities,

Borrowings from  related party Bajaj Electncals Lomited (having significant influence  over
Hind lamps Ltd) with no repayment stipulation as per sanctioned MDRS by DIFR. are
treated as “Other Equity™ under the bead *Others-Chlher Equity™.

Borrowings are classified as current labilities unless the Company has an uncondilional right to difer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Whete there i a breach of 4
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before e end of the reporting perod with
the effect that the Hability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entily does not
classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reparting period and before e approval
of the Financial Stalements for issue, not to demand payment as a conseguence of the breach,
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I} Provisions
Provisions for legal claims, service warranties, volume discounts and returns are recopnised when the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as o result of past events, it'is probable that an
ontflow of resvames will be peguired o seltle e obigation and tie amount can be relably estimated.
Provisions are net recognised i future operating losses. .

Provisions for restructuring are recognised by the Company when it has developed a detailed formal
plan for restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that the Company will carry
oul the restructuring by starting 1o inplement the plan or announcing its main features o those
affrcted by in,

Where there are a mumber of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering e class of obligations as o whele, A provision is necognized
even 1 the lkelihood of an outllow with respect oo any one e included o the same class of
olligatioms may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of meanagement’s best estimate of the expencditure
rerpuined b seltle e present obligaticn at the vid of the reporting perisd. The discount rbe wsed o
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflocts current market assessmoents of Bhe Lime valoe
of money and the risks specific 1o the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as inleves! expense,

The: measurement of provision for restructuring includes only direet expenditures arising (rom te
restructuring, which are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with ihe
ongaing activities of the company.

m) Retirement Benefits

Liabifitics in respect of retivement benefits W employees are provided (or as follows

) Defingd Bepefit Flang - The Employee's grotuity fund scheme, long term compensaled absences,
post retirement medical benefit schemes, Central Government Provident Fud Scheme ane
Company’s defined benefit plans,

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is determined based on the
ectuarial valuativn using the Projected Unit Credit Method which recognizes each period of serviee
ps giving rise lo the additional unit of employee benefit entithement and measures. each anit
separately 1o build up the final olligation. The obligation is measured al the present value of the
esfimated foture cash (lows. The discount raled wsed for determining the present value of (he
obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on the Government securities
as al the Balance Sheet date having maturily periods approximating to the terms of the relaled
abligations,
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]

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, In case of fumded
plans, the fair value of the plan asset is reduced from the gross obligationamdes thee defined benefit
plins, to recognize the obligation on the net basts.,

Gains or losses on curtailment or seltlement of any defined benefit plans are retognized when the
curtailment or settlement occurs,

Past service cost i recognized as expenses on straight line basis over the average period until the
benefits became vested,

b Pefined Contributions Flans - The Company’s approved Superannuation Scheme, Employee State
Insurnnee Scheme and Employves Fension Schemes ara defined contribution plans,

The contribution paid/ payable under the schemes 4 recognized during e period in which the
employes renders the related service.

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employes provident fund ta a Trust
actministered by e Trustees, The minimwn interest payable by the Trust to the beneficiaries every
year is being nedified by the Government. The Company has an obligation o make goed short fall,
if any, between the return from the investments of the Trust and the notificd inlenest rate.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumplions are recogiused in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained eamings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the
alange Shoot

The Functional Currency of the Company is the India Rupee. These Financial Statemants are presented
in Tindian Rugrees (Lo the nearest Paise).

Revere, expenses and cash flow items denominated in foreign currencies, if any, are translated using
the exehange eate in functional currency on the date of the ransschon, Transactonal gains or losses
realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in determining net profit/ (loss)
for the pericd in which the transaction is settled.

Financial Instruments

Initial Recognition - The Company recognises Anancial assets and financial liabilities when it becames
a party to contractual provisions of the instrument. Transaction costs that are divectly attributable 1o
the acquisition or issue of financial assels or financial liabilities are added to the same on initial

recognition. Regular purchase and sale of financinl assels are accounted for dt trade dale,

Cherecognitiom -~ The Company derccognizes a financial assel when the contractual rights to the cash
Mows from the financial assels (-xpire-s or it wansfers the financial asset and the transfer qunliﬁps for
derecognition under Ind AS 109, A financial Liability (or a part of Financial Liability) Is derecognized
from the Company’'s Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expired.
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Pl Bomowing Cosis
forrowing costs are recogmised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except in foespect of specific
borrowing raised for acquisition of capital asset until such time the asset is ready jn put to use for ils
inteneed purpose, which are added to carrying cost of such asset.
) locome Tax and Deferred Tax
The Hability of the Company on account of Income tax is estimated considering the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961,
Deferned tax is recognized, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing differences being the
difference between taxable income and accounting income that originate in one year and capable of
reversal in one or more subsequent years,
r) Discontinueed Operations
Mssels and Liabilities of discontinued operations are assessed at cach Balance Sheet date. Impacts of
any impairments and write backs are dealt with in the Stalement of Profit and Loss. lmpacts of
discontinued operations are distinguished from the enguing operations of the Company, su Ut thwir
impact on the Staterment of Profit and Loss for the period can be porceivid.
5) Larnings Per $Share
i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earming per share is cateulated by divicling:
»  the'profit/ {loss) attributble to owners of the Company
s by the weighted average number of alel}' shares outstanding during, the financial year,
1|ﬂil|1:_;1n'1 for bonus elements in cquity shares issued during the vear and'gecluding treasury !
shares,
{if) Dilubed earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earmings per share
Lo take inlo accounk:
e the after income tox effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and
+  the w-.u{ghled average number of additional equity shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
1} Operating Leases
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of awnership are retamed by the lessor
are classificd as operating leases, Expenses and income from lease rentals in respect of operating, leases
are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual hasis in accordance with the respective lease
agreements.
PAN - AAACHIIQ CIN - U27302UP1951 PLODIEASS

E-Mail - hindlam ps@hindlamps.com m

113



Hind Lamps Limited
Rigd. (ffice - Station Road, Shikehabad, Firozabad - ZU05141

u) Government Grant
Grants from the governmint are recognised al their fair value where there s a reasonable assurance
thatt the grant will b received and the Company will comply with all atiached conditions.

Government grants relating to income are deferned and recognised in the Statement af Profit and Loss
over the perfod necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and
presented within other income,

¥} Cash Flow Statement
Cash fows are reported using the indirect method, whersby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted for the
effects of ransactions of non-cash nature, any defercals o accruals of past o fuflue operating cash
receipls or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
Mows, The cash flows [rom operating iwesting and financing activities of the Company are

seprepated.
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Mole-2
MNotes to Accounts
1) The debit & credik Talaces ane subpect o confinmation amd reconciliation.

i Balance with bank is subject to reconcilintion with the statement provided by the bank,

4 Contingent Liabrlities not provided for

The contingent liabilities are as follows:;

154 for AY. 2013-14

(A} - 11, Agra®

Nr. Court f Authorities where dispute Amount
Na. Mature of Dispute b pendlintyc (in Rs.)
1| Demand of ESI Hon'ble High Court, Allahabad 145,795/ .
2| Labour Matter Hon'ble High Court, Allahabad 8,21,466/~
JoimCommissionoro! Commerncial
3 LPYAT Demand Tax, Uttar Pracesh 181,005/
Appeal pending before Additional
4 | UPVAT Demamd Comumissioner, Corinle- 45,280/ -
2Comumwevial Tax, Mainguri
Wril  Petition  pemding  Iefore e
5 | Demand for Stamp Duty Hon'ble High Court, Allahabad 0B6I50,/
Demand for Recovery of Appeal pending before Hon'ble P
® | House Tax High Court, Allahalid 10458
Appeal pending Tnefore Additional
7| Demanct voder Sales Tax Commissioner, Commercial Tax, 26, 7,339 -
B Mainpuri
8 | Bxcise Dty Demand Hon'ble High Court, Allahabad 11,92,579,/-
. Jaint Commissioner of ——
9 | Demand under Sales Tax Commercial Tax, Uitar Pradesh 00,555/
10 Demand of Income Tax ufs | Appeal pending before Ld. CIT 2,92.60,360,/-

Certain Industrial Disputes arising oul of lockoul/ other labour claims, as the matter are sub judice
with the Courts/Industrial Tribunal, The Company has obtained expert legal opinions and is

comfident that o lability would arise on the Company.

The Company has received order of Govt. of U.P, for rellover of interest free trade deferment loan for
a further period of 5 years subject to the condition that the Company will be linble to pay interest as

spueified if it fails to pay the loan installment on lime.
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Further, the following appeals relating to various additions in Income Tax proceedings are pending before
various courls [/ authorities:

e s Wl
23 e s e pa 7L
20132014 A““‘“;:ﬂ‘.‘ﬁ“ :.:;Tpﬁf;f before 1,78,07,806/ -
20142015 m“”;:ﬂ?ﬁ;a};“ﬁ?;’::’r’fw“” 1,91,54,000/ -

| wse Aﬂﬂf{’;ﬁ}hﬁ_ﬁ:‘ﬂg”ﬂ” 76.55.874/

However, there is no liability of the Tncome Tax o account of these ndditions, ag all these addifions have
been adjusted against brought forward losses [ brought forwand depreciation.

1) MDRS & Other Related aspects

al

b

L]

d)

Waivers granted 1o the Company by virtue of the Medified Draft Resteucluring Schieme (MDRS)
sanctioned by BHTR have been given effect to in the previows year and henge the assets aned
linbilities stated ndjusted to that extent. However, non-fullillment of conditions specified in the
saticl order may reinstate the original right of lenders.

The Companyhad been granted Trade Tax deferment for 5 years elfective from 019 October, 2005
o 300 September 2000 vide letter Noo 1769/ cleven-02-2006-085) /04 datee]l  24-08-2006.
Accordingly, frade tax collected on sales uplo 30th Seplember 2000 aggregoting o
Rs. 97,575,643/ - has been deferred out of which amount of Rs. 41,838,822/ hud been converted
in to secured lown from Pradeshiya Industrial [nvestment Corporation of UP vide loan
agreement daled dth dated August, 2007 which was duly repaid as per repayment schedule amnd
remaining Rs. 535,730.821/- i shown as wisecured loan. This period has been further extended
by five years vide MDRS scheme of BIFR Order dated 11012002 and the same has been
approved by The Utlar Pradesh Government vide Order  No09/2005/734/77-1-2015-
O1(BIFR) /2002 dated 22-07-2015. The outstanding amount Is 1,27,21,378/- which is reflectdl in
Long Term Borrowing of Rs. 32,03.000/- and Rs. 9518575/ - in Other Financinl Liabilities.

The MDRS has been sanchioned by BIFR vide order dated 118 January, 2012, Promoters have
given a letter of Comfort

BIFR i its lost revicw meeting held on 19102003 reviewed the peport submitbed by the
moniloring Agency DB and observed that the progess of the scheme is Satisfaclory, BIFR,
amaong athers, gave directions ta the Company ta implement the sanctioned dcheme within two
manths.

s
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e}

Motwithstanding afvresaid, these accounts hove been prepaned on geang concern basis as the
cash Josses incunred during the period have been funded by the unsecured loans amd partially
by trade tax deferment. The Company conlinues lo pursue cost culling measures and explore
new avenues for business to achieve better contribution and achieve positive net-worth in the
near future. The Companyis lcing difficully to revive ilsell amd is mcorring further lesses, e
promolers of te Company thought it fil to get its manufacturing business tansferred into Dajaj
Electricals Limited (BEL). As per the Board of Directors of the Company and BIEL, the transfer
and vesting of the manufacturing business of the Company with BEL will enable both the
companies to achieve and fullill their objectives more efficiently and economically. A copy of the
rehabilitotion proposial had been submatbed by the Company W fhe Bench Membees, Mon - 11
Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction, Jawahar Vyapar Bhawan, [, Tolstoy Marg,
Mew Dhathi - 110001, Promoters of the Company have given a letter of comfort to continue thelr
financial and business support to the Company until net-worth of the Company turns positive.
In view of the above, the Financial Staterments have been prepared on the assumption of Going,
Concemn,

Status of Scheme of Arrangement for Demerger of Manufacturing Business of the Company
intu Bajaj Electrivals Limited {BEL)

Duving FY 2015-16, the Board of the Company had approved the praoposal for demoerger of
manufacturing business of the Company into Bajaj Electricals Limited ("BEL"), pursuant to a
Scheme of Arrangement (“Scheme”) uncler Sections 220-232 and other applicable provisions of
the Act.

As the Scheme was nol requited to be filed with the High Courl or T'ril.mn.:d for its approval
when it was approved by the board of directors of both the companies and was required (o be
filed only with BIFR, the provisions of Listing Agreement and SEB[ circulars, in respret of filing
of draft scheme of arngement with the stock exchange(s) / SEBI for ulltuil{lmﬂ Olservation
Lesteer or Mo-Olbjection Letter were ol applicable o BEL (being a lishal entity)

However, subsegquently, with the notificabion of the SICA Repeal Act, the provisions of
Regulation 37 of the Listing Regulations and the SEBI Circulars have become applicalde to BEL
as the Scheme was then revuired o be filed with Tribunal,

BEL has filed the Scheme with stock exchanges, for which the stock exchanges conveyed their
MNe-abjection to BEL and advised BEL to amend the scheme as per their observation letter and 1o
bring the same to the notice of sharcholders and Hon'ble Notional Company Law Tribnosal.

In Seplember 2018, the Company filed an application with the Hon'ble NCLT, Allahabad Branch
("NELT") anud the saome was wegistered by NCLT as CA 350 of 2018, 1o it last hearing held on
December 2018, the Company filed the additional information / documents as direcled by the
NCLT, however, an Order of NCLT directing meetings of the shareholders and creditors of the
Company is still awnited,
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Mobe 4 - Financial Assels

As at As at
Particulars 30Uk September, 2008 | 31st March, 2018
Amount {in Bs.) Amcrunt (in Rs.)
[Ciher Financlal Assets - Unseoered, Considerad Gooil
{Bank Dapesits with more than 12 months maturity
Margin Meney with Bank B15,000.00 £15,000,00
Tuotal 815,000.00 B15,000.00
Mot & - Deferred Tax Assets
A oat Asat

Marticulars

ith September, 2008

st March, 2018

Amount [in Rs.)

Apnount (in Rs.)

Dreterped Tax Assely
Deferned Tax Liabilitiey

IDederresd Tax Liabilities
I'Jl-pl Poalion

Dhefermad Tax Assets

Caratunty Luabality

Other Timing Differences
Section 428 Disallowancoes
Unabsorbed Loss,/ Depreciabion

Tetal Deferred Tax Liabilitics

Todal Deferred Tax Assels

Met Total

190,962 452.00 190,371, 963,00
(8,236, 162.00) (5,522, 864.00)
Y 182,746,290.00 151,519,099,00
(8,236, 162.00) (8,822, 854,00
(8,236, 162.000 (8,822, 864.00)
21,0081, 900.00 21,0891 901.00
1,002 185,00 2300.314.00
52.317.948.00 52,3‘1?,94{3.["]
116,480,418.00 114,652 B0
190 982 45200 190.371,963.00
182, 746,290.00 151,549,099.00

Laxation laws.

5. Deferred tax assels and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they relate to the same governing

5.2 The Company has recognized deferred tax assets arising out of Unabsorbed Depreciation and carried

Forward Business Losses as per the lncome Tax Act, 1961, amounting ko Re 11,64, 80418/ - (Previous Year Ks.
11,46,52800/- as on ﬁlsll'M:n-:h. 2018} on the basis of evidence before [he management that there would be
neleruate taxalide profits in the future which would absorb the said amounts, This includes Rs, 348,19,001/- on
Unabsorbed Deprociation and Rs. 8,16,61 387 /- on carried Forward Business Losses as on 30th Seplembser,
2018, .

A
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Mote 6 - Other Non Current Assets

Particulars

As at
30th September, 2008

As at
Jlst March, 2018

Amount {in Rs.)

Amount (in Bs.)

Advances other than Capital Advances
- Uasecrered, Considered Good

Securnly Deposils

Securily Deposils

Dalances with Revenue Authorilies
Addvance FBT
Advanes Income Tax

Total

3,366,53.00 3A04,716.00

297, 020 29792900
1,154,016.00 1,154, 01 .00
4 51647000 a,856,661,00
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Flonged Laewepres Limated
Metes forming part of e financial shiteinenes
L

MNuote 7 - Inventories

As al

As al
Particulars Hc Seppumibu, Flst March, 2015
2018
| Amount (in Rs.) Amount (in Bs.)
Inventories at the end of the period

Coods in Transit . 1,027 836,73
Finished Goeds 14,456,279.26 25,783,719.18
Faw Material 14,600,459.62 13,219.912.65
fcvps 1,643,088.00 554,626,777
Stock in Trade 2.784,919.52 235145579
Stores and Spares 7.666,724.11 . TA12442.07
Work-in-Progress 271373053 5,270,6682.93
Tatal 43.865,241.03 55,620,676.12

"Details a5 required as per Ind AS Para:

Ihe cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the period in respect of continuing operations
wag 12,2338 563,54/ - (for the Year Ended 31st March, 2008 Bs. 23,11,11,044.58/ )

el AS T Paga 61

Inventaries as shown in balance sheet are espected o be recovened before 12 months at the same value
an whinh they ane revonded excepl for Slow and Non Moving ltems.

The sode of valuation of inventories has been stated in Note Ne. 1 (Significant Accounting Policies) Point Mo, 9

Mote BA - Trade Receivable

Particulars

As at
3h September,
2018

As al
Alst March, 20138

Amount (in Rs.)

Amount (in Bs.)

[Cutstanding for more than 6 month fram e dae date

Unsecured, Considened Goad 15,606, 530,80 8037, 22417
Unsecured, Considered Doubtiul L2, 279.00 102127900
143,625,809.80 9,058 505,17
Liss:- Mrovision for doubilul Delis 1,021, 279.00 1,021,279.00
15,604,530.50 BOGE7 22417
Houtstanding for kess than 6 h

Unsecured, Considersd Good 4400531214 40,07 1,003.70

Unsecured, Considercd Doubtial - -
44,905,.312.14 40,07 1,003.70

Less:- Pravision for doubtfiel Delis - -
44,505 312, 14 40,071,002.70
Total 60,509, 542,94 48,108,227 85
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Mole 81 - Cash and Cash Equivalents

Particulars

Asal
h Seprember,
208

Asal
31st March, 2018

Amount {in Rs)

Armount {in H,'_I-_]_

Cnsh in Fland (A token ad cortified by e memrgement) 263,616.00 55, 130,00
Malanees with Banks
It Crervemd Accorert

Pank of Baroda 5117549 125,143 49

Bank of India (Kosi) 11.199.59 11,.199.59

Cheques in Hangd 54373440 -

T Bank Limitesd {Agra) 67,261.75 67,261.70

12B1 Bank Limited (Mo Lien) 100, 000.00 100, DX30.00

Slate Bank ol India (Shikohabad) 2644850 26448.50
e

Gl Connes 3689200 36, 802.00

Trmsprrest - Poshipe 5,232.00 53,00

Total 1,145, 55073 42743233
Mote 8C - Other Financial Assels
. Asat
As al
: 30th September,
Particulan T Py
arliculars 2018 3= March, 2014
Amount (in Bs.) Amount (in Re)

Chher Financial Assets - Llnsecured, Constdered Good
Bonk Deposits with rity

FLYR with Bank A3,872.00 1,353,975.00

Tuotal 33LETZ00 1,253,975.00




Mote 8 - Current Tax Assels

Ay at

As at
Particulars g 1 5:;:; i Fsl March, 2018
Amount (in Bs.) Amount (in Bs)
JCurment Tax Asscts
Benefil of tax losses to be carried back Lo recover taxes paid in
prior pericds )
s Befund Beceivable 509.020.77 5054729
599.920.77 SO5.872.95
Current Tax Liabilites
Income Tax Payvable -
Total B 920,77 50587293
Mote 10 - CHlwer Current Assets
Asal
As al
. 30th Seplember,
Particulars J E
a8 Jst March, 2015
Amount [in Hs.} Amount (in Ks.)
Aclvance other than Capital Advances
Cither Aidpunees - Ungcinsd, Cemsidersd Good
Advance Recoverable in Cash or kind -
(Refer Sult Seedule - A ) Tanhr) A
Advance to Suppliers - To Others 3,707 43496 3,757 45971
1 3 4 v
Cenvat Credit of Service Tax 128,621.00 128,621.00
Deferred lopnat COST = 45,000.00
Dedereed I 1l SGST . 5 N O
GST on Advance Receipls. 100, 703,08 134,633 50
TS Revoverable - From Parties . 10, 953,00
orher Receivable
Inerest Beceivalile on Deposits Q42 388.00 93564300
Total 5,614.5271.54 6,275,063.21
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MNote 11 - Equity

A) Bruily Share Capital

s al
LLE]
Panticulas Mh 5;;1:;-11!":;. st March, 20
Amount (i Bs.) Aawonaf (i B}
a) Aoaibivrisad Sl Cagrita)
= 000 Equity Shiares of Rs. 25/ - each with voling nights 1B, B0 O FG(, OO, COL
% Coumulative Redeemalile Preforence Shares of Bs. 25/~ per share 10, 0060, 000, 00 10,0000, CHLO0
¥ R ' s
::ﬂ!::]nn Participating Redeemable Freference Sares of Bs, 15/ per 0,000,000, £0,000.000.00
br} Issnied, Subrscribed and Fully Paid Up Capital
L UUARKD Bty Showres of Rx. 25/ - each with voling rights 150,000,000 TEAL IR IN LN
Total «L 50,000,000,00 150, U CIDHLANE
Farfier Phostesss (i) oafia) Telona
Fobes:
(i Feconciliation of the number of shares and amost obstaoding al the beysimmnings v at the end of e weporting period:
Particulirs Opening Fresh lsstre Closing
Balance fRedeem) Halance
Eauity shares with vating rights :
Yorar encled 3108 March, 3018
= Number of shares 6,000,000 L
= Amoumntfin Ps.) 1 STLAMIL EMOL, 00 150,000,000,00
Period ended 30h September, 2018
Bdumlser of shan=s 6,000,000 s, AL, ENMN
= Amriand{in K H50,000.000.00 150, 000, 000,00

(i) Termsy' Rights attached to I‘-.qlﬂl}r Shares

oavipany, the bolders of equity
pbs, The ifistei q

2l 1

The company has only single class of equity shares having, par value Rs. 25/ each. Each holder of eguity shares s entiffed For one voly)
pror sture. Shareholders have right w participate in the dividends{if any) dectansd on that vlngs of share. In U cvent of liguidation of he
of the compary, after distribution of all preferential

T +




il Lateaigrs it
Motes forming part of the ffenchal hatenicts

{1ik} Details of shares held by each shareholder holding muore than 5% shares:

Class of shares / Mame of shareholder

Number of
shares held

e 0l
Shareholding

Exqquity shares with vaeling rights

Az at 31st March, 20015
Bachhraj and Company Privale Limited 7N 11.29%)
Bagaj Electricals Limibed 1, 1400 15.000%
Baroda Industries Private Limited 1,170,000 10.50%
| Jammnalal Sons Frivale Linnibesd A%, ) 8.25%
| s Geetika Bajag 1 1AL 19.50%
Sant. Kiran Pajaj 1,170,000 10,50%)
As al L) T
Bachihrag aned Company Private Limited 7S, 000 11.25%
Hajaj Flctricals Limited 1,240,000 100
Harouda Tivdusiries Privabe Limdbed 1,070,000 14.501%
lammalal Sons Private Limited 495,000 H.25%
his. Creelika Bajaj 1,170,000 19.50%
Sl Kiram Bajng [JI'_'.‘il,‘l_,_l:[[] 19.50%

Mote; As per e records of the company, including its register of shareholder/ mombers and other declarbions received From the
larchulilers reganding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents bath legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

118 - Other Equity
Avat Asal
Particulars i sig'l';“’b"" st March, 2018
Armount (In Re) Anmount (in Bs.)
1} Heserve & Snrplus ;
Capital Bresere F2. 100,000, 00 52, 100,000,00
Secarthivs Premimm Acconnt 2, X000 2, 200, 000
Reetained Harming (P & 1) (96, 657, 475 B ) {906,757 239197
Revalualion Surplus 64,170, 122 .00 6,170, 1 22,00
Cither ltems of Other Comprehensive Income (8,797,59459.00) {023, 207 00)
Tl (854, 985,302, 5] (796,910.4 76,97
i} Crihrs - Cther Bouity
Redeemable Preference Shares T3 STRA43.00 TLETS 400
Loan from Bajaj Electricals Linted® 115, 20LAXK100 115, 200,000,000
T 138,775, 443.00 138 775 443.00
Grand Total {71, 204, 354.54) {660, 135,033.97)

*Mntes Loan fronn Bajaj Electricals Limited is troated as other equity as there is neither an intent from the lending company o expectation
Lo demand repayment nor there i3 any intention to seitle it irrespective of whwether the company is able to repay the same or nol,

Q.
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Mule 12A - Borrowings

As at As at
Particulors 30th September, 2018 st March, 2018
Amaount (in Bs) Amount {in B}
Linsacu s
Wb b Parbies
Candour Fincan Private Limited (Refer Mote A 10, G O, 1100, 00, 0000
Diefierped Trade Tax (Refer Nobe B) 3,203, (00,00 1203553700
Embay Appliances Private Limited (Refer Mote C) B8,074,939.00 BEU74, 93500
Kallnga Fixtures Private Limited (Refer Mote D) 25, 000, 000,00 5, O D0,
Konsrk Fixtures Linated (Refer Mote E) 35,000,000,00 + 3R, 000, (00, 00
Uthal Electrcals Private Limited (Refer Mote F) 7.50:0,000.00 7,500, 000.00
1
Mon Participating Bedgamable Proference Share Capital
25,00,000 shares of Rs, 25/ - cocl (Refer Note G) 80,497, 285,00 76,481,585, 00
Total 259,275, 228.00 294,002,461.00
Terms & Comdilions:
A Candour Fineon Private Limited ) Deferdd Trade Tax
1, Malune & Unsecured 1. Mature - Unsicured
2. Interest = Interest W13.00% 2 Interest = Interast Free

3. Repayment == The Loan is repayable in 5

ER = T ipulated
epayment ;- There is no stipulated repayment schedule Annual Installment as per sanctioned MDRS

Between the partios.

by BIFR.
W0-00-2016 of Rs, 5,651,628/ -
U-0-2017 of Rs. 26,675,460/ -
30-09-2018 of Rs. 10,688,355 -
30-09-201% of Rs. 9,518,278/ -
30092020 of R, 3,203,100/ -
L
) Bmbay Appliances I"_tg'rl'.'_.\ie Limiited D} Kalinga Fixtures Private Limited
1. Mature - Unecuned 1. Mature :- U ped
2, Interest - Interest Rate @13.00% 2. Interest i~ Interest Rate @13.00%
3. epayment = There is no stipulated repayment schedube(3. Repaymant =There is no stapuilisted
baiween the partics. repayment schedule between the parties
1) Konark Fistures Limited F) Electricals Private Limited
1. Malure = Unsecured 1. Mature := Unsecurad
2. Interest - Interest Rate @03.00% 2, Interest - Interest Rabe §013.00%
3. Repayment = There is no stipulated repayment schedulel3. Bepayment = There i no stipulated
biztweien e parbes repayment schedule between the parties,
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o) Termsf Rights attached to Preference Shares

ol the company prierte the suwity shareholders,

The company hag two class of preference shares out of which only single class of preference shares having
par value Bs. 25/ cach are isswed. The preference shares are "Non Participating Redeemable Mreference)
Shares” redeemable at the end of 10 years from the date of issue with a premium of Rs. 20/~ per share. Each
holder of preference shares, in the event of the liguidation of he company, will be entitled to receive assels

Ml 13 - Poovisions

As at As al
Particulars 30th September, 2018 | 31st March, 2018
Amount {in Bs) Aamrnl (in fs )
i ¢ Empl 5 [ its
Comprensatend Absenges 5.615,514.00 9.749,082.00
Grraluity 55.319,230.00 M BI5T14000
PF Interest Cuaraniee 21,385,781.00 21,385,781 .00
CHber Provision

Inlerest Fayable on Deferred Trade Tax BEF. 541,06
Total B5,520,625,.00 56,636,4158.00

131



Hinvil Laegy Laneeted
Nutes frrmiry prel of Hie fiagneinl stateienls

Mote 14A - Borrowings

As at -
porttculars 30th Seprember, 315t March, 2018
2018
Amount {in Bs.) Amount {in Bs.)
|Loans repayable pn Demand
fSecured - From Bank
Carhi Ceddit
Bank of Baroda, Agra I5.914,175.09 24,447 205,29
Fank of Baroda, Shikohabad (14.374,356.20) 5,239.161.26
Bank of India 4.336,500.30 486864820
Bank of India, Shikohabad T4, 87,0, 11 14,923, 732.61
Tatal 30,96:4,310.34 49,478, 747,46

%: Terms & Cenditions for Cosl Credit

1, Nakure : Secured

2, Securily - The Loan is secured by hypothecation of stores, stock in trade, book delts and all ather current
assels and first charge on all immovable properties.

4. Repayment :- On Demand

Mutbe 101 - Trade Payable

e As at
Particulars UL Septamby; st March, 2008
206
Amount {in Rs.) Amount (in Rs.)
Due toe Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 4,144 314.77 -
Oithers ' 92,969,536.12 85,643, 765,01
Total 97,114,250.89 #9,643,765.61
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Mote 140 - Other Financial Liabilities

Farticulars

As at
30th September, |,
2018

As at
31st March, 2015

Amcunt fin [s.)

Adnount {-ll‘l s j i

Other Current Liabilities
iy Current Maturities of Long-Term Delbt

n} Defereed Trade Tax 5,054,082.00 3, R, S0
it Interest Accrued d& due on borrowlings 44,465, 304.00 35.431,938.00
[rade Advance - From Related Party
i Eleclocals Lomited 1 15,800,000.00 6700, 000,00
Total 165,319, 386,00 19,341,835.00
Mate 15 = Other Current Liabilities
As at
As at
Particulars A0th 5:;:;'" ber, A1st March, 2018

Aumount {in Bs.)

Amount (in FBs.)

Uther Current Lialsilitics

Revente Received in Advance (Advance from Custonmers) 1,292 37640 709,551 53
Other Statulory Liabilities Payable (Befer Sub-Schedule - B) 245,687,008.24 2223 em
Oiher Liahilities Pavable (Reler Sub-Schedule - O) 17,634 463,596 15,392,062.00
Total 264,613,543.05 2406,333,618.54
Mote 16 - Provisions
As at
As at
Particulars M ERplepby dist harch, 2018
2018
Amount (in Rs.) Amount (in Ks.)
Provisions for Empluyees Benefits
Compensated Absences 1,504,482.00 1,778,597 .40
I.__;r.lll.lil_nr' 10,500, 550 00 10,960,045.00
PF Intereat Guarantes 298,364.00 298.264.00
Total 12,303,836.00 13,037,006.00
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Suly Schedule A - Advances Recoverable in cagh or kind

As at As at
PParticulars A0th Septemboer, 2008 Jst March, 2018
Amount (in Bs.) Amount (in Bs.)
Coupons - Canteen 94,162.00 123,824.00
lmprest - Abhishek Upadhayay - 1000000
Imprest - Ajay Kumar 131.00 -
Tmprest - Deepak Ohari 1,000.00
lmprest - Gopal Singh Gurang 710,00
Imprest - Han Kishan Yadav 2,818.00 -
Imprest - Manish Pathak 748900 11,818.00
Imprest - Prem Niwas Sharma 5,075.00
Imprrest - Shiyam Sharma 17,210.00 -
Imprest - Sulir Datla 28,166.00 -
Imprest - Vijay Singh Jadon 240100
Imprrest - Transil House - 3,000, UL
Prepaid Expenses 576,712.00 156,563.00
Tatal 73587500 3(!.5,.2115.[]“
Sub Schedule B - Other Statutory Liabilibics
- As at As at
Particulars 30th September, 2018 st March, 2018
Amount (in Rs.) Amount (in Rs.)
C.T.D. Payable - 4,000.00
Central Sales Tax - 354,614 45
ES1, Contribubion £24,840.00 471,286.00
Employee Provident Fund (Excluded) 679,387.00 G2, 060,00
Employes Provident Fund (Exempted) 192,176,917.67 143,617 930,00
Employee Provident Fusd (Exempted) Loan 42,791,080.00 F1,083,155.00
Employee Provident Fund (Exempled) Vol 117,272.00 112,193.00
Entry Tax Payahle - 12,014.00
Excise Duty - B78,89.32
Excise Dutly Payable Finished Goods - 2.811,937.00
Family Pension Fund Account 0962,778.00 542, 184,00
Gratuity Fayable - 3177,.2346.00
Group Saving Linked Insurance 101,410,040 105,187.00
IGST Payable 4,344, 520,78 =
Krishi Kalyan Cess - 5,316.00
LLC. Deduction 532,162 42 57257720
ILF. Interest 84771330 £20.713.00
Service Tax - 145,832.00
Swach Bharat Cess Payable - 5316,00
TCS (Tax on Scrap Sale) 1,288.78 235700
TOS Payable 2,307 532,35 2,162,520.00)
LI Vat - 69,498.01
Tatal 245,657,008,29 187,579,935.99




Suby Sehedule C - Other Liabilitles

Asal . Asal
Particulars J0th September, 2018 Hst March, 2016
Armount {in Rs.} Aamonnt (in s )
Audvance lon 'l'h'l'l.'f.'"inuﬂI 18,045.9G 25,085.00
Arrear ["ayable 28.659.00 .
Freagik lnwand Pavalile - 15,500.00
Impreat Account FIO 180,000.00 48 44800
Leave Encashment Payalle - ¢
L absilithes For Expremas 1,964,065 (0 220877 L0
Crvertime Payalile 10,622.00 9,385,00
Provision For Donus VR BYR00 6,248, 35 ()
Provisien For Bonus (Kosi) - "3 AGE)
I'rovision Por Expenses 154, 87000 155, 412.00
Salary & Wages Payable 6,911,261.00 7,114,795.00
Temple Donation 106,596,00 793300
Uippaid Bonus Account Tenth, el (X 1715880
Uinpuaid Salaries & Wages 162,177.00 162, 177.00
Tutal 17.633,463.9% 16, 292,963,040
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Merlees formniog part of e fnencal shalements

Mute 17 - Revenoe From Operationgs

Particulars

For the period ended
Jith Seplember, 2018

For the peciod ended
30th Seplember, 2017

Amount (in Rs.)

Amount (in Ks.)

Sales of Producks

Caps 37,989, 430.64 50 A6, 588 26
lamps 128,400,435.00 115,511, 75400
. Kits 10384,937 40 -
Sale of Traded goosds 12,777 506.00 B, 158,473 04
189.552.509.24 180,533 816 80
Al Exose Daty® 709124783
Met Sales 189,552,200.24 1848, 225,064.63
Sale of Services
Inceme from Manpower Supply - = 1743000
17.430.00
Oriher Crperating Revenues
Serap Sales B.208,037.17 15,686 576, 4)
Andli- Excise Duty® - 43,7 16
828802717 16,180,374 46
Total 197,840,33¢.41 204,422 869,09
*Refier Mot No, 1 of Notes lo Accounts
Mote 18 - Other Income
For the period ended Far the period ended
Particulirs 30th Septembeer, 2008 | 30¢h Svptember, 2017
Amound {in Rs.) Mmoot {in Ry}
Interest [ncome
Interest Income 81,797 40 4 211.526,00
Qther Non-Operaling Income
Deemed Government Grant 816,313.00 1,734,825,00
Miscellaneous Income 685,508,353 BA6,869.91
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 70137200 21,130,
Township Income 442 56710 492,970,
Total 2,727,557.83 3,307,327.81
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Mates forning part of the fisrrcial statemerits

MNature of Grant - Grant in the form of Income (As per Ind AS 20 Para 104)

Extent of Grant - Grant for the period of UI-U4-2018 to 20-08-2018 is of Rs, 816,313/ {Tor the Periad of 01 m
2017 bo 30-09-2017 Ry, 17,34,825/4-) recognised in profit & loss.

‘Mote- Grant is in the form of Deferment in payment of Trade Tax Liability without payment of interesl,
Govennument Grant is recognised in Other Incomes & expenses against the same are recorded in Finance Costs as
per Ind AS 20, However, no such grant is actually received or no such expenses have been paid during the year,
Total Amount of Grant (benefits of a Government Loan at a Nil rate of interest) is Rs.*1,13,89,560/-,

Mote 19 - Cost af Raw Material Consumed

Particulars

For the period ended
A0th September, 2018

For the period ended
A0th September, 2017

Amount {in Rs.}

Amount {in Fs)

Raw Material and Component Consuned
Raw Material and Components®

O8,539,788.30

108,567, 519.25

Tutal

08,534, 758,30

104,367,5819.25
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Apvaierire forneieng et of e feaeoiod stalerments

Detail of Raw Material and Component Consume:d

For the period ended For the period ended
Particulars A0th September, 2008 30th September, 20017
Amount {in Es.) Amount {in Hs.)
Aluminmm Strip 20,807,755.89 30 229.050.26 |.

Arc Tube 8861, 76390 BSY7 61735
Brass Strip 2,632 508,60 293408147
Filamant 11,715,:351.01 11,997, 76207
Glass Tubes 3,790,400.00 9.332,315.15
Othrs 32 141,212.21 16, 190,816,858
Shell 18,060, 793,57 18,106, 146,07
Tatal 98,534, 758,30 108,307, 519.25

oneils Consumed

Details of Indigenous & Imported Raw Material consumed during the Period:

Parbiculars

For the period ended
A0th Seprembeer, 2008

For the perind ended
3Mth Septembaer, 2007

Amount (inRs) %

Amount (in Bs.) kS

Comsumesd during the Period

Indigenous 919877815 91.54% 101,030, 362.61 93.23%
T gl E3L010.15 B.A6% 7337 450,64 0.77%
Total 98,539,795.30 | 100.00%|  108,367,519.25 | 100.00%
CLF, Value of Tnports
For the period ended Tor the period ended
Tarticulars 30th September, 2018 dth September, 2017
Amoinl (in Rs.) Amont (in Ks.)
L LE, Value of Imports
Raw Material 7108 40794 0,005, 17617
Total 710840794 4,985,176.17

®
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Mote 20 - Purchase of Stock In Trade (Traded Gools)

Farticulars

For the period cnded
3th September, 28

P the period ended
b Seplember, 2007

Aamamumi {in Ha )

Aanaand (i e

Mlaterial amd CHhier Tradsd Gosnls 11436, 307 89 5,560,804 14
Total 1143630789 | © 1,566, 509.14
Marles 21 - Manufacturing Expenses .
For the peried eoadedd | For e |'wn'n|.i ended
Particulars 30th September, 2008 | 30th September, 2007
Amsount (in ey Amounk {im Bs§
Comsumplion of Siones & Spans AT R385.13
Electricity Expenses 843008241 9651 823,59
Poveer & Pl 12127 417,98 125,923,061
Ttal 21,121, 198,66 22,386, 132.63
Mote 22 - Changes In Im;znturics
For the period ended | For the perfod ended
Farticulars 3iMh Seplembres, 2008 | 300h Septamber, 2007
Amonnt {(in Ra) Amount (in Bs)
Chwening, Stock of Finisled Goods 25,785,718 A, 72800
Chpening Stock, of Screpe Material R4 62677 147, 558,21
Crpening Stock of Traded Geoods 235145579 FA AT AW
Orpening Stock of Werk i Progness 5270 682 03 211066216
Excize Duly on Finkshed Goods - LE1L937.00
0,960, 161  TABLZBb.0E
Clovsing Slock of Finishuml Gonsds T AG, 279,26 5,931,550,
Closing Steck of Scrap Material L4088 00 4,197, Tl GG
Clesing Stock of Traded Goods L7H.99.52 A6 BAT T
Cloging Stock of Work in Progress 271373053 MBS
Fxciss Duty on Finished Goods - LE11,.437.00
2156801731 A7, 06,155,601
Chanpe in Imeentories 12 32 AGT.AG I:ﬁ,ﬂmﬁ-gjp
Auldf {Lessh-Difference in Excire Dty on Finished Goods - -
Mot (Increase) f Decrease in Inventories 12,362,467.35 (6,023, 866,69 .
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Mote 21 - Fmployees Beoefifs Bxpenses

L

For the period endisd

Far thegreriod omded

Partirular

Abth Seplemiber, 2018

Marticulars 30th Seplember, 2018 | 308k Seplember, 207

Amount (in Rs.) Samanund {in Ha}
Borus 1,860,126 00 1,839,160 1N)
Contribution o EPF 1303315767 45408, 77AK
Centribution Lo ES1 1,665,013.00 2,007 84700
Conbribution 1o Grataity Fund 1. 388AG2.00 6.774.505.00

Coniribstisan 1o Pension Fumd - n
Gironp Insurance Against EDLE LT B12,0040.00
L Encishuinnl 1521 ATE ) B2B 444,00
Leawrs Travel Commession BEL. TR 2207, 12000
Mampower Sapply Begeivisd - 762, 1900K
Salnriey & Wages {Hufur Sub Schedula - D) 49,297 D68 Bk AYF2L 670
Stall Welkire Expeavass (Refer Sul-Schadule - E) 501.167.18 4R 94082
Total | 71,039, 805.44 09,999, 105,42

Slode 24 - Finance Cosl
For the peried enided | For e peried ended
Particulars 30th September, 2018 | 30th September, 2017
Aanount (in Rs) Aok {in B )
Bank Charyres RS0 288,977,753
Inberest™ . 19ATASLT.28 18.546,532.61
Tnterest Theemvm] on Deterred Trade Tax® El16314.00 1,7 82500
Tnberiest on Bedeemable Profenemce Shanag* 410155064, 00 34033, 700,10
Tuotal 25,004, 63538 24,64 AR5, 30
" Bifureation of Interest Expense as por Ind AS

For the period ended | For the period ended

H0h Seplembaer, 2007 |

Aumur'w_iirTH:;'] Aumount (in Bs)
|Contining Operativns
luterrs Coste
Istesresl iy Ilnnl: Ovendrafts andd Loans (Other than those from 2785 860,00 5 12087500
Helated Parbiss)
Inberest on Losres Irom Belated Parties 571419028 A5 A66.00
Inberest on utlli@!iunyumh-r Friance Leases = =
Other Interest Expense 15400, 123,001 15,728,774.01
24,300, 174.28 24.315,117.61

Todal Interest Expense for Financial Linbilifies not clossified s ot 24.306,174.25 Sy s, 117 61
FVTFL ; g
Less- Amoumns included in e cost of Qualifying Asses

Tubal 24,306,174.28 2431511700




Mate 25 = Other Expenses

For the prrirul ended

For the period enided

Particulars 30th September, 2018 | 30th Seplember, 207
| Aamoumt (in Bs) Ammsonend {in Bs)
Canteen Expenses BBE5T7 56 BES,TI815
[Hiscomnt 70,066, 00 TE0132.66
Insuramee 230.031.00 ST7.604.00
Lazasar Rienik = 528.750.00 552.824.02
Lames om sitle of Fixel Assols = 104, 979,00
Misedlanerms Exprenses {Hefer Sub-Schedule - F) 4, 262.517.90 ATELSI9 M
Pacldg Maberinl ol Q.778,500 1 151114155
[yt b Awditors 25, (000
Rates f Toxes UF .23 M7 HELAS
Repair Building 285 350,33 LHID TS, LN
|1q‘.|:l.l.r Ma:l:meq,' 2717, 71887 2AXLORDSS
Tutal 19,570,607.14 AT, BSR4
Mnbefi)
For the period ended | For the period ended
Parbiculas INh September, 2018  30th Senl!mbcr, am7
| Aurnount {in Bs.) Aot {in Bs )
(i} Paywrents to Lhe auditors comprises:
Statutory Audit Mee -
T Audit Fer . -
Others Prisfessional batters 2500000
Fanmbursement of Eupenses -
Tustal 25, (KL -
Lease it claggified ag Operating Lease®
For the period ended | For the period ended
Particulars 3N September, TAB | 3Mh Seplemben, 2007
Auncuant {in o) Amuouni (in Hs.)
Rent recognised in Profit & Loss Accounts IR 7500 S5 &2
Total 528, 750,00 552.830.32
I2etails of Puture Mininivm Leage Rentals are as follows:
For the perlod ended | Por the '|.Err||1|| endead
Farticulas 0th Septembar, 2008 | J0th Segtember, 2017
Aanenint {in Bs. ﬁ.m-.?l.; nl {in Re,)
Fur a perdod nat later than one year Mo, 000.00 48168400
For a preriosd later than one year but nol later than five years 16,000.00 654, 750,00
Total 912, N 1,136, 4H400
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Mate 26 - Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars

For the period ended
3Mh Septembres, 2018

For the period ended
AMh Septembrer, 207

Apnount (i B}

Aanoml [in [{s-_]

A (1) Iteme that will not be revlassified to Profit & Loss
Eemapsurement gaing (ksses) on definesd benefit plans

Grratulty 1120448 00 6,543,688,00
Leave Rocashament 1,520,005 00 2,15, 530,00
2L ATO0 B, 739.178.00

(i) Evcome tax relating to itiems that will not be neclassatied to profit
o bost {Deferred Tax Assadts) (#16.21500) i (-T0.406.00}
Total Other Comprehensive income wel of Layes 1,825,258.00 "_ 6,038, T72.00

B {i} Mg Uhat will be reclassilied to Peofit & Loss
Remensurement gains (logses) on defined benefit plans
Ciratuity
Lewve Encashmaent

{id) rwome b redatingg 1o deok that will be revlassafiod b profitor
hoss

Total Cther Comprehensive income nel of taxes




Hungl Luenges Lienaledd
Sl Sedwerliles foreisie gt of the Finaneial Shitesients

Sub Schedole [V - Salaries & Wages

Far the period ended For the perod ended
Particulars A0h September, 2018 A0th Seplember, 27
Amount (in Bs.) Amount {in Bs.)
Assmbily Cha e T A 208,300,
Salary & Wages {Kosi) - -
.r"l.'ll.‘ll:,.' Adlmuinisteation Bo5, 925,00 A0, 2400500
Galary Cap G09,255.00 #25,595.00
Salary COC 130,504.00 9178700
Salary Gevweral Maintenance 181,654.00 14658200
Salary Housing & Fstate 1514,304.00 FH)ADOLO0
Salary Lamp 190, 306,00 2,7, 687.00
falary Management 325,857 00 6,715,190.00
Salary Medical 74.6%3.00 =5,650,00
Salary Power House T9.712.00 4477 )
Salary Stock Keeping 185, 143.00 17362200
Salary Workshop 157 409,00 12831200
Wages Administration 75,190.00 10662900
Wages C.O.C 1.554.846.00 1.779,644.00
Wages Cap 8,7 16563.00 11.062,719.00
Wages Drivers 3 33,267.00
Wages General Mainlenance 1,700,575.00 2,452,339.00
Wages Housing & Estate L796,741.00 2,300,089.00
Wages Lamp 14,775,9520.00 14,%66,096.00
Wages Medical 72595200 58,195.00
Wages Power House 703, 265.00 (29, 346.00
Wages Store Transport ZE21L655.80 1.184.885.00
Wages Warkehop 24571300 2.360,683.00
Total 49,297,068.80 49,721, 267.00
Sub Schedule E - Staff Welfare
For the period ended For the period ended
Particulars 30th September, 2018 Alh Seplember, 207
Amount (in Bs.) Amount {in Rs.)
il Account 3.354.00
Long Service Award - 61,348.09
Medical Expenses 31.734.91 17 58549
Medical Reimbursement 7128500 rnzm
Office Expenses 122,848.00 85,1310
[fecriitment Expenses 4,308.00 3,026.00
Stalf Cost AN,753.29 75,300.00
Staft Training Expenses = :

Uniform 69, 238.00 176,733.24
Tutal 501,167.18 498,949.52
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Sub Schedule F- Miscellancous FExpenses

Particulars

Fer the period ended
30th September, 2008

For the period ended
3Mh Seplember, 2007

Amount (in Bs.)

Amount (in Bs.)

Addvertisement 1,535.00 4.560,00
Books amd Periodicals JA494.00 GUEO0
Brokerage & Commission - 2‘.?,1,[!_],[1}
Cleaning Charges = S0
Calibratiom Charges 1, 540, 00 B0, 00
Commitment Clharges 43,308.00
Compuler Expenses i
Consultancy Charges 17216211 31,875.00
Conveyance Charges G, BB T.0X) 4,389.00
Courier Charges - BS0.00
Cyrle & Seooter Charges 82,000.00 £2,000.00
Entertainment Expenses 1,7 200 1.085.00
Lxchange Rate Fluctuation 454, 410.88 -
Featival Celebration Expenses - 1256500
Freight Cutward 745,968.68 UL A 00
CGeneral Charges 1021074 22,.902.00
Holel Expenses - 26,271.00
Insurance Fund Administration Charges 1,783.00 1.910.0
Internet ond Installation Charges - 11.350.00
Krishi Kalyan Cess R 16,271.50
Laboratory Expenses 270,00 413.00
Legal and Professional Expenses Hho4,6E0.00 B 720,00
Loading & Unloading Charges 0, 30.00
Membership, Technical & Busimess Servioe 142,133.00 4, 0000
Miscellaneous Balances Writhen CFF 453310014 188, 264.03
Miscellaneous Expenses 2.310.00 1g73.00
Office Expenses 45,157.00 ITATIO0
Pesticide Expenses 102,450.00 IGSER.00
FF Inspection Charges H,075.00 8,713.00
Postagye and Courier 6, 86800 +,757.00
Printing and Stationery Expenses 11240552 95,724.68
Fepmr and Maintenanee 90.541.20 0.025.60
Retainership 152,313.00 141,300.00
Bound Off - 7.65
Securily Charges - 367,638.00
Surveillmnee Chorges - 1800000
Swach Bharat Cesy - 1627150
Tata Mint Fitness Fees - 1.050.00
Taxi Charges 36,505.00 9.130.00
Telephone Expenses A8 42079 55,275.00
Tempo Road Tax . 433500
Testing Expenses 20,000.00 ZL300.00
Travelling Expenses 493, 660,00 Z15A06,00
Vehicles Expenses 202,053.24 147,356.00
Water Charges 17,500.00 T0,000.00
Waods Account 7,.500.0K) 139.6760.00
Total 4, 262,517.30 3,754.519.96
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Mote 27 = Disclosures under Ind AS (Earning Per Share)

Particulars

Earnings per share

Basic

a  [Continuing Operalions

Met Loss for the period from continuing Operations attributable
1o the equity sharcholders

Weighted average mumber of squily shares

Far value per share

Earnings per share from Continuing Operations - Basic

b |Discontinued Operations

Met Loss for the period from  Discontinued  Operations
lattribytakble (o the egquity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares

Par value per share

Earnings per share from Discontinued Operations - Basic

¢ [ lutal Clperations
Mt Loss for Hwe period allribatalbile te the equity shareholders

Weighted average mamber of equity shares
I"ar value per share
Earnings per share - Basic

Diluted

The diluted earnings per share has been computed by dividing,
the Met Loss after Tax available for Equity Sharcholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares, after giving dilutive
cffect of the cutstanding Warrants, Stock  Options  and
Convertible debentures.

d JContinuing Operations

MNet Loss for the period attributable 1o the equity shareholders
[rom conbinuing Operations

Add: Tnterest expense and exchange fluctuation on convertible
bomcds{net)

Loss attributable to equily sharehokders from  continuing,
Operations{on dilution)

Welghted average number of equity shares for Basic EPS

Add: Effect of warrants, ESOPs and Convertible bonds which
are dilutive )
Weighted average number of equity shares - for diluted EPS

Par value per share

Earnings per share, from continuing Operations - Diluted

For the period ended | For the period ended
30th September, 2018 | 30th September, 2017
(57, 51081 5 (56,732, B6.25)
G000 £, N, IXH)
25.00 2500
(2.65) {9.45)
3,00, 00 £, (0, C
25.00 25,00
(57,500,081 .52) (56,73, 4500, 75)
6,000,000 &, 1000, D00
25.00 .00
(2.63) 9.40]
(57,900,081 .9 (56, 732,826,25)
(57.900,051.92) {56, 731,826.25)
3,000,000 6,000,000
3, L0, D) 2,000,000
25.00 25.00
[9.65) {9.an)|
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Discontinued Operations

Mol Loss for the period attribmtable to the equity shareholders
From Dascontinued Operations

Add: Intorast expense and oxchange fluctuation on convertitile
Bonds{net)

Lo attrilmatalile o l_‘t'lllitjl sharmcholders from  Discoptinued
Chpreralions{on diluln)

Weighted average number of equity shaves for Basic EPS

Aded; Effect of warrants, ES0M" and Conwvertible bonds which

are dilutive
Weighted average number of equity shares - for diluted EP'S
Par valoe per share

Earnings per share, from Discontinued Operations - Diluted

Total Operaticns

Mot Lisss for the period attributable ta the equity sharcholders

Al Inferest expense and exchange Muctwation on convertibbe
berrls{met)

3, D0, O i, AL, L)
5, EAD, DK £, CH, D
2500 25.00

(57 S00,081,92) (56,732,826, 25)]

Laoss attributable o equity shareholders{on dilution) (57,500,081 92} (G, 232 826 25
Welghted average number of equity shares for Basic EI'S 000,000 £ 00, 0K
Add: Elect of Worrants, ESOPs and Convertible bends which

are dilutive

Weighted average mumber of eguity shares - for ditubed EFS £, N, [N 0, 000
Par value per shafe 250 2500
Earnings per shoare - Diluted (9,65 (946




i I
Dioles frovanary paed f M Fveurcval stefeimenis

Suole 2H: Employee Kenefils
Disclosisses as per Ind AS - 19 “Employes Denalits”

Employes Bencfits Expense (Includel in Stat

ol Frofit & Loss & other Comprehensive Income)

For the year ended

(LT

For the prrirul ended
Farticular 3h Septemnler, 2018 Mt March, 2018
Ampaiant (i Ha) Amownt {in Ka.j
Salaries and Wages A9, 297 008, 0 1015 14.905.00
Crmbribuation to Provident and Ciher Ponds ¢ 16,008 238 46 R T N
LKA T 0 72020 Y
Leave Encashment Bxpenses = - (300, 1440
Leave Travel Conomsion AELTIR 241321000
Hlall erl!um!il.[u-rm S0 167 1R 1,004, 10). 74
5,798, 302,44 147,114, 443,71

* This figure inchudes Provision for Gratilty amounting to Rs, 268,005/- (Frivious Year Endod on 31st Saech, 20018 Reversal of
Poviewm of Fa 27,0757-) ool of which amount of actuaral fain Sloss on remeasurement i mecopmisd onder aiher
comprehensive moosmie as per the vequirement of Ind AS-19 and balanes figire is shown as employes lenelil expenses anider

staternant of profit & loss

** This figure includes the reversal of Provision for Leave Baaslunent amounting o Bs 1074538/ (Previous Period Bnded 3sl
Blarch, K provision amonnting to Rs. 450702/ was made), out of which amoanl of achearial gain floss on remessurement is
regnsed mader other comprehenaive income as per the requitemnt of [ AS-19 amd Lalance Figures i shown as employes

Lritafit o perdes upder stafement of profit & loss

Gttty and other fost-duysho nent benefii gl

Drefined Benelit Mans

Amorint recognized in Hve stalemnent of prdil and Less in respect of gratuliy cost

dafined bovefit plan) is an fullows:

For the period ended | For the year ensded
Pariicular Hith Seplember, 2008 | 3t March, 2018
Amounk (i Bs) Amannt {in it )
ratuity Cost
Bervioe Cost 1T RIAT.ON AMLETLO0
et areneest oy et defined Ihbl}lily," (s} AL 147 555, T
Tte-mensurement = Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss mecoginend in GC (1,120, 4R 00) (8,050, 218.00)
Met Gratuity Cost 2. 950.K16.00 8, ST )
Tterest Rate B1% 7A5%
.00 0%

Salpry Increase

The enlimates of future salary ereases, coveddered in actunrial valuation, takes into scoount mflation, seniarity, premotion gisl
wllier nelevanl Fackors such as supply and demoml fnctoes in the employment market,

The expectid rebien on Plan Assees is based on expoctation of the average long term rate of retiurn expected on investaients of (he

Tupnal during, e estimabed berm ol the oldigations,

o
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The InllnwrnE table sots oark thie sinlus of the prabity plan

For the period ended % For the yoar endod
TMarticular 30th Seprember, 2018 st March, J1R
Aot (in M) Amaund (i Fs}
i ; fit Ciblgat
Oiligotims af the beginming of e period 63,775, 757N 0,05, RN DN}
Service Uil L2 AIILETLI
Interest Cost A 4T.00 458,703, 00
Tenelils Sefiled {22 M 15775 EHE) (8,8 F 1800
Acluarsal {LGan] f Loss « bpeimnoe W ITT00 (L0 LN
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss = Demographic Assumpeions
Artizarial (Gain) /' Loss - Financial .ﬂ"ﬂlﬂlplhllﬂ- (1,897 F25.00N) {4 AR X))
Chthurs {Describe) . . 1
Cvhligntions ab the end of e period 8, K15, 5200, 00 %, 7T 700
Colsane i Flan Assete
Plan Assets at the beginning of the perind, at nie value
Iaterest income vm Flan Asseis
Fe-mramunimgin] - Actuarial Gaing(Loss)
[eturn on Plan Asscts preater/ (lesser) than discount rabe
Cuonbritr b
[enefils setibind
IMlan Asscis ot the el of the perdod, af fair value
Hisdoricnl Imformntbon:-
For the period ended For the year ended
Partlenlar 3ol September, 2006 p 31st March, 2018
Amwounl {in B Amount {in I-h.j
PFrasaent Value of Pl Umdil{.}lhl‘ignﬁm A Y I e T, Im
Fair Vahne of Plan .
Assets/ (Liabiliny) Recognised {65,519, 920.080) {65, 775,759,000
Mavement in the present valoe of (e Defined Benefie Oblipation are as el
For the perimd ended Tor the year ended
rarticular Fith Sugrlembeer, 2018 3121 Maich, 2018
Amound (in Bs) Aamenand (i M}
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 65, 7R TS0.00 T, R B30 00
Currenil service cost 162113700 32 ST
Inlereat cost TARMLIETID SASL 30
Remeasurement (Gains) [ Lossea
Actatarial (Gain) / Loss - Experience T (4,111 BA6ONN,
Actuarial (Gain) / Lo - Demnographic Assnmplions -
Actuarial (Cain) / Loes - Foancial Assumplicons (1,897, 725.00) [0, BH )
UMeers | Dhescrilee) t
Past service cont. including Losses [gains} om corlailmends
Lialhilities exlinguishind onsetthemenls -
Lasbilftiee assumad ina business combination
Benelits Pakd {24906, 67.00) (8,508, 1001
Ohers | Descrilae) 4 :
Cloging Defined Benefit Cbligation 65,819,520000 § 5,775, 7R0.00




Marvemend an i Laar value of the Plan Assets ane as fotlows,

For the perfed ended | For the year enaled
Paticular Mih Seplembrer, 2008 05t March, 218
Ak (B B ) Amonmd {in s )

Cprening Fabr Value of Flan Asaets
Inlerest imcome
Remeasa renvnd (Gaina) [/ Losses:
Festmern on Pl Assets (eschaudiong st dochaded g nel aberesd expenne)
Others | Describe)
Conisibubien from the nn'||rrr!.-|.-:
Contribatamn from plan participaits
Ausets distributed on settlements
Huszarls arzjurined in oo bosiiess wxmmbinalien
Denefits Faid
Ditheen [ Deacribe)

l.‘.'-h-.linl Falr Value ol lan Assels

Compusalesd Absencs
Diefimed Benelil Plans

Agminaei |rrn511.|rﬂl im thie stalvemaent of |'|r|1!l! and Lo i n-qwrafmmpmuml alsense cosd {defined erefit plrl.rl} Is as inllows

Balary Incroas:

For the period endled Faar i year enided
Parthcular Anh September, J01E | F1al March, 2018
Amiomand {in Ks.) i fim Buj
Compenspied Absence Cont
Servnce Cied SR 959.00 05, K73 )
Met interest on et definesd Haldlity / (asset) 29400, 00 LW, 332.00
Re-measurement - Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss revognised in OC1 (1521 005,00 (208,765,000
Mel Compensabing Absenc Cusi {RA2,660.00) {153, R0, 07}
Aessumngrinig
Interest Kate g% 7A45%
e EHF [T

The estiates of futnre unlary increases, considensd in actnarial valuation, takes into account inflation, senlority, promaotion and
other relevant fnctors such as supply and demamd facions in e employment narkel,

The expecied petwm on Flan Asseds is hapnd om expectation of the average kg e rabe o icfum I.‘J.PELII."] o mvveslomembe of e

fund during the estimated teem of the obligations
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e Brlborveinng, el meels o L U sbadus o Ui graludy gelan

Particula

"
Cilsligations at the beginning of the period
Seevion Comt
Inteneid Cost
Renefits Settled
Acinarial (Lain) [ Liss - FJ.‘Pl.'ﬂH'l.l
Actuarial [Camn) f Lass - Desvographic Assumjrion
Acsuarial (Gain) / Loss = Financial Assumphions
EHburs [rmeribe}

Obligations at the end of the period

A

Flan Assvly ab the Deginming of Ue peousd, al fapr valoe
Interest income on Man Assets

Re-measurement - Achuarial Gaing (Loss)

Reelsirn om Plan Avsels giealen){lessen) than decound rate
Comiriln Han

Paroedulz sedibed

Man Assars at the end of the period, at fair value

Forthe perlod ended | For the year anded
Hth Seplember, 2008 A0t March, 2018
Aovosink (in Fs) | Aot G fls
1E2E7, b LA 14100
LR U 100332000
A5, EUIHE A5, 5T (0
(374.622.00) (1.A7HBE2.00)
{1,118, 354, DO (1.542,00 1,003
{2000 (oG
10,320,396.00 TLEITAT9.00

Hisbirical Infarmation:-

Tarticular

For the period enalbed
I Septemben, W16

Faor il yuar eawilim]
1wk March, 201

Aol {in Ba)

Amwmmt {in s )

Presend Value of Dhelined Benefit Obligatsom 10LA20,356, 00 11,527 679,00
Fair Yalue of Plan .
Assets / (Liability) Recognised [ (0F03we0| (1LSI7e7e.00)
Movement o Hae prrusiend valuer of The [efine] Benedit Tldigation are as lollovws.
For the period ended | For the year ended
Particular J6th September, 2018 31st March, 2018
. Amyainit (in fs,) Aot (i Rfa.)
Opening Defined Denefit Obligatien 11,527 479,00 L8095, 11 Y
Carrenl gervicn coal A0, AR D0 LANRLAELI0
Inberest cost 258, 550,00 5, 87,00
Hemenmarement (Uanme) / Losses:
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss = Experience [k 196.594.00) (158000, 00y
Actuarind (Gain) / Loss - Desnogeaphic Assumprtions . =
Actuarinl (Gain} / Lims - Founeial Assimptions 2 ANLIN qm.'m.mlpl'
Otlwes | Degcribe) . -
Fast service cost, including Losses/ [gains) on cartailments
Liahilities extinguishesd on selllemenls
Laabrlifees asswined ina business combination . d
Banefits Paid (374.623.00) (1471, 852.00)
ety { Deserilse) :
Clasing Defined Benofit Obligation 10720139600 | 11527 67800




Hlovement in the fair value of e Plan Assols are as follows.

For the period enadied | For U year eoded
Particular A0tk Bopemibier, 2018 318t March, 2018
Amoun (in Bs] A 1 s B}

Oipening Fair Valwe of Flan Assets
Inttrrvsl mwoe
Rowmeadarenmant {Gaine) [/ Lonsses
Teetarn on Flan Assets {evchading amounts inchaced in net interest experse)
b { Doscrile)
Comaritation from the pmplyes
it o glan partiipants -
Asgote dintributed on sortlements =
Asspis .h:.|||l.| il fiva business comlanation
Peredils Pand
O { Deseribe)

Closing Fale Value of Plan Assels * la =
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=Ll Larnieprs Lenra it
el foremny porrd pf the fimengnl sheternents

Mot 20 - RRelated Party Transactions

Investor in the Reporting Entity and having Significant Influcnee

| Dajay Elexbricals Limited

List of Individual controlling voting power fexercising significant influence & their relatives

I |Mr. Shokhar Bajay
2. [Mrs. Kiran Bagg )
3 [Mr. Anant Bajij
4 IMr, Madhur Bajaj
5 |Mr. Niraj Bajaj
i |Ms, Geetika Bajaj 2
Key Management Personnel & their Relatives
1 |Mir. Anant Shekhar Baja Divector appointed from U1-07-2005 and resigned on 10-08-2018
2 [Mr. Kunjbihar Ramgopalji Bhattad Independent Dirdelor appointed from 29-10-2014
3 [Mr. Manish Arun Pathak Cluel Finanee Officer appomted from 22-02-2016
iiop Company Sccretary appointed from 26-03-2015 and resigned

4 [Mr. Sachin Chaudhari

ikl g on 10-10-2017. Reappointad from 08-03-248 B

) Whole Time Director appoinled from 26-03-2015 aned resigmed on

5 |Mr. Raghavan Sundareajs PP B
1 [} ﬂg AVADN SINCArs '1.] i} |ﬂl -ﬂs 2{‘”3
i |Mr. Sanjay Shambhuprasad Murarka Independent Diregtor appointed from 29-10-2014
7 M. Shekhar Bajaj Dirvctor appoinbed from 14-00-197%
B [Mr, Sulir Catta Whole Time Direclor appointed from 01-06-2018

Enterprises over which Investor Company or KMIT/ Significant Sharcholders and their relatives exerclsos

signifimnt influence

Hind Musatir Agency Limited

]

Starlite Lighting Limited




o, b Lo Loniied

Flones ferming partof the financial atabenents

e 20 . Melabed l'lﬂ].- Teamaactlans

— Ik Seplember, 2018 01 h Seplember, 2017
Telated Farry Tea ok MNet Transaction Cutstanding Met Transactlon Ditstanding
Valug Walanwe Value Nalamee
Tiaiig Eleetricale Limited Skt during the year [T TR, 14028 a5, ORI 62207 | FALIRETE L
e from Manpoveer Supeply - = - [7 iz m -
= —|_Puuncliase during the year 9SILETTH LA A 5,726 AL 1,7TH AGH
Dhiravmmd Geivien = - -
Dilrcotint Fecelved LU
Interest fRd N 2563, 25751 -
“rvices Taken F.I50,00 - -
Term Lan - IR T8, 200,00
Trade Advaree 51, D00, 00 TGO ) L] 5, L AL
= Relmbmirsement of Expenses ; - SIHNLIE] = L=
Searline Lighting Limited Sole dusing the year LABLAAN0 FEE R R FAR R ]
T irmn Taja) Trade Tayable ENn = 1 ETE
Tliml Mimalir Apeney Limied | Cither Payabie - Travelling, eic T 100 T2, 121 B 117,00
[
ilamein Arun Pathalk Ealary 00 ) R
Tonus AT T ASERLN
Felnil b o Fxpreses 0.0 i TR D -
e Advwance for Expenscs TARN 7 AR . 3, IHLA
Fbir DAt Salary [FEREL]
Pl I-IHEI .
o | Sale during the year [N g ]
Erimbursemend of Fxpenses p .00 _
Advance for Expenses 15, 16600 FN T e
Fachin Chaindar Lepal & Professhonal Expense ] L] v
Ratnanrnhip Fres - 7 JHLID
Slary EEIL] 13,500, 0 Y

Mate 30 - Classification of Mrevious Years Figures
The Previous fgunes have been regrouped freclsagified, wherever necessary 1o confirm 1o the curreny year presenintion

As per our repart attached of even dade allached,

For Suahil Maleshward & Ci
Charierel Adcountanis

RS

LA Lakluiah Chandia Baja)
Pariner

M N - (T7R37

1Mace Agra
Lrabe: (2-00-2014F

Fow aind om bohalf of Boasd of Drecians

&N
Shekhar Bajaj
Dhirecior

LM - 155

Manish Arun Paihak
Chief Finance Offieer
FAN = AKAPPHHTE

Whinle Tigw Director
Iy - i Esas

Bachin Chandhari
Secieiary
ACS - B957
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SRBC&COLLP 2 Senpll Banat Mary

Dl {Wiesl)

Chartered Accountants MmN - A00 628, intis

Review

Tel ; +8371 22 GRS BOOO

Report to

The Board of Directors
Bajaj Electricals Limited

1.

3.

For5R

We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited standslone financial results of Baja)
Electricals Limited (the ‘Company’) for the quarter ended September 20, 2018 and year to date
from April 1, 2018 to September 30, 2018 (the “Statement™) attached herewith, being submitted
by the Company pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with SEBI Circular Mo, CIR/CFD/FAC/e2/2016
dated July 5, 2016.

The preparation of the Statement in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles
laid down in indian Accounting Standard 34, (ind AS) 34 "Iinterim Financial Reporting” prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of Companies (Indlan Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated
July 5, 2016 Is the responsibility of the Company's management and has been approved by the
Board of Directors of the Company. Qur responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Statement
based on our review,

We conducted our review In accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements (SRE) 2410,
'Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. This standard requires that we plan and perform
the review to obtain moderate assurance as to whaether the Statement [s free of material
misstatement. A review Is limited primarfly to inquirles of company personnel and analytical
procedures applled to financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit, We have not
performed an audit and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Based on our review conducted as abowve, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe thal the accompanying Statement, prepared in accordance wilth the recogniticn and
measurement principles laid down in the applicable Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind AS") specified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and
ogther recognised accounting practices and policies has not disclosed the information reguired to be
disclosed in terms of the Requlation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Oblipations and Disclosure
Requirements) Requlations, 2015, read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/FAC/62/2016 dated July 5,
2016, including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any material
misstatement.

BCE2COLLP

Chartered Accountants
1CAl Firm registration number: 324982E/E300003

g+

per Vikram Mehta

Partner

Membership No.: 105938

Mumbai

Wovember 1, 2018



Bajaj Electricals Lrd.
CIN & LILS00MHL938PLOD0SEET
Regstened Office: A5/ALT, Veer Manman Road, Mumia - 200 001
Phong: 022-22043780 Fac022- 22651279

Wehiside | hitpolfaesess biajeleciricals.com - Emad - legalibajajolectncals.com

STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND SlX MONTHS ENDED 30th Seplember 2018
(R&. In Lakhs excepl per share data)

Cuarter ended Half year ended Year Ended
B e, Particulars 30-8ep-18 | 20-Jun-18 | 20-8ep17 | 30-Sep-18 | 20.Sep-17 | 31-Mar-18
[Unaudited) | (Unaudited) | [Unamdibed) | (Unaedited) | Unaudited) | (Buaciied)
1 | Income from operations
() Gross sales (Note 14 2) 158,330 113,453 93,208 271,703 195,860 469,500
(o) Dby oporabewg moosme 1,514 5 it 2054 B30 2 s
Total Income from operations 158,544 113,893 53,558, 273,837 106 4960 471,634
7 | Dther income 5?1]1 ga1 I.DEE;[ 1,507
3 | TotalIncome 160,420 114,024 275344
4 | Expenses
() Cost ol raw materials consumed 10,502 18,200
{b) Purchase of raded goods 1115100 179,061
() Chunngiess iy irnssnionies of Bk oo, wink-in-
progress and traded goads (6.011) (8.001)
{d) Erection & Subconracting Expensas 7.531 15,5151
{&) Exciga Dty J ]
{fy Employee benefits expense 9,867] 15352
) Depraciaton and amorisation expanse g4 1,857
{h} Other expenses 18,45 33,535
(i) Finance Costs 2.30 406
Tatal Expenses 155,00 zm_ﬁ
5 Profit belore sxcepional Bems and b (3 - &) 5307 11,
[ Excepbomal lboms (Mote 4) J
7 | Proff (Loss) belore ti (5 +- 6) 5,227 11,586
B Tax Expense
Current Tase L 1104 1,050 2,790 2,750 1
Drelemmed Tax 1,072 117] 1,305 {358) (1,877
" Adgrstmont of tax relading 10 corior pesiods p ; ) |
Total Tax Expernse 1m9 2,178 1,167 4,09 2,30 8,085
| | 1 EI |
9 | Hat Profit | [Loss) for the periad (7 +- &) 3,400 a,064 1 7,461 3,848 84
10 | Other comprahantive income, not of Income ,I
(i) M (ot vall ot e reclassilied b prodit or loss (v {4 ] (1 11 {208
Tatal other comprehensive income, nel of oome
e {17 {44 57] (B} 1 {40
11 | Total comprahensive inconia for the period (B +- nmr !1
10) 3,47%5{ A,057] 1,841 7,522 3, 2,770
12 | Peid-up equity share capiial (Face value of Rs. 21 z.ndol 2.043 2,031 2,046 2.031 2,041
12 | Hessve sxcluding revaliation recenves as per
balarece shel of provees aceounging year LA bR
14 | Eamings per share (not annualised) - before
excaptional items
() Basic 233 BT 187 .31 2,80 14617
{0} Diluted 332 1,94 184 728 .68 16.09
Eamings per £hare (not annualissd) - after
expeplionad ibemes
(a) Basic 3.3% 397 L.E7] 731 3 .23
(b} Dilanead 3,32 — .95 1.4 7 3 .18

SIGNED FOR IDENTIFICATION

Y

SRBCA&CO LLP
ML
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LE.E‘LI.I.MWIH

1)

]

3

4

Place . Mumbal

Post the applicabslity of GST walh eilect from 1 July 2017, sales ae requered o be disclosed nel of GST, Accordingly, the gross sales figures for the
Tl yeiar il 30 Soplermban 2008 are nol oomparadio with hall year encded 30 Segieimber 3017 and yoear ended 31 March 2018

ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers, mandatony for reporting perods beginning on or after Apeil 1, 2018, replaces existing revenue
recagnition requirements. Linder the modified retraspective appeeach there wene no adjusiments required 1o 1the retained sarnings &t Agnl 1, 2018
Adng, thie application of Ind A% 116 ol nod have any significant impact on secogition and measarsment of resenie And rebabed Bems n e

financial resulrs.

Cruning ther gquarter, the Compamy has isseed and afotted 1,775,270 Equety Shares of Rs.2 each, pursuant io cxercse ol siock options by eligible
employees and the said shares are ranking peri-passu in all respect including dividend enlidement.

Pursuant i continuours reduction in the CFL business and future outlook, Comparmy had re-assessed the recoverability of its meestments. and loans
provided to Stariie Lighting Limited (Joint venture) ad congecguenthy impaired It fully in standalone fnancial results snd disclosed a3 an
exceplional den for the year sndaed March 31, 2018

Pursuant 12 the Share Purchase Gnd Sharehalders Agreement dated 15 June 2018 CAgreement’) emered intd with Niflep Applionces Privale
Limieerd (i) and its eharasholdars, he Company has, on 1 Saplamber, 2018, acquired B0% of the aquity shanes of Nrlep for tha total
consaderation of Rs, 30,77 crones. Accordingly, Malep has become g subisicdiany of the Compary, The Camganry has & call oplion 10 acdguire
remaining 209 shares as per the tenms of the share purchase agreemen.

Thix Board of Directors of the Comparry, &t ks maeting held todiy Le. on Novembar 1, 2018, has agproved o Give COMPOrANE guarantes 1o tha
landers of Starfte Lighting Limited (SLL), o joint venture of the Company, in respect of SLL'S proposad issus of non-convertible debeniures of s 60
coomes, With ihis, The olal amound of gonporade guararess given by e Company on beholl of SLL stnds al Rs, 242 croees,

Above results hine been niviowed by the Audit Committee, approved by the Board of Directors in their respecthnn meelings bitd on November 1,
2048,

These siendalone financlal results are avallable en the Company's webshe viz. wwaw.bajajelectricals.com and on e websites of BSE
(Wi bsindiLcom) and NSE [waw.nseindiacom),

SIGNED FOR IDENTIFICATION
BY
T
] e, By Onder of the Board of Direciore
\'5 o

far Banfo] Ebegtricals Lirmiod

SRBCA&CO LLP
MUMEA]

Shekbuw Bogy

Dabe © Novemier 1, 2018 gg Chalrman and Managing Diractos



Bajaj Electricals Ltd.

CIN L3150 H1BIRPLCO0SEE T

Reqistered Oice: 45047, Vesr Manman Road, Mumbal -400 001

Phoewe: 02223043780 Fox:022- 22881270

Website : hitp: M bajajelectricals com  Emall : lzgalf@bajajelectricals.com

8. STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AS AT 30th Saptember, 2008

(Re. I Lakia)
Standalomn
Pardculars &5 al 30th Sep | As at 315t Mar
2018 2018
[Linausdited) {Audited)
ASSETS
Mo -Curmint AsSals
Frogamy, plant and acquipman 31170 31255
Caputal work in progress 481 250
Oiher intangiie asseds Elj a2
Infanpitle Assets under development 25 EBJ
Ivestments in subsidairy, assocate and joint venbure 3762 Gas
Financial Azsers
investmeants 871
il Trade recaivables 41,760
iR oares
i) linangial issets 1.5
Delerred tax assets (net) 601
Income teax assets (ruH) 537
U NOA-CLITRNT ASEats 12,61
Total Mon-Currént AsSets 1
Current Assels
Irmenlorics ﬁ?.ﬂ?d hi HIG
Financia Assets
Ninvestments
HTrade racelvables 171,34 174,875
liij)Cash s cazh aquivalents 1 21
w)Bank babances altwer than [u) above 51
vl o
i currend linanciil assels 4 AEE
Other cumrent assets 7o, 31,797
Azzets classified ns held lor sake 21 219
otal Current AssHs 267,641
otal ALSElE m

By

SIGNED FOR IDENTIFICATION
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Stand

Total Mon-Current Liakilties

[Currend Liabihiies
Finaneial Liabilities

Tacticeiae Asal 300 Sep | Asat 31st Mar
2018 2018
{Unaudited) (Audited)
LATY & LIARILITIES
QUITY
Enuity share capital 2,04 2.041|
Other Eguiny !H!.d-‘lgl 92413
Share application money pending allotmeant 4 21
Total Equity s478
LIABILITIES
ron-Current Liabilities
Funarnzsl Liateities
i) Bonmowings 2,862 1,147
iiyTrade Payables 14
liyCeher Financial Liabilites 3l 373
Froviziong ME% L1130
Employes Benelit Obligations 6,54

= p—

SIGNED FOR IDENTIFICATION

Y
SRBC&CO LLP
MUMBAI

Place © Mumb,
Frabe . Mowemnber 1, 2018

1) Bomrensings 128,271 0,815
ilyTrade Payables
Tatsl Outstanding dues of micro eneerprises & small anterprises 2,573 2
Total Outstandng dues af other han Micro anterprises & small enberpoises 0,2 82,7
ipOther Financial Liabiliges 31,060 3047
Provisions 6,957 G 46H
Employes Banalt Obligatons 5,287 8,113
Currend T Lkl BE1 2,29
Other Currend Liabilities 41,554 w.ﬂ
Total Current Liabilities 207,087 243,
[Total Lighilitics Z1R, 273 m%
Irotal Equity & Liabilies a16.501] 347,270

w By Order of Dae Boged of Direclons
for Bajaj Electricals Limited

=

Shekhar Baja)

158

:# Chairrman ani MI.HIQ[H Dargctor
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ANNEXURE G
PRE AND POST-SCHEME SHAREHOLDING PATTERN:
A. For Demerged Company

a)

Equity Share Capital

Sr.
No.

Category & Name of
shareholder

PAN

Pre-Scheme

Post-Scheme

No. of
Shareholders

No. of
Shares

% of
Shares

No. of
Shareholders

No. of
Shares

% of
Shares

(A)

SHAREHOLDING OF
PROMOTER AND
PROMOTER GROUP

Indian Promoters

a)

Individual / HUF

2340000

39.00

2340000

39.00

Ms. Geetika Bajaj

AEQPB9477E

1170000

19.50

1170000

19.50

Mrs. Kiran Bajaj

ACJPB6307N

—_ =N

1170000

19.50

= AN

1170000

19.50

b)

Central Govt.

c)

State Govt(s).

d)

Banks / Fls

Any other

3660000

61.00

3660000

61.00

Bodies Corp.

3660000

61.00

3660000

61.00

Baroda Industries
Private Limited

AAACB2428A

=g

1170000

19.50

=g,

1170000

19.50

Bajaj Electricals Limited

AAACB2484Q

-

1140000

19.00

—_

1140000

19.00

Bachhraj & Company
Private Limited

AAACB5589N

675000

11.25

675000

11.25

Jamnalal Sons Private
Limited

AAACJ3176H

495000

8.25

495000

8.25

Bajaj International
Private Limited

AAACB0478J

180000

3.00

180000

3.00

Sub-Total (A1)

6000000

100.00

6000000

100.00

Foreign Promoters

a)

Individual / HUF

b)

Central Govt.

c)

State Govt(s).

d)

Bodies Corp.

e)

Banks / Fls

Any other

Sub-Total (A2)

Total Promoter and
Promoter Group
Shareholding

(A) [(A1) + (A2)]

6000000

6000000

)]

PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDING

Institutions

Sub-Total (B1)

Central Government /
State Government(s) /
President of India

Sub-Total (B2)

Non-Institutions

Sub-Total (B3)

Total Public
Shareholding
(B) [(B1)+(B2)+(B3)]

©

SHARES HELD BY
CUSTODIAN FOR
GDR ADRS

Total (C)

Grand Total
(A)+(B)+(C)

6000000

100.00

6000000

100.00
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b)

Preference Share Capital (0% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 25/- each)

Sr. Category & Name of PAN Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme
No. shareholder No.of  No. of % of No. of No. of % of
Shareholders  Shares Shares Shareholders Shares Shares
(A) SHAREHOLDING OF
PROMOTER AND
PROMOTER GROUP
1 Indian Promoters
a) |Individual / HUF - - - - - -
b) Central Govt. - - - - - -
c)  State Govt(s). - - - - - -
d) Banks/Fls - - - - - -
e) | Any other 1 2800000 100.00 - - -
Bodies Corp. 1 2800000 100.00 - - -
Bajaj Electricals Limited = AAACB2484Q 1/ 2800000 100.00 - - -
Sub-Total (A1) 1 2800000 100.00 - - -
2 Foreign Promoters
a) |Individual / HUF - - - - - -
b) Central Govt. - - - - - -
c) State Govi(s). - - - - - -
d) Bodies Corp. - - - - - -
e) Banks/Fls - - - - - -
f)  Any other - - - - - -
Sub-Total (A2) - - - - - -
Total Promoter and 1 2800000 100.00 - - -
Promoter Group
Shareholding
(A) [(A1) + (A2)]
(B) PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDING
1 Institutions - - - - - -
Sub-Total (B1) - - - - - -
2 Central Government / - - - - - -
State Government(s) /
President of India
Sub-Total (B2) - - - - - -
3 Non-Institutions - - - - - -
Sub-Total (B3) - - - - - -
Total Public - - - - - -
Shareholding
(B) [(B1)+(B2)+(B3)]
Grand Total (A)+(B) 1 2800000 100.00 - - -
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B. For Resulting Company (Based on Shareholding Pattern as on September 30, 2018)

Sr. | Category & Name of PAN Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme
No. | shareholder No. of No. of % of No. of No. of % of
Shareholders Shares Shares Shareholders Shares Shares

(A) SHAREHOLDING OF
PROMOTER AND
PROMOTER GROUP

1 Indian Promoters

a) Individual / HUF 19 21587678 21.10 19 21814658 21.22
Mrs. Kiran Bajaj ACJPB6307N 1 5252819 5.13 1 5366309 5.22
Late Mr. Anant Bajaj ABUPB2988F 1 4981823 4.87 1 4981823 4.85
Mr. Shekhar Bajaj ACJPB6315N 1 2500735 2.44 1 2500735 2.43
Mr. Niraj Bajaj ACJPB6302K 1 2193235 214 1 2193235 213
Mr. Rahulkumar Bajaj AABPB4242J 1 1392580 1.36 1 1392580 1.35
Ms. Sunaina Kejriwal ADWPK2432P 1 965325 0.94 1 965325 0.94
Ms. Neelima Bajaj ABUPB2992B 1 900000 0.88 1 900000 0.88
Swamy
Mr. Madhur Bajaj ACJPB6301L 1 815035 0.80 1 815035 0.79
Ms. Minal Bajaj ABUPB2990D 1 617200 0.60 1 617200 0.60
Ms. Geetika Bajaj AEQPB9477E 1 608346 0.59 1 721836 0.70
Ms. Nimisha Jaipuria AEQPB9479L 1 558000 0.55 1 558000 0.54
Mr. Niravnayan Bajaj AOWPB1365F 1 251000 0.25 1 251000 0.24
Ms. Kumud Bajaj ACJPB6304R 1 190200 0.19 1 190200 0.19
Mrs. Pooja Bajaj AENPA7886D 1 130000 0.13 1 130000 0.13
Ms. Suman Jain ABVPJ9074H 1 99645 0.10 1 99645 0.10
Ms. Kriti Bajaj AlJPB9461F 1 90000 0.09 1 90000 0.09
Ms. Shefali Bajaj AEGPB9057C 1 30000 0.03 1 30000 0.03
Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj = ACJPB6306P 1 10735 0.01 1 10735 0.01
Ms. Deepa Bajaj AFAPB6660G 1 1000 0.00 1 1000 0.00
Mr. Rajivnayan Bajaj ACJPB6305Q - - - - - -
Mr. Rishabnayan Bajaj ¥ AOSPBO0046F - - - - - -
Mr. Siddhant Bajaj AOSPB0045G - - - - - -
Ms. Sanjali Bajaj APIPB6995E - - - - - -
Master Aryaman BXPPK2107M - - - - - -
Kejriwal
Master Nirvaan BXGPK2165L - - - - - -
Kejriwal
Master Vanraj Bajaj CIEPB6791F - - - - - -
Master Aarav Swamy | HTUPS7496Q - - - - - -
Master Vihaan Jaipuria  BDNPJ7344D - - - - - -
Ms. Sheetal Bajaj ACZPN3025D - - - - - -
Rajivnayan Bajaj HUF = AALHR8594P - - - - - -
Sanjivnayan Bajaj HUF = AASHS1531E - - - - - -

b) Central Govt. - - - - - -

c) State Govt(s). - - - - - -

d) Banks / Fls - - - - - -

e) Any other 18 42630807 41.68 18| 42875247 41.71
Bodies Corp. 16 40954607 40.03 16 41199047 40.08
Jamnalal Sons Private = AAACJ3176H 1 19872830 19.42 1 19920845 19.38
Limited
Bajaj Holdings And AAACB3370K 1 16697840 16.32 1 16697840 16.24
Investment Limited
Hind Musafir Agency AAACH1250Q 1 1258000 1.23 1 1258000 1.22
Limited
Bajaj International AAACB0478J 1 800000 0.78 1 817460 0.80

Private Limited
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Sr. Category & Name of PAN Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme
No. shareholder No. of No. of % of No. of No. of % of
Shareholders Shares Shares Shareholders Shares Shares
Baroda Industries AAACB2428A 1 770000 0.75 1 883490 0.86
Private Limited
Hercules Hoists AAACH2706D 1 554937 0.54 1 554937 0.54
Limited
Shekhar Holdings AAECS5871J 1 480000 0.47 1 480000 0.47
Private Limited
Rahul Securities AAACR3945E 1 415000 0.41 1 415000 0.40
Private Limited
Bachhraj Factories AAACB4654N 1 95000 0.09 1 95000 0.09
Private Limited
Bajaj Sevashram AADCB2301D 1 5000 0.00 1 5000 0.00
Private Limited
Bachhraj And AAACB5589N 1 1000 0.00 1 66475 0.06
Company Private
Limited
Kamalnayan AAACK2177P 1 1000 0.00 1 1000 0.00
Investment & Trading
Private Limited
Madhur Securities AAACM3719R 1 1000 0.00 1 1000 0.00
Private Limited
Niraj Holdings Private = AAACN5095P 1 1000 0.00 1 1000 0.00
Limited
Rupa Equities Private | AAACS7520E 1 1000 0.00 1 1000 0.00
Limited
Sanraj Nayan AAMCS1380A 1 1000 0.00 1 1000 0.00
Investments Private
Limited
Partnership Firms - - - - - -
Bajaj Trading Company AABFB3490L - - - - - -
Trusts 2 1676200 1.65 2 1676200 1.63
Mrs. Kiran Bajaj (as AABTG7469A 1 1210000 1.18 1 1210000 1.18
Trustee of Geetika
Trust No. 2)
Mr. Niraj Bajaj (as AAATN1019L 1 466200 0.46 1 466200 0.45
Trustee of Niravnayan
Trust)
Deepa Trust AAAAS5923M - - - - - -
Sanjali Trust AAAAS5924N - - - - - -
Siddhant Trust AABAS6130P - - - - - -
Kriti Trust AAATK1135E - - - - - -
Rishab Trust AAAAR1223R - - - - - -
Geetika Trust AAATS5279D - - - - - -
Aryaman Trust AAATA8092J - - - - - -
Nirvaan Trust AABTN4388D - - - - - -
Rajiv Trust AADTR2978R - - - - - -
Sanjiv Trust AAUTS5740B - - - - - -
Anant Bajaj Trust AAGTA3192B - - - - - -
Nirav Trust AACTN7869E - - - - - -
Sanjali Family Trust AAVTS4306G - - - - - -
Siddhant Family Trust = AAVTS5735P - - - - - -
Sub-Total (A1) 37 64218485 62.77 37 64689905 62.93
2 Foreign Promoters
a) Individual / HUF - - - - - -
b) Central Govt. - - - - - -




Category & Name of
shareholder

PAN

Pre-Scheme

Post-Scheme

No. of No. of
Shareholders Shares

% of
Shares

No. of No. of
Shareholders Shares

% of
Shares

State Govt(s).

Bodies Corp.

Banks / Fls

Any other

Sub-Total (A2)

Total Promoter and
Promoter Group
Shareholding

(A) [(A1) + (A2)]

37 64218485

37 64689905

(B)

PUBLIC
SHAREHOLDING

Institutions

a)

Mutual Fund

10| 5091091

4.98

10 5091091

4.95

Reliance Capital
Trustee Co. Ltd-A/C
Reliance small Cap
Fund

AAATR0090B

1 2007839

1.96

1 2007839

1.95

Principal Trustee Co.
Pvt Ltd. - Principal
Mutual Fund -
Principal Emerging
Bluechip Fund

AAATP6607N

1 1072220

1.05

1 1072220

1.04

b)

Venture Capital
Funds

c)

Alternate Investment
Funds

1 275000

0.27

1 275000

0.27

d)

Foreign Venture
Capital Investors

e)

Foreign Portfolio
Investor

67 9820910

9.60

67 9820910

9.55

MSD India Fund
Limited

AAJCM9231B

1 1891461

1.85

1 1891461

1.84

Caisse De Depot

Et Placement Du
Quebec-Enam Asset
Management

AADCC1811B

1 1750000

1.71

1 1750000

1.70

Long Term India Fund

AABCL9763H

1 1097000

1.07

1 1097000

1.07

(f)

Financial Institutions
| Banks

27 63976

0.06

27 63976

0.06

(9

Insurance Companies

(h)

Provident Funds/
Pension Funds

(i)

Any Other (Specify)

Sub-Total (B1)

15250977

15250977

Central Government /
State Government(s)
| President of India

Sub-Total (B2)

Non-Institutions

(a)

Individuals

i. Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
up to % 2 lakh.

39115 13197066

12.90

39115 13197066

12.84
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Sr. Category & Name of PAN Pre-Scheme Post-Scheme
No. shareholder No. of No. of % of No. of No. of % of
Shareholders Shares Shares Shareholders Shares Shares
ii. Individual 8 2743718 2.68 8 2743718 2.67
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of ¥ 2 lakh.

(b) NBFCs registered 8 44502 0.04 8 44502 0.04
with RBI

(c) |Employee Trusts - - - - - -

(d) Overseas - - - - - -
Depositories
(holding DRs)

(balancing figure)

(e) | Any Other (Specify) 3014 6862178 6.71 3014 6862178 6.68
IEPF 1 225680 0.22 1 225680 0.22
Trusts 10 1898243 1.86 10 1898243 1.85
Foreign Nationals 4 42645 0.04 4 42645 0.04
Hindu Undivided 742 276725 0.27 742 276725 0.27
Family
Non Resident Indians 446 598357 0.58 446 598357 0.58
(Non Repat)

Non Resident Indians 1010 563907 0.55 1010 563907 0.55
(Repat)

Clearing Member 213 230929 0.23 213 230929 0.22
Bodies Corporate 588 3025692 2.96 588 3025692 2.94
Sub-Total (B3) 42145 22847464 22.33 42145 22847464 22.23
Total Public 42250 38098441 37.23 42250 38098441 37.07
Shareholding (B)

[(B1)+(B2)+(B3)]

(C) SHARES HELD BY - - - - - -
CUSTODIAN FOR
GDR ADRS
Total (C) - - - - - -
Grand Total 42287 102316926 100.00 42287 102788346 100.00
(A)+(B)+(C)

Notes:

1. Post September 30, 2018, the paid-up share capital of the Resulting Company has increased to 102842996 equity shares
of ¥ 2 each on account of issue of 54650 equity shares on exercise of stock options by the option grantees.

2. Name and PAN details provided for ‘Promoters and Promoter Group’ shareholders and such other public shareholders
holding more than 1% in the paid-up capital.
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ANNEXURE H

SUMMARY OF VALUATION REPORT ALONG WITH BASIS OF SUCH VALUATION

1.

Hind Lamps Limited (“HLL”) and Bajaj Electricals Limited (“BEL”) (together referred to as “Companies”) collectively
engaged Messrs S.R.Batliboi & Co. LLP (“Valuer”), as independent valuer to recommend Share Entitlement Ratio
in connection with the Scheme of Arrangement between HLL and BEL and their respective shareholders and creditors
(“Scheme”) under sections 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for demerger of the
manufacturing business of HLL into BEL. The Valuer issued a valuation report dated November 22, 2015 (“Valuation
Report”).

BEL appointed SPA Capital Advisors Limited (“SPACAL”) as the merchant banker to provide an independent opinion to the
board of directors of BEL as to the fairness of the Share Entitlement Ratio recommended by the Valuer.

SPACAL reviewed the valuation report dated November 22, 2015 and the draft Scheme and carried out such independent
analysis as is customary for issuance of fairness opinions. In its report dated November 23, 2015 (“Fairness Opinion”),
SPACAL concluded that the following Share Exchange Ratio recommended by the Valuer is fair:

“109 equity shares of BEL of % 2 each fully paid up for every 1000 equity shares of HLL of ¥ 25 each fully paid up.”

Based on the Valuation Report, the Fairness Opinion and presentation made to the board of directors of the Companies, the
above Share Entitlement Ratio was approved by the respective boards of the Companies.

Later, due to regulatory changes (as more particularly described in the Explanatory Statements under “Para 7 — Corporate
Approvals”), the Companies were required to make revisions in the Share Entitlement Ratio.

For this purpose, HLL and BEL collectively engaged Messrs Katre Barwe & Associates (“New Valuer”), as independent
valuer to recommend revised Share Entitlement Ratio in connection with the Scheme. During the analysis, the New Valuer
relied upon the Valuation Report issued by the earlier Valuer and recommended a revised Share Entitlement Ratio, in light
of the revised applicable legislations, vide its valuation report dated October 31, 2017 which is enclosed as Annexure B-1
(“Revised Valuation Report”).

BEL appointed SPACAL as the merchant banker to provide an independent opinion to the board of directors of BEL as to the
fairness of the revised Share Entitlement Ratio recommended by the New Valuer.

SPACAL reviewed the Revised Valuation Report and the draft Scheme and carried out such independent analysis as is
customary for issuance of fairness opinions. In its report dated November 1, 2017, enclosed as Annexure B-2 (“New
Fairness Opinion”), SPACAL concluded that the following Revised Share Entitlement Ratio recommended by the New
Valuer is fair:

“97 equity shares of BEL of ¥ 2 each fully paid up for every 1000 equity shares of HLL of ¥ 25 each fully paid up.”
Based on the Revised Valuation Report, the New Fairness Opinion and presentation made to the board of directors of

the Companies, the Revised Share Entitlement Ratio was approved by the respective boards of the Companies in their
respective meetings held on November 9, 2017.

The management of both the Companies has recommended the Revised Share Entitlement Ratio as consideration for the
demerger of the manufacturing business of HLL into BEL.
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ANNEXURE |

In the nature of abridged prospectus - MEMORANDUM CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES IN RESPECT OF DEMERGER
OF MANUFACTURING BUSINESS OF HIND LAMPS LIMITED INTO BAJAJ ELECTRICALS LIMITED, PURSUANT TO A
SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT (“SCHEME”) UNDER SECTIONS 230-232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“ACT”).

This is an abridged prospectus prepared to comply with the requirements of regulation 37 of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”).
You are also encouraged to read the greater details available in the Scheme.

THIS ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS CONTAINS EIGHT (8) PAGES. PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU HAVE RECEIVED ALL THE
PAGES.

This document is prepared to comply with the requirement of regulation 37 of the Listing Regulations read with SEBI Circular
No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 and is in accordance with the disclosure required to be made in Abridged
Prospectus as provided in Part D of Schedule VIII of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, to the extent applicable. Bajaj Electricals Limited (hereinafter referred to as
the “Resulting Company”) is already listed on BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Stock Exchanges”). Pursuant to the Scheme, there is no issue of equity shares by Resulting
Company to the public at large, except to the existing shareholders of Hind Lamps Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Demerged Company”) excluding to the Resulting Company itself. The equity shares so issued would be listed on the Stock
Exchanges under Regulation 19 of Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957. Therefore, the requirements with respect to
GID (General Information Document) is not applicable and this Abridged Prospectus be read accordingly.

You may also download this Abridged Prospectus along with the Scheme as approved by the Board of Directors and Audit
Committees of the Demerged Company and Resulting Company in their respective meetings held on November 9, 2017, and
copies of the valuation reports dated October 31, 2017, along with its annexures, issued by Messrs Katre Barwe & Associates,
Chartered Accountants, recommending the Share Entitlement Ratio and Report on Fairness Opinion dated November 1, 2017
issued by SPA Capital Advisors Limited from the websites of the Stock Exchanges where the equity shares of the Resulting
Company, issued pursuant to the Scheme, are proposed to be listed i.e. www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com. A copy of
the Abridged Prospectus shall be submitted to the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”).

K HIND LAMPS LTD.

(Incorporated as a public company with limited liability under the Indian Companies Act, 1913
pursuant to a certificate of incorporation dated April 30, 1951)
Factory & Registered Office: Shikohabad, Firozabad, Uttar Pradesh — 205 141
HID Lamps manufacturing unit: Plot No. 46-48, Sector- 5, Parwanoo, Solan, Himachal Pradesh — 173 220
Corporate Identity Number: U27302UP1951PLC002355
Contact Person: Manish Pathak, Chief Financial Officer
Tel: 9719215153, 05676-234501/2/3
Website: Not Available; Email: hindlamps@sify.com

PROMOTER OF THE COMPANY: Shekhar Bajaj
(For further details refer to the para titled “PROMOTERS OF DEMERGED COMPANY” on page 3 of this Abridged Prospectus)

OFFER DETAILS, LISTING AND PROCEDURE

HIND LAMPS LIMITED ("“DEMERGED COMPANY”) AND BAJAJ ELECTRICALS LIMITED (“RESULTING COMPANY”) FORMS
PART OF THE BAJAJ GROUP OF COMPANIES. RESULTING COMPANY IS PRESENTLY HOLDING 1140000 EQUITY SHARES
IN THE DEMERGED COMPANY REPRESENTING 19.00% OF PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY,
WHEREAS THE REMAINING EQUITY SHARES OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY ARE HELD BY THE PROMOTERS
/ PROMOTER GROUP COMPANIES OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY AND RESULTING COMPANY. IT IS PROPOSED
TO DEMERGE THE MANUFACTURING BUSINESS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY INTO THE RESULTING COMPANY
PURSUANT TO A SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230-232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS
OF THE ACT. AS A RESULT OF WHICH SHAREHOLDERS OF THE DEMERGED COMPANY SHALL BE ISSUED EQUITY
SHARES OF THE RESULTING COMPANY, EXCEPT TO THE RESULTING COMPANY ITSELF, AS A CONSIDERATION FOR
THE DEMERGER IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 2(19AA) OF THE INCOME TAX ACT, 1961.
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The details in respect of meeting of the shareholders (including Postal Ballot and e-Voting) of the Resulting Company
as conveyed in accordance with Sections 230 - 232 of the Act and e-Voting required as per SEBI Circular No.CFD/DIL3/
CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations where the Scheme would be placed before the
shareholders will be published in two newspapers as per the directions of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai
Bench, Maharashtra and National Company Law Tribunal, Allahabad Bench, Uttar Pradesh constituted under the Act (‘NCLT”).

DETAILS ABOUT THE BASIS FOR THE SWAP RATIO INACCORDANCE WITH THE SCHEME AND SHARE ENTITLEMENT
RATIO REPORT AND REPORT ON FAIRNESS OPINION WILL BE AVAILABLE ON THE WEBSITE OF THE RESULTING
COMPANY AND THE STOCK EXCHANGES.

PROCEDURE

The procedure with respect to Public Issue / Offer would not be applicable as this issue is only to the shareholders of the
Demerged Company, pursuant to the Scheme without any cash consideration. Hence, the procedure with respect to GID may
be applicable only to the limited extent as specifically provided.

ELIGIBILITY

* In compliance with the SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 and in accordance with the
Abridged Prospectus as provided in Part D of Schedule VIII of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009, to the extent applicable;

»  The equity shares sought to be listed are proposed to be allotted by the Resulting Company to the shareholders of an
unlisted entity, i.e. the Demerged Company, pursuant to a Scheme to be sanctioned by NCLT under Sections 230-232 of
the Act;

*  The percentage of post-scheme shareholding of public shareholders of the listed Resulting Company shall not be
less than 25%;

*  The Resulting Company will not issue/re-issue any shares not covered under the draft Scheme; and

*  As on the date of application, neither there are outstanding warrants / instruments / agreements which gives any right to
any person to take the equity shares in the Resulting Company at any future date nor such instruments are stipulated in
the Scheme.

INDICATIVE TIMELINE

This Abridged Prospectus is filed pursuant to the Scheme and is not an offer to public at large. Given that the Scheme requires
approval of various regulatory authorities including and primarily, the NCLT, the time frame cannot be established with certainty.
However, in general, it may take 5 to 6 months after shareholders’ meeting.

GENERAL RISKS

Investment in equity and equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in the equity
of the Resulting Company unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their entire investment. Investors are advised to read
the risk factors mentioned in this Abridged Prospectus carefully before taking an investment decision. For taking an investment
decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the Resulting Company and this Offer, including the risks involved.
The equity shares have not been recommended or approved by SEBI, nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of
the contents of the Scheme or Abridged Prospectus. Specific attention of the investors is invited to the Section “Risk Factors”
at page 7 of this Abridged Prospectus. — Not Applicable as the offer is not for public at large.

Names of Book Running Lead Manager/s and contact details Not applicable
(telephone and email id) of each BRLM

Names of Syndicate Members Not applicable

Name of Registrar to the Issue and contact details Not applicable
(telephone and email id)

167



Name of Statutory Auditor Sushil Maheshwari & Co., Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 005519C

Head Office: 607 & 507, Maruti Plaza, Block 118/8,
Sanjay Place, Agra 282 002.

Branch Office: Gr. Floor, 208, State Bank Nagar,
Paschim Vihar, New Delhi 110 063.

Telefax: +91 562 4040023; Email: casmco@gmail.com

Name of Credit Rating Agency and the rating or grading Not applicable
obtained, if any

Name of Debenture Trustee, if any Not applicable
Self-Certified Syndicate Banks Not applicable
Non Syndicate Registered Brokers Not applicable
Details regarding website address(es)/link(s) from which Not applicable

the investor can obtain list of Registrar to Issue and Share
Transfer Agents, Depository Participants and Stock Brokers
who can accept application from investor (as applicable)

PROMOTERS OF DEMERGED COMPANY

Shekhar Bajaj, aged 70 years, is a Promoter and Non-Executive Director of the Demerged Company. He is a resident Indian
national. He holds Bachelor of Science degree and has completed his MBA from New York University. He has been a director
of the Demerged Company since September 1979 and has over 50 years of working experience. He is also the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Resulting Company.

Name of the top 5 largest listed group companies in terms of turnover: (1) Bajaj Finserv Limited; (2) Bajaj Auto Limited;
(3) Bajaj Finance Limited; (4) Bajaj Electricals Limited; and (5) Mukand Limited.

BUSINESS MODEL / BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

The Demerged Company was incorporated in the year 1951 as a Joint Venture (JV) of the companies viz. — N.V. Philips
Gloilampentebriken, The British Thomson Houston Company Limited, Crompton Parkinson Limited, The General Electric
Company Limited, Siemens Electric Lamps & Supplies Limited and Radio Lamps Works Limited (now known as Bajaj Electricals
Limited) with the prime objective to carry on the business of manufacture of electric goods including electric lamps and lighting
effects. Subsequently, the JV members, excepting Bajaj Electricals Limited (“Resulting Company”), divested their respective
shareholdings in the Demerged Company. The present shareholders of the Demerged Company are (i) Resulting Company
(19.00%), (ii) Baroda Industries Private Limited (19.50%), (iii) Mrs. Kiran Bajaj (19.50%), (iv) Ms. Geetika Bajaj (19.50%), (v)
Bachhraj & Co. Private Limited (11.25%), (vi) Jamnalal Sons Private Limited (8.25%) and (vii) Bajaj International Private Limited
(3.00%). The Preference shares of the Demerged Company are held entirely by the Resulting Company.

The Demerged Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of glass bulbs, HID bulbs and aluminium caps at its
manufacturing unit located at Shikohabad, Firozabad District, Uttar Pradesh and HID Lamps at its manufacturing unit located at
Parwanoo, Himachal Pradesh. The Demerged Company has been declared as a sick industrial company within the meaning of
section 3(1)(o) of the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985 (“SICA”) by the Board of Industrial and Financial
Reconstruction (“BIFR”).

The Present Business / Products Portfolio:
Products Manufactured & Marketed :-

. Lamps: GLS Lamps and HID Lamps

. Others: Standard Aluminium Caps for GLS Lamps

Competitive Strengths:
. Manufacturing capacity
. Experienced labour force

Strategies:

. Hiving off loss making manufacturing unit

. Monetization of assets and settlement of liabilities
. Concentration on profitable trading business
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sr. Name Designation Experience including current / past position held in other firms
No.
1. Shekhar Bajaj | Chairman For details, please refer to “Promoters of Demerged Company” on page 3 of this
Abridged Prospectus.
2. Subir Datta Whole-time Subir Datta, aged about 39 years, is MBA (Materials) from Annamalai University,
Director Chennai and possess cross-functional experience in the areas of Business

Operations & Development, Project Management, Supply Chain Management,
Administering Projects, etc. He is responsible for the successful leadership and
management of the organization according to the strategic direction set by the
Board of Directors.

3. K. R. Bhattad | Director Kunjbihari Ramgopalji Bhattad, aged 68 years, has been a director of the Demerged
Company since October 2014. He has completed his Masters in Commerce
(M.Com) (General) from Nagpur University in the year 1973. He has more than 40
years of experience in handling and looking after the finance, investments, accounts
and taxation functions of several Partnership Firms, NBFC’s which belong to the
Bajaj Group and are registered with the RBI.

4. Sanjay Murarka | Director Sanjay Murarka, aged 49 years, has been a director of the Demerged Company
since October 2014. He has completed his Bachelor in Commerce (B.Com) and
LL.B. (General) from Mumbai University. He is a qualified Company Secretary and a
Fellow Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, New Delhi. He has
more than 20 years of experience in handling secretarial, legal, finance, accounts
and taxation work; and also taking care of compliances applicable under various
Corporate Laws, SEBI Rules & Regulations and RBI Guidelines, of several NBFC’s
which belong to the Bajaj Group and are registered with the RBI.

OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE

Details of means of finance — Not applicable

Objects -
‘Purpose and Rationale’ as set out in Part B of the Preamble of the Scheme is as under:

“B. PURPOSE AND RATIONALE OF THIS SCHEME

(a) This Scheme of Arrangement (hereinafter referred to as the “Scheme”) is presented pursuant to the provisions of Sections
230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Income Tax Act,
1961 as may be applicable for the transfer by way of demerger of the Demerged Undertaking of the Demerged Company
to the Resulting Company in the manner provided for in the Scheme and reorganization of capital reserves, securities
premium and share capital of the Demerged Company.

(b) The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company are of the view that the transfer and vesting
of the Manufacturing Business of the Demerged Company to the Resulting Company will enable both the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company to achieve and fulfil their objectives more efficiently and economically and the same
is also in the interest of all stakeholders. The Resulting Company’s existing management expertise and quality systems &
controls will enhance the performance of the business of the Demerged Undertaking.

(c) The Scheme is expected to contribute in furthering and fulfilling the objects of the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company and to facilitate the revival of the Manufacturing Business of the Demerged Company upon its consolidation with
the Resulting Company.

(d) As per the Modified Draft Rehabilitation Scheme (“MDRS”) filed with the BIFR for the revival of the Demerged Company,
the net worth of the Demerged Company was expected to turn positive by 31st March 2014. The Demerged Company
couldn’t achieve the aforesaid objective and accordingly the management of the Demerged Company decided to make
an attempt to achieve positive net worth by 31st March 2015. However, as on 31st March 2015, the Demerged Company
could not achieve positive net worth and accordingly, it has been proposed to demerge the Manufacturing Business of the
Demerged Company with the Resulting Company with effect from the appointed date of 31st March 2014.

(e) The Scheme has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company
in their respective meetings held on 23rd November, 2015. Further, to meet the requirements of Para 8 of the SEBI
Circular No.CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated 10th March, 2017, the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company in their respective meetings held on 9th November, 2017, considered and approved the revised Share
Entitlement Ratio and made other relevant/necessary/consequential amendments to the Scheme.

()  This Scheme has been drawn up so that the Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking from the Demerged Company into
the Resulting Company is compliant with the conditions relating to “Demerger” as specified under Section 2(19AA) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (“Income Tax Act”).”
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Details and reasons for non-deployment or delay in deployment of proceeds or changes in utilization of issue proceeds
of past public issues/rights issues, if any, of the Demerged Company in the preceding 10 years.

Not Applicable. Also note that in order to redeem the 9% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares on their due dates
and to augment the availability of long term funds for financing expansion activities of the Demerged Company, in FY
2013-14, the Demerged Company had raised ¥ 15,12,00,000 by issuing 5600000 equity shares to its shareholders on right
basis in the ratio 14:1. However, the said issue does not fall within the meaning of ‘public issue’. Further, the proceeds of
the said issue have been fully utilized and there is no occasion of non-deployment or delay in deployment of proceeds or
changes in utilization of issue proceeds.

Name of monitoring agency, if any — Not Applicable.

Terms of Issuance of Convertible Security, if any — Not Applicable.

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
A. Shareholding Pattern of the Demerged Company

Sr. | Particulars Pre-Scheme Pre-Scheme % Post Scheme Post Scheme %
No. number of shares Holding number of shares Holding

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Equity shares of ¥ 25 each)

1. | Promoter Individual / HUF

Mrs. Kiran Bajaj 1170000 19.50 1170000 19.50
Ms. Geetika Bajaj 1170000 19.50 1170000 19.50
(A) 2340000 39.00 2340000 39.00
2. Promoter Bodies Corp.

Bajaj Electricals Limited 1140000 19.00 1140000 19.00
Bachhraj & Company Private 675000 11.25 675000 11.25
Limited

Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 495000 8.25 495000 8.25
Baroda Industries Private Limited 1170000 19.50 1170000 19.50
Bajaj International Private Limited 180000 3.00 180000 3.00%
(B) 3660000 61.00 3660000 61.00

3. | Non Promoter Shareholding

Public Shareholding - - - -

() : : : -

Total (A+ B + C) 6000000 100.00 6000000 100.00

PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL (2800000 0% Redeemable Preference Shares of ¥ 25 each)

1. Promoter Bodies Corp.

Bajaj Electricals Limited 2800000 100.00 - -

(A1) 2800000 100.00 - -

2. | Non Promoter Shareholding

Public Shareholding - - - -

(81) - - - .

Total (A1 + B1) 2800000 100.00 - -

B. Shareholding Pattern of the Resulting Company (Based on the shareholding pattern as on September 30, 2018):

Sr. Particulars Pre-Issue Pre-issue % Post Issue Post issue %
No. number of shares Holding number of shares Holding

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (Equity shares of ¥ 2 each)

1. | Promoters - Individual / HUF

Mrs. Kiran Bajaj 5252819 5.13 5366309 5.22
Late Mr. Anant Bajaj 4981823 4.87 4981823 4.85
Mr. Shekhar Bajaj 2500735 2.44 2500735 2.43
Mr. Niraj Bajaj 2193235 2.14 2193235 2.13
Mr. Rahulkumar Bajaj 1392580 1.36 1392580 1.35
Ms. Sunaina Kejriwal 965325 0.94 965325 0.94
Ms. Neelima Bajaj Swamy 900000 0.88 900000 0.88
Mr. Madhur Bajaj 815035 0.80 815035 0.79
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Sr. | Particulars Pre-Issue Pre-issue % Post Issue Post issue %
No. number of shares Holding number of shares Holding
Ms. Minal Bajaj 617200 0.60 617200 0.60
Ms. Geetika Bajaj 608346 0.59 721836 0.70
Ms. Nimisha Jaipuria 558000 0.55 558000 0.54
Mr. Niravnayan Bajaj 251000 0.25 251000 0.24
Ms. Kumud Bajaj 190200 0.19 190200 0.19
Mrs. Pooja Bajaj 130000 0.13 130000 0.13
Ms. Suman Jain 99645 0.10 99645 0.10
Ms. Kriti Bajaj 90000 0.09 90000 0.09
Ms. Shefali Bajaj 30000 0.03 30000 0.03
Mr. Sanjivnayan Bajaj 10735 0.01 10735 0.01
Ms. Deepa Bajaj 1000 0.00 1000 0.00
(A) 21587678 21.10 21814658 21.22
2. Promoters — Others
Bodies Corp.
Jamnalal Sons Private Limited 19872830 19.42 19920845 19.38
Bajaj Holdings And Investment 16697840 16.32 16697840 16.24
Limited
Hind Musafir Agency Limited 1258000 1.23 1258000 1.22
Bajaj International Private Limited 800000 0.78 817460 0.80
Baroda Industries Private Limited 770000 0.75 883490 0.86
Hercules Hoists Limited 554937 0.54 554937 0.54
Shekhar Holdings Private Limited 480000 0.47 480000 0.47
Rahul Securities Private Limited 415000 0.41 415000 0.40
Bachhraj Factories Private 95000 0.09 95000 0.09
Limited
Bajaj Sevashram Private Limited 5000 0.00 5000 0.00
Bachhraj And Company Private 1000 0.00 66475 0.06
Limited
Kamalnayan Investment & 1000 0.00 1000 0.00
Trading Private Limited
Madhur Securities Private 1000 0.00 1000 0.00
Limited
Niraj Holdings Private Limited 1000 0.00 1000 0.00
Rupa Equities Private Limited 1000 0.00 1000 0.00
Sanraj Nayan Investments 1000 0.00 1000 0.00
Private Limited
(b1) 40954607 40.03 41199047 40.08
Trusts
Kiran Bajaj (as Trustee of 1210000 1.18 1210000 1.18
Geetika Trust No. 2)
Niraj Bajaj (as Trustee of 466200 0.46 466200 0.45
Niravnayan Trust)
(b2) 1676200 1.65 1676200 1.63
(b1 + b2) = (B) 42630807 41.67 42875247 41.71
3. | Non Promoter Shareholding
Public Shareholding 38098441 37.23 38098441 37.07
(C) 38098441 37.23 38098441 37.07
Total A+ B + C) 102316926 100.00 102788346 100.00
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RESTATED AUDITED FINANCIALS OF DEMERGED COMPANY

Standalone:
(Amount: ¥ in crore except EPS and Book Value)
Half year FY 2017-18 FY 2016-17 FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14
ended 30
Sep 2018
Total income from operations (net) 19.78 41.60 43.45 45.72 58.76 64.79
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax and (5.99) (12.22) (9.37) (10.74) (7.29) (12.76)
extraordinary items
Net Profit / (Loss) after tax and **(5.61) **(8.46) **(9.30) (6.62) (18.73) (9.58)
extraordinary items
Equity Share Capital 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00
Reserves and Surplus (85.50) (79.89) (71.43) (61.43) (53.55) (32.33)
Net worth (74.56) (68.95) (60.49) (51.50) (44.96) (26.15)
Basic earnings per share (%) (9.65) (15.29) (13.41) (11.04) (31.22) (19.08)
Diluted earnings per share (%) (9.65) (15.29) (13.41) (11.04) (31.22) (19.08)
Return on net worth (%) * * * * * *
Net asset value/Book value per share (%) * * * * * *
Notes:

1. Net worth is calculated as per the Companies Act, 2013. (Equity Capital + Reserves & Surplus excluding revaluation
reserves — Carry forward losses — Miscellaneous Expenditure to the extent not written off);

2. Reserves and Surplus includes Carry Forward Losses;

3. Book Value=(Total Assets — Total Liabilities) / Total No. of shares outstanding.

* Cannot be calculated as it is negative.

**Total comprehensive income for the period

Consolidated: Not applicable

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS

a) With the accumulated losses, the net worth of the Demerged Company is negative. Further, the Demerged Company
has been declared as a sick industrial company within the meaning of section 3(1)(o0) of SICA by BIFR. This exposes the
Demerged Company to the risk of bankruptcy and insolvency.

b) The Auditors of the Demerged Company have included the following “Basis of qualified opinion” in their audit report dated
January 2, 2019 on the financial statements of the Demerged Company for the period ended September 30, 2018 :

“Regarding recognition of Deferred Tax Assets, aggregating X 11,64,80,418/- as at September 30th, 2018 (Previous Year
% 11,46,52,800/-) in spite of absence of convincing evidence of availability of adequate future taxable profits to demonstrate
virtual certainty of reversal of such deferred tax assets, which is not in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS-12,
Income Taxes.”

c) The demand for GLS was severely impacted because of introduction of CFL and LED bulbs having long life. The Demerged
Company will need to offer value proposition to its customers to develop business further.

d) Inview of the growth potential in the lighting industry, increased number of players are entering in this segment. Increased
competition is likely to put pressure on the existing players. Also, due to competitive nature of the market, pricing pressures
persist.

e) Itis a constant challenge to retain the right talent as there is imminent short-term risk from new entrants and existing
domestic players.

f)  Non-availability of regular and quality electricity supply is an issue as it may impact overall demand for electrical products.

g) Clause 17 of the Scheme provides that in the event of any of the sanctions and approvals referred to in this Scheme not
being obtained and/or this Scheme not being sanctioned by NCLT or such other appropriate authority and/or order or
orders not being passed as aforesaid, or for any other reason, this Scheme cannot be implemented, then the Board of
Directors of the Resulting Company and the Demerged Company shall mutually waive/incorporate such conditions as they
may consider appropriate to give effect, as far as possible, to this Scheme and failing such mutual agreement, the Scheme
shall become null and void, and they shall bear their respective costs, charges and expenses in connection with this
Scheme unless otherwise mutually agreed. This exposes the Demerged Company to the risk of bearing costs, charges
and expenses in connection with this Scheme.
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In past, the Demerged Company has entered into related party transactions.
Some of the Demerged Company’s historical, legal and secretarial records are not readily traceable.

The Demerged Company is subject generally to changes in Indian law, as well as to changes in government
regulations and policies and accounting principles. Any changes in the regulatory framework could adversely affect
the profitability of the Demerged Company or its future financial performance, by requiring a restructuring of its
activities, increasing costs or otherwise.

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS, CLAIMS AND REGULATORY ACTION

C.

Brief details of outstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters: None.

Total number of outstanding litigations against the Demerged Company and amount involved

As on the date of the Abridged Prospectus, there were thirty-two (32) outstanding assessments / cases / litigations / claims
/ regulatory actions pending against the Demerged Company involving an aggregate amount of ¥ 9.74 crore.

Brief details of top 5 material outstanding litigations against the Demerged Company and amount involved:

Sr. Particulars Litigation filed by Current status Amount involved

No.

1. Income Tax Proceedings for AY 2013-14 Income Tax Authority | Pending before the % 2.93 crore
CIT (Appeals)

2. Income Tax Proceedings for AY 2014-15 Income Tax Authority | Pending before the ¥ 1.92 crore
Hon’ble ITAT

3. Income Tax Proceedings for AY 2013-14 Income Tax Authority | Pending before the % 1.78 crore
Hon’ble ITAT

4. Income Tax Proceedings for AY 2012-13 Income Tax Authority | Pending before the % 1.64 crore
Hon’ble ITAT

5. Income Tax Proceedings for AY 2015-16 Income Tax Authority | Pending before the % 0.77 crore
CIT (Appeals)

Regulatory Action, if any - disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against the Promoters / Group
companies in last 5 financial years including outstanding action, if any: None.

DECLARATION

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Act and the guidelines/regulations issued by the Government of India or
the guidelines/regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, established under section 3 of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be, have been complied with and no statement made in the Abridged
Prospectus is contrary to the provisions of the Act, the Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956, the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or guidelines or regulations issued thereunder, as the case may be. We further certify
that all statements in the Abridged Prospectus are true and correct.
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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH
COMPANY APPLICATION NO. 1027 OF 2018

In the matter of sections 230 - 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

And

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement between Hind Lamps
Limited and Bajaj Electricals Limited and their respective
shareholders and creditors

Bajaj Electricals Limited, a company incorporated under
the provisions of the Indian Companies Act, 1913 and
having its registered office at 45/47, Veer Nariman Road,
Mumbai 400 001, Maharashtra. ...Applicant Company

SECURED CREDITORS
FORM NO. MGT-11
PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

1. | Name of the Secured Creditor

2. 'Address

3. Principal amount due as on December 31, 2018

I/We, being Secured Creditor(s) of the Applicant Company, hereby appoint :

LI 1\ F= T 0 L= SRR E-mail ID e
P AV (o [ (=TT O
.................................................................................. SIGNAtUre:....coiiiiiiiii e OF fHlING RIM

2. NAME: e E-mail ID e
P o [ =TT PSR
.................................................................................. SIGNALUre:....coiiiiiiiii e OF FHlING RIM

B NAMIE e E-mail ID e
P o [T T PO



as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Meeting of the secured creditors of the
Applicant Company, convened as per the directions of the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench pursuant to the Order
dated November 2, 2018 passed in Company Scheme Application No. 1027 of 2018 to be held on Thursday, February 21, 2019
at 03:30 p.m. at Walchand Hirachand Hall, 4th Floor, Indian Merchants Chamber, IMC Marg, Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020,
Maharashtra and at any adjournment thereof in respect of the resolution as is indicated below:

Sr.  Particulars Vote (Optional)
No. (Please put a (v') mark or
please mention no. of shares)
For Against
1. Resolution for approval of the Scheme of Arrangement between Hind Lamps
Limited and Bajaj Electricals Limited and their respective shareholders and
creditors under sections 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.
Revenue
Stamp
of T 1
Signed this day of 2019

Signature of Secured Creditor -

Signature of Proxy -

Notes:

1.

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Applicant
Company i.e. 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400001 not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank, your proxy will be entitled to vote in

the manner as he/she may deem appropriate.

In case the Secured Creditor is an entity, the duly completed Proxy Form should be accompanied by a certified copy of the
Board Resolution/Authority and preferably with attested specimen signature(s) of the duly authorized signatory(ies) giving

requisite authority to the Proxy holder.



.) Bajaj Electricals Limited

BAJAJ /uspiring Trust
Regd. Office: 45/47, Veer Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001. Tel.: 022-61497000
Email ID: legal@bajajelectricals.com Website: www.bajajelectricals.com
CIN: L31500MH1938PLC009887

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(Please complete this attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the meeting venue)

Name and address of the
Secured Creditor

Full name of Proxy / Authorised
Representative

Secured Creditor’s / Proxy’s /
Authorised Representative’s
Signature

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the Meeting of the secured creditors of Bajaj Electricals Limited, convened as per the
directions of the National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench, pursuant to the Order dated November 2, 2018 passed in
Company Scheme Application No. 1027 of 2018 held on Thursday, February 21, 2019 at 03:30 p.m. at Walchand Hirachand Hall,
4th Floor, Indian Merchants Chamber, IMC Marg, Churchgate, Mumbai 400 020, Maharashtra.

Name of Secured Creditor/Proxy in BLOCK letters Signature of Secured Creditor / Proxy

NOTES:
1. A Secured creditor / proxy / authorised representative needs to furnish duly signed ‘Attendance Slip’ along with a valid
identity proof such as PAN card, Passport, Aadhaar card or Driving License to enter the Meeting hall.

2. Secured creditor / proxy / authorised representative is requested to bring his / her copy of the Notice for reference at
the meeting.






ROUTE MAP SHOWING LOCATION OF THE VENUE OF THE NCLT CONVEYED MEETING:

Venue: Walchand Hirachand Hall, Source: Google
4% Floor, Indian Merchants Chamber,

IMC Marg, Churchgate,

Mumbai 400020, Maharashtra.






